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REC HISTORY

Solar Grade Slificon

LLC (SG5) estab-
lished (joint
venrture with SiTech AS acquired Singapore
Advanced Sillcon chosen as
ScanWater AS Materiafs LLC ASIM) and new manu-
ScanWater AS started 2 MW SolEnergy AS (ASIMIY  remaining shares in facturing
establlshed test production  established Komatsu LEd.} SGS acquired site
o e o [=] - o g o n o P
MILESTONES i & 32 B B & 8 & 8 © © g &
i . B 8 B & 8B 2 % § N N_ 8 _N_®&_N_ _
Fornybar Renewable Energy ScancCell AS and REC listed on the
Energi AS Corporalion AS ScanMedule AB Qsfo Stock
estabflshed In established production started Exchange
November in May 2008
1996

REC was ncorporated as a Norwegian private imited company in
1996 (origindly named Formybar Energi AS). focusing on nvestments
n renewabie erergy. in Norway and intermnationally. In September

2000, cormmon shareholders in ScanWafer AS, SolEnergy AS and
Fornybar Energ AS formed a new hoiding company, REC, with the

TERMS AND EXPRESSIONS

ntention of becoming the majority shareholder in ScanWafer AS and
nvesting in other activities in the PV industry value chain. REC was
Isted on the Oslo Stodk Exchange in May 2006

BLOCK A section of a crystalline ingot fram
which the wafers will be cut. The footprint of the
block becomes the size of the wafer.

CRUCIBLE A quartz vessal ysed for melting
and ¢rystallization of pofysilicon when produting
rultl and manocrystalline sliicon ingots.

CRYSTAL Solld material with a regular, periodic
arrsngement of sfoms or molecules throughout
the material.

CRYSTALLIZATION OF
MONDCRYSTALLINE INGOTS

Narmally made by the Czochralski process
explained below, but may alye sometimes refer

to the Float Zone process. tn order to produce
monocrystalline ingots by the Czochralski
pracess, high-purity silicon is first loaded into &
round quarts crucible and melted, Thereaftar, a
seed (rystal shaped as a thin rad s dipped into
the molten silicon. The seed crystal's rod s
-pulted upwards and rotated at the szme time.

By pretisely confrolling the tamperature gradierts,
raf e of pulling and speed of rofatlon. it is possible
to extract aiarge, single-crystal, cytindrical Ingot
from the melt. This process is normally performed
In &0 Inert stmosphere.

CRYSTALLIZATION OF
MULTICRYSTALLINE IRGOTS

In order £6 produce muticrystalline Ingots, high
purity sillcon is first loaded into a square quartz
crucible and melted, Thereafter, the erystalliza
tion starts from the botéom of the crucible and
proceeds fowarg the top as it Is gradually cooled
(directional sefidfication) under strict temperature
and atmosphers control.

CRYSTALLIZATION OF FLOAT-ZONE
INGOTS A high-purity aiternative to the
Czochraiski process. A radie frequency (RF field
i$ used to produce a lacat rmelted zane on the
polycrystalline rod, without the liuid being in
contact with anything except silicon. The rod s
movead relative to the RF fiald sa that the molfen
(flcat) zone (s moved across the rod. A seed crystal
is ysed at one end in order to start the growth.
This molten zane carries the impurities away with
it redwcing Impurity concentration.

dny® Square decimeters, A measurement typlcatty
used to quantify wafer production volurnes.

EJ (EXAJOULE) Unlt of energy, 1018 joules,
often used as unit of meature For world annual
endrgy use,

ELECTRONIC GRADE SILICON (EQ) Silicon
with a purify of between % 9999999 percent
£0 §9.99995999% percent (IN Eo TIN purityl.

FEED-N TARIFF Price scheme where the
owner of & (solar) power system recelves a
quaranteed, fixed price from efectricity utility
companles forthe elsctricity fad into the grid

FLOAT ZONE SLICON High quality polysiilcon
prepared Lo provide the highett quality float zone
Iingofs.

FLUIDIZED BED REACTOR (FBR)
TECHNOLDGY

A technolegy For depasitlon of siticon from

gas phase uting 8 reactor whare solid particfes
(sllican) are “floating” and growlng in an upward
gas flow (typicalty sllane or trichloro silane] inside
a thamber,

GRID-CONNECTED SYSTEM Solar power
system connected to the electric grd.

1EA intematianal Energy Agenty.

ING QT The sificon piece created when polysilicon
Is mefted and crystallized in a furnace. Typical
slze for multierystalling ingsts are 680 x 680 mm
with a weight of 250-300 ko. Monacrystalline
Ingots are cytindrical with fypleal diameters
between 150 mm and 200 mm and a weight of
4060 kg.

k¥ Kilowstt, Unit of power {1 000 watts),

kWh Kitowatt-haurs. A urit of entrgy equal to
that produced or consurned by one kilowatt in
on¢ how.

MONOCRYSTALLINE SILICON Processed
silicon where all the material consists of onty ong
crystal.

MULTICRYSTALLINE SILICON Processed
siticon where the material consists of several
small (typicalty 1-20 mm diameter] ¢rystal grains.

OFF GRID SYSTEM Solar power ystem not
connected to the electrle grid. Normaily used in
areas where grid-connected electricity Is unavailable
or available only at a high ¢ost.

PHOTON INTERNATICNAL International
industry publication covering the PV industry,
Published in Germany.

POLYSILICON Highty pusified siticon used in the
electronic and solar industry.

PHOTOYOLTAIC (PV) EFFECT The generafion of
electricity whan sunlight Falls near the boundary
between two different substances (e.q two
differertly doped seml¢onductors).

RENZWABLE ENFRGY WORLD International
industry publlcation covering the global PY
industry and other renewable energy industries.

SIEMENS REACTOR Conventlonsl reactor
used for deposition of sllane or trichlorosilane on
{ang sllicon rods. Used by most manufacturers of
petysilicon.

SILANE A compound gas consisting of
hydregen and sillcon. An Intermediate stage
in the production of pobysilican.

SILICON The second rmost abundant elernent
(after oxygen) in the earth's crust. The raw material
for production of solar grade silicon as well as
sectronic grade silican.

SILICON WAFER A thin slica of crystalling
sllicon used as the key component in & solar cell.

SLURRY Cutting fiud usad when sawing slllcon
blocks Into wafers. Consists of sllicon carbide-and
pohyethylena glycal.

SOLARBUZZ an nternational solar energly market
research and consulting compary.

SOLAR CELL Serniconductor device that creates
#lectritity when exposed to sunlight. Normally
made From slllcon wafers,

SOLAR GRADE SILICON (50G) Silicon with
99.99%9 percentto 99.99999% percent purity.
(6N to BN -purify),

SOLAR ENERGY Refars fo dlactricity or heat
enargy mace from solar radiation.

SOLAR MODULE Interconnected solar cells
encapsulated and protected behind transparent
materals that protect against humidity, air and
mechanical damage. Normalty, solar modules are
made with a glass front, a polymer backsheef and
aluminurn frame

THIN-FILM Photovoltaic technology where the
peneration of solar energy takes place In a thin
film of semiconsuctor matertal, normally depasi-
fed as seversl layers on gizss. Conventicnal solar
modules are made with wafers as the sernicon-
ductor materisl.

WIRE SAWING The procass whers crystaliized
silican blacks are cut into £hin wafers using &
saw with a weh of thin mefal wires ang a cutting
agent, e.g. slurry.

Wp (Watt peak) Pawer fram solae ¢ells I$ narmally
meatured n watts when the solar caliis exposed
to a stancard sunlight irradiation (0 000 w/sgm),
typical during the peak time of & summer day.

MW/ MWD (vega Watt peak or Million Watt peak).
Unlt of pawer. Used as autput measurement In
the PV industry describing the effect produced by
the sofar cells under standardized high insulation
cordltlons. -

Wim Micrometer (mlcron) 10-6 m. Meatsurement
urit typically used when describing the thickness
of wafers. There are 1000 micrometers in &
milllrneter, and & hair s typicalty 60 micron thick
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KEY FIGURES

(MO il 2006 SO0 Dol
Revenues 6642 41334 . 2454 1 1270
EBITOA 3172 1965 830 141
EBITDA margin 48% 45% | 34% ¢ %
EBIT 2588 1574, 601, 40
EBIT margin 3956 36% ; 25% 3%
Net financial items 610 34 781 54
ProfitNoss before tax and :

effect of convertible loans C 1917 1540 ] s23t 14
Fair value/fareign exchange effect i

of convertible loans L._ .0 T96| 493 l 6
Prafit/lass befare tax 1977 74 0! 8
Earnings per share, ' - |
basic and diluled, in NOK 270 103 001! 002
Employees - 1795 1385 1101 687

{012 miliony s ans | zoos | poo4
Revenues 2496 2127 108 | 3%

EBITDA 1347 1063 413 | 26
EBITDA margin Toa% 500 | ame| g%
Ernployees 621 _ 189 1 _43.0.l _175
(HER rulhor TOGe T PO0S 2004
Revenues 4360 2455 . 1596 . 884

, EBITDA 183 825 4T 49
EBITDA margin N 42%  34%, 26% ., T%

" Employees T T g 596 410 36
{8000 ol 2006 | 2005 2004
Revenues 116 873 404 214

_ EBITDA m 95 86, 9

~ EBITDA margin 15% 22% 2% 4%
Employees " ase 23 2. 153

COMPANY DESCRIPTION

Renewable Erergy Corporation
ASA (REC) is a significant player
in the international solar energy
industry. Qur business is carried
out in three divisions with
activities across the photovoitaic
(PV) value chain,

REC Silicon produces sofar grade
potysilicen for the PV industry
and etectronic grace polysidicon
and silane gas for the electronics
industry at two faciities in the
USA. REC Siliconis aglobal ieader
in the protuction of polysilicon
for the PV industry andthe worlds
largest progucer of silane gas.

REC Wafer produces muiti
crystalline wafers for the solar
celt industry at two production
sites in Norway, & well as
monocrystalling wafers at a

. B scparate plant in Norway.
revellle REC Waler is the world's
fargest procucer of multi
crystalline walers,

REC Solar produces salar

cells at its pfant in N orway

and solar modules at its facility
in Sweden, using state of the art
production technologies

REC Solar is rapidly expanding its
praduction of ¢ells and modufes.
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AN INTEGRATED SOLAR ENERGY COMPANY
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WE ARE DELIVERING ON OUR

COMMITMENT TO ADDING CAPACITY

WHILE MAINTAINING PROFITABLE
GROWTH ACROSS THE VALUE CHAIN
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"Twoe thousand scientists...in the most elaborate, well crganized scientific
coltaboration in the history of humanklngﬂ;’@ave produced long-since a consensus
that we will face a string of territile: catast: op asdunless we act to pr epare
“aurselves and deal with the underlying causes of global warming.

Al Gore

Fossil fuel use i threatening the future of
our planet and adl lire ¢n it Climate change
has ernerged as the number one prionity
far us all. According to a recent report from
tha worlkd's leading authorty on global
warming, the average global terperaiure
will be 2.0 degrass higher in 2050 And
this 15 a conservative eslimate, conting2nt
upon a rangs of iInbiatives Other
estirmates pant Foward 3 - 4 percent or

avan higher temperature increases. RIsing
femperatures are changing landscapes,
elirminating wildlfe and altenng weathes
patterns. Thase and other impacts will
bacorme molhe severs 1t alternative
sources of enargy are not developad

and commercializec

Wideapread understanding of the severity
and urgency of the climate cnsis has
bheen achieved, with support for
rutrgating action growing every day.
Incliiduals ara seching altzrnatrees that
reduca e of carbon-basad energy.
Governments across the globe arz

grizing the need o put inmotion
inibiatives to reducs our dapendency uh
carban-hased enargy rorms kany
countries, mcluding Mornway, ars
collaborating with industry to stirnulate
the expansion of alterralives.




"(This report) makes clear... that if we continue with ‘business as usual’, by 2030:
world energy demand will be 50 percent higher than today with 80 percent of
this for fossil fuels; the average cil price will remain over 60 dollars a barrel with
most ail and gas coming from unstable regions...”

UK Prirme Minister Gortden Brovn
quotes the IEA Werld Energy Outlock 2007

INOUSTRY

UTILIZANOR
OF LAHL
EREA
"\
I addition o the corapling chmate crises, a
number of uther regatie factors reman on
the harzon with continuzd high levels of fossil
fued use, Recent record-high oif prcesian: ko
fuchng increased glokal insecunty ragarding
L this energy source Encrgy security has aksg  SURILLTURE
ermnerged as a risk fachon as many natibns have
& growing dependency upan al saurced from
countries and regicns with guestio rmaf‘ i e,
J stabifity, Theres i also the uncer tdmt\;-u
if actajuate ail reserves o mzel the qruwlnq BUILDINGS TEAIEFORT
¢ global dermand for erergy -and rur,hou o
INto the futura such reserves can.ffustasn LIS,

Inthe [EA reference scenars roentianad in th Energy stcounts for 85 percent of the
quote abovis which provides a baselire vison e of ol
Of how enerdy markets an fikely to evobe i SIOAS. SOURCE STERH REPURT, CUTGEZR 2005
withott rew qoverninent measures to alter

undertving energy trends, globat prinary

er.ergv dernand |rc:~¢~a~ by CO percent

ub!a‘ expr_» COncerns Uver
£ this devnand, Supnly

MORE THAN EVER BEFORE, THERE IS A NEED
FOR NEW SOURCES OF ENERGY THAT ARE
AFFORDABLE, PLENTIFUL AND SECURE.

Riv vras a1 500




REC provides competitive solar
energy solutions to meet the need
for clean energy. We generate value
and advance the competitiveness of

solar energy through innovative
technclogy, operational excellence
and industry-wide expertise.
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Source: IPCC
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THE YEAR
IN BRIEF

STRONG REVENUE ESTABLISHMENT OF

AND EBIT GROWTH REC PROJECTS
Group revenues rose Major exparsions are taking place in
53 percent to NOK 6.6 billion every division, At year-end, REC was
in 2007 from NOK 4.3 billion in ommitted to expansion projects
2006, reflecting strong market totaling about NOK 12 bilion,
conditions. Due to continued Excfudng RECS most ambitious
revenue increases, EBIT rose omrmitrnent ever - a new world
64 pergentto NOK 26 bilion scale solar manufacturing complex
for the full year 2007, from in Singapore. In 2007 REC Projects
NOK 16 bilion in 2006, was established -a unit responsible
for development and execution of

all expansion projects threughout
the group. Integrating all project

2010 COST ROADMAP ON SCHEDULE activities and resources into one unit
In 2007 REC Silicon achieved cost reduction §n production) of about gathers a crilica mass of expertise
six. percent. In REC Wafer, the mst level was in fine with 2006 REC Sol., :?ga E-gssrrgé ?tosmplete oversight of

which is currertly in the midst of a ramprup. recorded a oost reduction in
cells of seven percent and a cost redudion in modules of eight percent.
New technology centers established in 2007 and the anticipated start-up
of next-generation plants wil secure further progressin cost reductions
throughout the group.

ESTABLISHMENT OF PROJECT

ORGANIZATION =~~~ """ "~
REC Silicon established a project
organization in Houston. Texas.tohave a
presence in one of the largest chermical,
petrochemicd, and engineering centers
of the world. At presert, the organization
is composed of about 50 people. This

17 PERCENT ING — respurce enables RECto t_E[tET manage

N REVENUES REASE. L . and control future REC SHeon projects.

On the strength of higher
production and higher prices, 2007
revenues for the division amounted
toNOK 25 billion, representing a

{7 percentincrease from 2006.

NOK 4.8 BILLION POLYSILICON CONTRACT

REC Silicon entered nto along-term agreement for the supply of
polysikcon to SUMCO TECHXIV Corporalion, a subsidiary of the world's
serond largest electronic wafer producer. REC will deliver polysiicon to
STC worth approximately NOK 48 bilion. The agreement replaces one

of the agreements taken over when REC amuired Advanced Slicon
&l Materias LLC in 2005, Twothirds of the contracted volume & on

""" e take-and-pay terms at predefined and increasing prices. Deliveries started
in 2007 and wil continue unti 2013

FURTHER POLYSILICON
EXPANSIONS

To fuet further growth, REC decided
to nvest USD 485 million in new
production capadty that should add
approxdmately 9 000 MT of silane
gas and up 1o 6 000 MT of
polysiicon from the start ol 2010
The resultant increased throughput
and reduced energy consumption
are expected to lower the unit cost.
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CONTRACTS SIGNED

REC Wafer entered into three
longtermmutticrystaline wafer
sdes mntracts Under the

agreement with Moser Baer Photo

Voltarc Ltd. REC Waler will deiver

wafers worth about NOK 51bilion

over the next eight vears. To
Phokovoltech, REC Waler will
detwver wafers worth about
NOK 5 3 bition until 2015 REC
will deliver wafers wor th about

78 PERCENT RISE
IN REVENUES

For the fil year 2007,

REC Wafer reported reverwes of
NOK 4 4 bilion This was anincrease
of 7T8percent fromMNOK 25 billion
in 2006 The year -on-year inaease
reflects higher producticn and a
price increase of approximately

10 pereentin 2007,

NOK 4 billion to Solland Solar

Cells BY untd 2015 All thrae of SIGNIFICANTLY EXPANDING MONOCRYSTALLINE_CAPACITY

the contracts are take-and-pay REC will invest NOK 1,35 Billion to increase monocrystaline wafer production capacity at the existing plant
contracts with pre-determined in Glomfjord, Norway, from approximately 35 MW to more than 300 MW by 2010. With this expansion, REC
prices and volumes for theentire  wifi become afuly integrated, significant producer of menocrystaline wafers.

contract period.

26 PERCENT RISE
IN REVENUES

Revenues for 2007 increased
by 28 percent to NOK 11 bifion.
up from NOK 873 million in
2006, Revenues were ifted
primarily by higher production
volurnes and higher sales,

RAMP-UP OF NEW CELL
AND MODULE LINES

Ramprup of the first of two
new cell production inesin
Narvik proceeded during 2007,
The ramprup of the second
new production line is expected
to commence in the second
quarter of 2008, Introduction
of this new capacly is expected
tomore than triple the
production of solar cells o145
MW in 2008,

ADDING S0 MW MODULE .
CAPACITY IN GLAVA

REC has decided toincrease module
production in Glava by an additional

50 MW, bringing the total apaaty up
0150 MW In addition to positive impacts
on drect labor cost and general overhead
msts. economies of scale wik be mproved
as REC Solar achieves the posibion of
Europe's second largest rodule producer.,
Ramp-up of this new capacty is expected
to start ©2 2008.

g
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LETTER FROM ERIK THORSEN
PRESIDENT AND CEQ

THE WAY

FRK dynah a1 2XT

FORWARD

There are two powerful drivers of the solar energyindustry’s devel-

opment that are exerting unprecedented influence -the climate
change ¢risis and the generat development of energy prices and
demand. Both of these issues are fueling intensifying interest
and suppert for solar energy. Because our climate is the single
most impertant issue on the global agenda and affordatle
access to energy is essential to every economy, the most vitad
question is: How will people all over the world supply their rap-
idly increasing needs for “green” energy?

We see the unquesticnable ability of the sun to provide an answer

to that question -the sun provides far more energy than our
current needs and represents one of the most environmentally
friendly energy sources availabie today The sunny parts of the
world are alse among the most populated. Unlike most energy
sources, solar is decentraized, requiring less distribution and
thereby having lower distribution losses. It can be linked to an
electricity grid or work as a stand-alone system serving one
farmity, typically in aremote rural area. Clearly, solar is a compel-
ling alternative energy source. But the price of solar energyis a
decisive element the industry must focus on driving to lower
levels, if PV solar is to reach its greatest potential.

RECis on a journey to overcome industry challenges and advance

solar energy. Our goal is to make the PY equation work, to
achieve grid parity -bringing the price of PV energy down to the
level of prices of energy from traditional sources within the
next few years. It is ctear that there are numercus obstacles to
be faced in this young industry in order to reach that goal
-employing technology in order to achieve greater product and
cost efficienciesis the key.

The REC technolegy readmap is a strategic commitment to the

crucial objective of cost reduction. REC aims to almost halve
production costs of world class manufacturing from 2005 by
the end of 2010 by introducing FBR feedstock, using thinner
wafers and wire, improved wafer quality, and introducing new
cell and modute technologies. Since innovation is the ultimate
driver of this industry, we are extending our focus on techn-
clogy development, increasing our efforts in R&D by more than
60 percant per year from 2007 to 2010 This means we are
devoting more funding and more staff in more locations io

finding and developing the breakthiroughs and advancements.
These efforts, combined with continuous manufacturing
improvernents and our ongoing expansicns, should enable us
to deliver the necessary cost reductions. The 2010 cost road-
mag is on schedule, with some time pressure on cell technology
development.

Qur commitment to continuous growth is as strong as ever. REC is

currently executing on significant expansion projects across all
businesses, including two new palysilicon plants, four new wafer
expansions, as well as new capacitiesin cells and medules In all,
we are currently committed to about NOK12 billion in expansion
projects, white we simultaneously prepare for further exgan-
sions at our newly-selected site in Singapore. These expansions
repgresent a major investment of human anc financial resources
-an investment that is essential. We continuously grow in order
to deliver econornies of scale and to build our position as 3 lead-
ing industry player.

Such growth makes sizeable demands financially and operatio-

nally, and REC is intent upon delivering not just growth, but
profitable growth. Building new facilities and the organizabional
capacity required to operate them necessitates major expendi-
tures far ahead of the ramp-up and active production of such
facilities Increased activity and spending levels in preparation
for current and further expansions means that ¢ost levels re-
lated to these activities may be expected to rise in the coming
pericd. Asthe grganization continuesto rapidly develop, we will
realize profitable growth through organizational effectiveness,
well-conducted planning, project execution and cperation.

Such strong growth also places organizational development, orga-

nizationa performance and unity in even greater focys. Inorder
to successfully manage these issues, we pay attention to key
areas such as safety, organizational effectiveness, leadership
quality and living our values This means that we place strong
emphasis on accident prevention through grocedures and train-
ing, work to enhance goal and result-grientation at sll levels,

. develop pools of expertise and actively pursue the cultural inte-

gration of new emptoyees.

In the past year, hundreds of people have joined this company and

hundreds more will come in 2008. In order to remain true to
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our ambitions and identity, a shared platform of beliefs and
commitment to a particular way of working is crucial. Qur core
values truly guide us in our quest: Responsibility - Enthusiasm
- Commitment - Innovation - Drive These core values unite
everyone across the group and secure the foundation that
REC continues to build upon. A valuesded, innovation-driven
organization employing state-of-the-art production principles
is a necessity in order to develop and deliver the benefits of
advancementsin PV technology.

Despite the formidable challenges, solar energy is moving closer

te grid parity. In some areas of California and Japan, solar
energy has already become a viable option. And many more
markets will be in the target zone as several important factors

begin to favor the use of this important energy source
However, until then, governrmentat supgort programs that stirme
ulate innovation and demand are crucial. Several organizations,
as well as patiticians, are pushing for increased use. of renew-
able energy sources. Governments across the globe need to set
in motioninitiatives to reduce cur dependency on carbon-based
energy forms and work closely with industry to stimulate the
viability of alternatives.

In developing leading PV solutions, expanding rapidly and optimiz-

ing market orientation, RECis constantly engaged in positioning
itself to take advantage of the strong opportunity renewables
have o gain market share as an energy source and provide a
real-world solution to very red dilemmas.

§
i
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5y ENCRGY
MARKET 2007

As concerns about climate and energy supply
Issues escalated, support for PV expanded to new
countries in 2007. Incentive programs and other
measures, notanly in Spain, drove strong market
growth and continued to pave the way toward

transition from subsidized to sell-sustaining

grid-connected PV. Though production volumes
rose during the year, polysilicon supply issues

‘continued to restrict industry growth.
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The market for photovoltaic (PV) energy continues to rapidiy expand.

h 2007, the world PV market grew 62 percent year on-year (o
2.83 GW. The 2006 growth rate was 19 percent Qver the last five
years, annual growth has averaged over 47 percent and cumulative
AV installations rose to 98 GWin 2007 Four countries represented
86 percent of global PV demand in 2007, with Germany in the lead
-accounting for 47 percent.

Interest in and investrment in renewable energy sources have been

accelerated by two major trends: increasing concems regarding
the use of fossil fuels linked to the escalating climate crisis, and the
need for additiond energy sources as gobal demand for energy
increases. Governments around the world are following these
developments closely and are taking measures to support invest-
menls in and use of renewable energy. Incentives have been and
rernain a vital contributor to the continued growth of PV instalia-
tions. Nationd government incentive grograms, such as feed-
in tariffs for PV instaliations, have been crucial in boosting industry
growth, simply because the cost of PV generaly has been above

0

GROWTH IN
WORLD PV ENERGY
MARKET

the cost of more conventiona energy sources. There is a definite
need for predictatle, longterm programs and policies also geing
forward (evenif econommic incentives are significantly reduced over
time) to support the necessary investrments in robust and scalatle
market channels. Clearly, the PV industry needs to deliver its part;
future development of pricing of PV products and soiutions, and
the cost of the incentive programs will affect governmenta willing-
ness to continue/expand their support.

2007 brought the further expansion and develogment of PV-friendly

policies -and several new countries moved to stimulate their own
renewable energy markets This expansion helps secure the
future of the industry by reducing country risk. Most market ana-
lysts are of the opinion that the market was somewhat supply
limited throughout 2007, however, there should be significant
capacity increases in the years to corne that should ease this situa-
tion. A more balanced market with respect to supply/demand wil
increase the focus on the competition between the various tech-
nology platforms, so more emphasis will be put on the advantages
and disadvantages of the various technology platforms in different
applications This means a trend toward generally more commer-
cially-driven markets for PV in the coming years

White the first quarter of the year got off to a nervous start, shortterm

price reductions lifted the market and globa growth agan quickly
became limited by upstream supply Though polysiticon volurnes
increased significantly, downstream capadty utilization was
curtalted by a shortfal. 2008 is still expected to be tight and the
market size will continue to be defined by the suppy side The
volumne of silicon available for PY use rose 50 percent in 2007
to an equivalent of 3 036 MW of ¢rystaline silicen solar cells
(2 962 MW of newly produced polysilicon and 74 MW of incre-
rmentd silicon supplies). Average wafering capacity rose 73 percent
to 4 605 MW, average cell capacity grew 59 percent to 4 995 MW
and average module capadity increased 52 percent to 4 849 MW,
Totd crysialline silicon cell production rose SO percent to 3 036 MW,
while thin fitm PV production more than doubled to 400 MW.
The gobal on-grid segment rose €9 percent to 2 607 MW n
comparison, the 2006 growth rate was 22 percent Rapid growth
in European markets and continued market expansion of the
segment in the US and Korea were responsible for the substantial
growth seen in 2007 Off-grid growth, trailed significantly behind,
registering just anil percent increase 1o 219 MW.
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Spain

By the end of 2007, Spain surpassed the USA and Japan to claim

MARKET FOCUS
Germany
During 2007, Germany maintained its position as the world's largest

PV market, with the totd market reaching 1328 MW. Year -on-year
growth was 37 percent, compared to a moderate 16 percent in
2006, The market growth was primenly driven by a moderate
reductionin prices Price reduction was seen particularlyin the sec-
ond quarter, which resulted in wholesalers experencing strong
demand for the remainder of the year. The agricultura sector
rmade a notakle recovery, due to falling systern prices and project
profitability returning to acceptable levels Expectations of lower
feedAin tariffs in 2009 may also have lifted activity in 2007.

PV market growth in Germany since 2004 has primarily been driv-

en by the economic return from PV instaliations. The country’s
Renewable Energy Resources Act (EEG) defined the framework
for a feedn tanff systern and in 2004 new tariffs {or PV sys-
terns became effective. Many German tanks offer soft loans for
PV systerns and a range of loan finance programs for PV sys-
tems are offered by the German Development Bank and others.
The renting of roof space by companies and investors, who in-
stall PV systermns and sell the electricity, isanin¢reasingly popular
option.

Thermna! coal plants produced the largest proportion of the coun-

try's electricity -47 percent in tota. Nuclear power stations and
natural gas produced 22 percent and 12 percent, respectively.
Consurnption of electricity from renewables accounted for
14 percent in 2007, Germany plans toincrease the share of etec-
tricity from renewable resources to 20 percent by 2020.

The recovery of the German economy continues, but at a slower rate

than in 2006 -wilh gross domestic product (GDP} nising
2.5 percent in 2007, compared io 2.9 percent the previcus year,

its current position as the world's second4argest market, having
mounted a numger of projects that are impressive in terms of
both size and scale Making a 482 percent increase to 640 MW,
Spain far outpaced the rest of turope, which registered a
140 percent rise to 179 MW.

The explosive increase was sparked by high feed«n tariffs.

Combined with excellent insolation conditions, this more
than compensated for somewhat high bureaucratic hurdies
and attracted a number of both domestic and foreign PV com-
panies. The market was in 2007 dominated by large,
ground-mounted systems (solar farms), primarily due to very
favorable feedqn tariffs. This transiates directly into high invest-
rment returns for such systems. Investment in commercial
rooftop systems is, however, expected to rise. Another factor
that drove growth was the availahility of equity funding for large
PV plants, creating an attractive environment for investors,
including a number of experienced German entrants.

In Septermber 2007, the market size reached 85 percent of the

then 2010 target. Consequently, a transition period of twelve
months was initiated, During this transition pericd, which ends
in Septernber 2008, all systemns that are connected to the grid
and have received final authorization will receive the current
feed-in {ariff. Since there can be severa months delay between
connecton and final authorization, most project developers are
aiming for completion of installation in the first half of 2008.
The level of feed-in tariff in {he new scheme to follow the cur-
rent one has not yet been decided.

Industrialization has rapidly boosted Spain's energy demand,
_ growing by 2.8 percent in 2007 Coal comprises the largest per-

centaqge of net electricity production in Spain -over 50 percent.
Nuclear power produced about 19 percent. Wind energy
accounted for 10 percent. Spain anticipates 30 percent of its
electricity consumption being met by renewablles by 2010, The
Spanish economy condinued its steady growth in 2007, its GDP
rose 3.8 percent. An economic¢ slowdown 1s predicied, but GDP
growth is still expected toreach 3.3 gercent in 2008,

World PY market size 2007 {MW)
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Japan

The only major market registering a deciine for the year, growthin
Japan felt back sharply during 2007 to below its 2004 fevel.
This market dropped to 230 MW from 300 MW in 2006, Anin-
crease in the systemns price in the residential market combined
with a ack of incentives led to a major fall in this key segrment.
However, it is expected that when prices again start to come
down this would again spark higher dernand in Japan.

USA

57 percent growth over 2006 put the USA on par with Japan in
terms of 2007 market size. California’s share of the tota USA
on-grid market was 57 percent in 2007, down from 62 percent
in 2006. Colorado and Nevada were driven by Renewable
Portfolio Standards (RPS), The on-grid residential market
grew modestly in 2007 and increased its market share from
27 percent to 30 percent. The on-grid commercial segments
reduced its market share from 48 percent to 4 percent. A
rmajor increase came in the on-grid utility segment, increasing
its market share from 4 percent to 14 percent. Grid-connected
systerms now account for 86 percent of the USA market. The
prevailing attractive Investment Tax Credit (ITC) terrms have not
been extended beyond the end of 2008 So to a large extent,
the USA market continues to be dependent on state-pased ini
tiatives such asrebate systems, tax credits and RPS,

OTHER KEY MARKETS

ltaty (50 MW)

This market has seen a significant growth in instaltations up
to 1 MW, diven mostly by an attractive feed+n tariff system
introduced earty in 2007 Though the funding mechanism
is now simplified, regional legislation etc. still hinders project
developers.

France (50 MW)

This market has a feedn tariff that favors puilding integrated solu-
tions Despite‘ the structure of the feed-in tariff, there is an
increasing interest for ground-mounted and rooftop installa-
tions in France, partly based on thin-filrm

South Korea (50 MW)

An attractive feed+n tariff for commercial and utility PV systems
has fuelled market growth. In 2007, close to 30 MW was in-
stalled under this program The cap of the program is 100 MW,
and by the end of 2007 accumulated installed volume was

40 MW Discussions regarding the removal of the cap ¢combined
with a reduction in the feed+n tariff are taking place.

India (30 MW)

Alarge portion of India's PV market is linked to various rural elec-
trification schermnes. A recently announced feed+n tariff may
increase the focus on larger scale power plant projects. The
ambition is to add 50 MW of grid<onnected PV by the end of
2008 and 500 MW by 2013

Over the next few years, the PV market will transition
from being primarily driven by incentive systems to
being increasingty driven by commercial factors. This
means flexibility and strict attention to trends among
segments and customers is increasingly essential
across the industry Ut is challenging to predict the mar-
ket development due tc a level of uncertainty both on
the supply side {in the short-to-medium term, primarily
capacity expansions in the polysilicon part of the value
chain) and the demand side (in the short-to-medium
term, primarily incentive-driven). But supply will most
likely exceed subsidized demand in 2010-2012, which
will require part of the volurme to be placed on the
market at grid parity pricing. In any case, the develop-
ment of scalabte and robust market channels in an
increasing number of markets will be a challenge,
whether the markets are driven by incentive systems
or by commercial factors. ;

There are a number of analyses and prognoses that pres-
ent varying specific scenarios for the future developmeni
of the PV market. Despite different perspectives on
specific growth rates in any given period, they are all
positive and communicate expectations of continued
significant growth in dermand for PV products.

Germany PY market (MW) Japan PV market {MW) Spain PV market (MW) Industry production {GW)*
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CHALLENGE: Solar energy must become
completely competilive with other energy
sources in sun-rich markets around the
globe. The fechnological evolution of the
industry must continue at a high pace.
Capacity upstream and downstream must
also continue a high rate of expansion to
meet increasing product demand.




seerosck: INtensify investments in R&D to create the techno-
logical advances that lead to lower unit costs. Expand sales
and operations into new markets in sun-rich regions.
Continuously strengthen the organizational platform to
support aggressive, profitable growth.

The REC Group is a global player in the photovoltaic solar energy
industry, with a broad presence across the value chain, RECis
the world's largest producer of silane gas, and silicon and
wafers for solar applications, and is also a significant producer
of solar cells and modules.

REC's business activities are organized in three divisions
REC Silicon, REC Wafer and REC Solar. REC Silicon produces
silicon materials mainly for the PY industry, but also for a
limited number of electronics customers REC Wafer produces
multi- and monocrystalline wafers for the PV industry, while
REC Solar produces solar cells and modutes.

REC Group headquarters is in Oslo, Norway, REC Silicon's facilities

are located in Montana and Washingion state, USA,
REC Wafer's facilities are located in Norway, white the facilities
of REC Solar are located in Norway and Sweden, with a smaller
operation in South Africa.

COST REDUCTIONS -THE KEY TO PV VIABILITY
Making PV solar achieve viability -grid panty with other energy
sources- is the focus of the REC Group. It is REC's vision to be
the world's leading provider of cost—tompetitive solar energy
solutions The only way to realize this visicn is through rapid
cost reductions across the vaue chain. Technological advances
. are the key, delivering the improvements in products and

Carporate processes that lead to cost reductions,

goals REC is largely on track with its 2010 cost roadmap, which is
"""""""""""""" = designed to almost halve cosis-per-watt of its best plants
rceogx.tjction compared to what the company regarded as world class
.......................... manufacturing in 2005, For REC, this means more than
Profitable S0 percent cost reguction at its best plant compared with
growth 2005 Ceriain elements of the cost roadmap are gradually
""""""" phased in through continuous improverments, such as thinner
g%f,gxggm' wafers and thinner sawing wire, in addition to the cost benefits
.......................... of scalingup operations. Other parts of the costimprovements
Mariet will materialize as more cost-efficient technologies are intro~
and custorner duced in new expansion projects coming on stream over the
focus next few years, like the fiuidized bed reactor (F8R) silicon pro-
Organizational cess, new crystallization techr.'lology fqr -wafer manufacturing,
developrient and new cell technology for higher efficiency cells.
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GROUP
QVERVIEW

FURTHER COST EFFICIENCIES
TOBEREALIZED AS -
NEW EXPANSION
PROJECTS COME
ONSTREAM

To ensure the roadmap targets are met, REC is further intensifying
its R&D efforts. Due to significant investments in technology
centers and new technology developments, R&D expenses will
increase significantly going forward. In 2008, R&D expenses
are expecled tomore than double to over NOK 300 mithen.

Another important contributor to progress in this quest s REC's
commitment to lean manufacturing principles throughout
the organization, REC facilities fead the industry in efficient
industrialization, with large-scale production and a high level
of automation. The majority of equipment used is proprietary
or developed according to customized specifications.

INVESTING IN THE FUTURE OF SOLAR
Ambiticus expansions are a key element of REC strategy.
Adding crucial capacity, creating economies of scale, imple-
menting improvements and positioning for better access to
attractive markets are necessary to ensure a rebust platform
for the Group's activities. Growth continues at REC, with major
expansion projects underway in every division. Among the
projects greenlighted during 20C7. REC will invest in new
production capacity that should generate approximately
§ 000 MT of sitane gas and 6 000 MT of polysilicon from the
start of 2010, monocrystalline wafer production capacity at
the existing wafer plant in Glomfiord, Norway, will rise from
approximately 35 MW to more than 300 MW by 2010; REC will
also increase module production in Glava by 50 MW, bringing
the total capacity up to 150 MW,

2007 also saw REC make its most ambitious expansion commit-
ment ever -an integrated solar manufacturing complex in
Singapore. The manufacturing complex will be developed in
stages, incorporating wafer, cell and module production facili-
ties and will have the potential to becorme the world's 1argest
complex of its kind Fully developed, the manufacturing com-
plex could hold a production capacity of up to 1.5 GW,

In addition to wafer, cell and module production, the manufactur-
ing complex will incorporate infrastructure and support
facilities, as well as an on=site supplier park. Sufficient space
has also been reserved for future R&D activities and possible
manufacturing facilities tased on potential new technologies.
For REC, the project represents the ideal palance between
financial return, risks and future opportunities.

With so many expansion aclivities under simultaneous develop-
ment, the need for centralized oversight and controlis evident.
In 2007, REC Projecis was established -a corporate-level unit
responsible for developmeni and execution of all expansion
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projects throughout the group. Integrating all project activities
and resources into one unit gathers a critical mass of exper-
tise and gives complete oversight of all REC projects.

Such strong growth witl entail a significant increase in expansion

costs for 2008. These costs are primarily related to recruit-
ment, training and personnel cost of the new workforce
that is expected io run new groduction facilities, but could
alsc include other cost elements. Expansion cost for 2008
has been estimated to approximately NOK 200 miltion in
REC Silicon, approximately NOK 200 million in REC Wafer,
approximately NOK 50 million in REC Solar and approximately
NOX 50 mitlion in REC ASA. The total expansion cost estimate
of approximately 500 million compares to expansion costs of
NQOK 153 miflion in 2007,

Many new employees will join REC as part of new expansion

projects. Qverall, the REC Group expects to increase the num-
ber of employees by more than 50 percent to arcund 2 700
during 2008 and by an annual average of aimost 30 percent
to more than 6 000 pecple over the next five years. This
strong growth means that organizational development
remains a key focus area for REC management in the years
to come, in addition to the overriding goals of profitable
growth and continued cost reductions.

CUSTOMER AND MARKET-CENTRIC

Going forward, the market will shift from being suppty-
driven to one where successful PV companies must even
more closely align themselves with the evolving demands of
customers. The ahility to anticipate and adapt to changes in
the market, and serve important new segments is vital. Todo
this, emphasis must be placed on gaininginsight into the plans,
activities and challenges of our customers.

During 2007, long-term contracts were signed in all divisions.

While Jong-term contracts secure revenues and profitability,
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they also represent deep mutual cooperation in technoiogy
development programs By working closely together, REC
and its customers are better able to realize irmproverments.
Structured, ongoing cooperation accelerates the successfut
development of REC and that of its customers. An important
part of strengthening our relstionships with customers is |
providing them with a point of contact in close proximity, ‘
particularly downstream. The REC Solar division opened offices ‘
in Germany and Spain during 2007, as part of an effort to better |
serve customers and more firmly establish a presencein impor- ‘
tant markets. REC is evaluating the potential for further sateliite
offices and has already initiated development of these in
certain strategic markets, Partnerships in specific local markets
are also being sought.
To enhance competitiveness, REC is investigating-what business
structures andintegration modeis make the PV equation work,
particularly in the downstream marketplace. REC is exploring
various ways of tyilding robust and profitable market chan-
nels that can support increasing downstream activities.
We are also continuously evaluating the mix of products and the
demands of the marketplace, When a significant opportunity
is identified and deemed advantageous, REC has the agility to
act -an essential in a fast-moving market. An example of thisis
the expansion of REC's monocrystalline capacity. To take
advantage of the increased focus on high-efficiency cells within
both mono and muiticrystalline technalogies, REC will increase
the monocrystalline wafer production capacity at the existing
plant in Glomfiord, Norway, from approximately 35 MW
to more than 300 MW by 20i10. The expansion will better-
position REC and will make REC a fully-integrated manufacturer
of monocrystalline wafers.
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REC people have a shared commitment to the future of
solar energy. Inspired by our values and united in our
efforts, we have taken on the task of building an
organization that will meet the challenges of our industry.

PEOPLE MAKING A DIFFERENCE

REC is a fast-growing, dynamic company in the PV industry. PV
is an important and particularly promising segment that is
making increasing contributions to the global supply of renew-
able energy sources. Climate change concerns and steadity
rising prices for energy from conventional sources underline
the urgency of the need for viable alternatives to fossil fuels

Increasing capacity and production is necessary due fo the
increasing worldwide demand for solar products. REC is comr
mitted to a strategy of aggressive growth, With capacity-adding
plans already underway in each division, we launched expan-
sion plans with estimated costs of abeut NOK 12 biltion irt 2007,
The plans include a new integrated solar manufacturing
complex in Singapore that has the potential to become the
world's targest cormnplex of its kind. Establishing operations in
Stngapore will further internationalize the REC Group and
create new opportunities for thousands of people. This means
that we have a lot to lcok forward to, but it also means that a
strong, structured approach to issues ke recruitment and
training is essential to the success of the company and our
ernployees. A cohesive corporate culture, with everyone work-
ing toward a common geal is vital.

REC people are making careers out of shaping and building an
industry they believe in. They are inspired by the high level of
professional challenge combined with the epportunity to con-
tribute to creating positive change in a world that needs

Fremleft — renewable energy. This means that our full¥d serves as a

Eivind Garshot iyt o
vice President HR, strong motivating factor for everyone wltjn}works at REC.
REC Wafer N

Doan Martinez

Director of

Administration,

REC Silicon

Elleen Aspehaug

HR Specialist,

REC ASA

Mortan Kristlansen

vice President HR,

REC Salar

SMART ENERGY
FOR A
CLEANER FUTURE
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PEQOPLE
EIESPONSIBILITY . e
EINTHUSIASM. oot o o
BOMMITVENT i s
| [DINNOVATION, ™ v,
 GRIVE. Tl
A SHARED PLATFORM X ey

We have a pioneering mindset and proactively seek new
opportunities With the competitiveness of solar as cur
inspirng tarqet, we boldly attack new chalenges. We work
in a dynamic, dedisive anc intensive manner, to achieve
our ambitious gods.

To enable us to carry out this mission, we ﬁave a shared platform

consisting of a common set of [EEE @ @ that guide our
efforts.

HTO STRIVE FOR:

THE WORLD'S LEADING PROVIDER OF
HIGHLY-COMPETITIVE SOLAR ENERGY
SOLUTIONS

The pursuit of this image of success motivates people at REC to
work together it is consistent with cur values and challenges
us on a daily basis to make a vital collective contribution to
taking solar forward.

Sclar energy's future depends upen its ability to become com-
pletely competitive with other energy sources. Qur vision is to
consistently be the best at delivenng the solutions that make
solar energy an attractive and viable alternative. Technological

they five and wor:
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e T L ERGRSIDIL Y
We are commitled to providing smart enemy for a
deaner future. Peopie shall dways find that we are
professional, reliable and honest, and put safety Tirst.
We exercise the discipline that is necessary to deliver
on Cur promises.

|
ENTHUSIASH
We have apositive approach that supports rapid growth,
Excternent and optimism characterize our
way of working, and energize us to deliver great
performance. We are strongly engaged in and
—COMMH'MEI&.T proud of our business.

We have a strong feeling of ownership and are dedicated to -~

accomplishing our mission and vision. We are determined

to reduce opst and pursue and redize growth opportunities

We recognize that quality in everything we do and customer

salistacticn are crhical to our long-term success. innovation is the key to achieving the necessary advances, and

we are dependent upon the ingervity and drive of very
talented peopte who share this vision. The determination to be
the best, to find new answers, Lo improve upon impravement
after irmprovement are exarngples of the kind of day-today
ambition ameng REC employees that leads us closer to our
VISION.

INNOMATION

We erwision a future with unlimited opportunities.

With operr mindedness, maginaticn and curosity asthe bass,
we continuously explore new ideas, identify and

create smrter solutons and develop ways toimerove
OUF Processes, ‘ LEADING THE WAY

Given the rapid pace of development and the level of our ambi-
. tions, it is corract to say that REC is a demanding environment.
5L A steady stream of progress and change is exciting, but it also
’ requires considerable flexibitity and fortitude on the part of
| employees across the organization. So the right tools and solid
| support are crugial, [eaders at every level in REC are axpected
act as a vauable resource, leading by example and challenging
‘ themselves and others to succeed. The encouragemeni of ideas
and creativity is essential to our progress, and is one of the most
irnportant functions of leaders at REC. Leaders play akeyrole in
fostering & healthy corporate culture, building team spirit and

‘ enatling others to make the best contribution possibie.

|
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CHALLENGE: R&D must function as an
active cornerstone, driving performance
improvements and cost reductions in
current and future planis, while
simultaneously monitoring outside
innovation, competing for vital talent
and growing to match all the activities

it supports.




aprrosck: Maintain the drive of an entrepreneurial organi-
zation. Focus on cooperative research that contributes
directly to delivery of large volumes of low-cost electricity.
Strike the balance between cost-efficiency and quality that
equals optimal product performance.

REC is focused on the development of progressively lower cost
technologies for producing solar energy. Development work
is ongoing at al levels of the organization; in the daily factory
operations, in the technology development groups of each busi-
nessunit,inthe planning of expansion projects,inthe specification
and crdering of new production machines and in the corporate
technology departrment. All projects facus on develepments that
yltimately promote the delivery of low-cost deciricity in large
volumes. At the operationd level, the towering of production cost,
increase of product power output and enhancement of industrial
scalability are the aim

R&D activilies at REC continue to expand at a high pace The PV
industry is a technology-driven commercial enterprise that is
wholly dependent upon continuous technological advances
that will enhance solar power's relevance as an energy source.
So the god of REC R&D is the goal of the company at large:
Make solar energy viable. The target is grid ‘parity, making
PY equal or lower in price than grid power for homeowners
and businesses. In 2005, REC developed its 2010 cost and tech-
nology rcadmap and realized that grid parity would become
feasiole within the same time frame in muttiple countries. The
roadmap shows how the cost of solar modules ¢an be reduced
by nearly 50 percent in our best production plants in 2000, conr
pared to what was regarded as world class manufacturing in

Carporate 2005
goals The breadth and depth of R&D activities across the organi-
"""""""""""""" —— zationareconsiderable snd demonstrate REC's commitment

Seoa.tjction te improvements throughout the PV value chain. Among
.......................... the R&D expansions currently underway is the establish-
Profitable ment of technology centers at REC Wafer's Hergya facitity,
growth at REC headquarters in Oslc and at REC Silicon in Moses
""""""" Lake. Together, these facilities will be able to deliver next-
Technobogical generation processes for the entire value chain, from
advances . ) .
.......................... sitane gas to solar modules. They will also be continuously
Market engaged in debottlenecking and improvement of produc-
and custorner tion plants already in operatien.

fOCUS __________________ In 2007, the group's R&D activities delivered a broad range of
Organizational advances, with progressin most areas under investigation,
development




EESEARCH
DEVELOPMENT

THE NEW TECHNOLOGY CENTERS
WILL DELIVER NEXT-GENERATION
PROCESSES FOR
THE ENTIRE
VALUE CHAIN

Three of the most successful results that were delivered dur-
ing the vyear, all of which are vital components of the 2010
cost roadmap:

e REC achieved significantly improved results with respeci to
sustainable run lengths and vields in our FBR pilot reactor as
measured by silane conversion to granular silicon. This was
accomplished by controlled testing of the behavior of fluidized
bed particles while adjusting process control parameters. Run
lengths doubled and yields rose by several percentages through
these efforts. This will 1ead to better performance in the new
silicon plants than anticipated when investment decisions were
made

* REC received the first positive results from its new crystalliza-
tion technology for making higher quality ingots, which in turn
was shown to generate higher cell efficiency Further tests are
ongoing and will be used as the basis for the start-up of the two
new wafer plants at Hergya.

*  Advances in using thinner wire and making thinner wafers that
survive throughout cell and mocule processing were adso made.
These advances translate into recuction of the amount of

- e m g

A MORE ENERGY-EFFICIENT J IMPROVING ’

. SILICON PROCESS ~ INGOT QUALITY ' |
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!: SEMENS FaR i ING(H BEFECTS REDUCED DEF ECT:

Today's Slarmens process heafs the silicon growing rods to shout S00°C higher than Irzproving Ingot quallty is a vital part of Improving multicrystslline ceit

the surrouncing cosling walls and malntaing this termpersture difference For several | efficlency. In 2007, REC made a big step forward In reducing crystal defects
days. from an energy effitlency perspective, this Is comparzble ta replating the daor ; Its the ErQot, The new crystalllzation technotogy will be Imalemented in the
i of the Freszer with en extremely hot cooking plate and furning bath appliances on || two new wafer plants currently being constructed st Hermya.

maximem power, \

The strength of the FER process isthe rmuch more balanced ternperature between the
walls and the silcon growing beads, In 2067, REC research resuits led ta ralsed yleid
ardd produciivity estimates For Ehe FBR process beyond what was anbicipated when the
Investment decislon was made In 2006
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silicon used, teading to direct cost savings and increased wafer
to module production capacity, given a certain amount of
silicon available

derived a stepwise development path from the conventional
process and cell design in 2007 untl the very highest cell
efficiency concepts at the end.

Looking forward, REC anticipates the largest contributions to the PV energy is & new and rapidly evolving field and REC believes i}

2010 cost roadmap to come from the following areas in 2008
* REC expects to see the new fluidized bed reactor begin produc-
tion -with substantial power, capital andiabor savings compared
to all existing Siemens technologies. Furthermore, there is
promising work being carded out with the aim of converting the

is important to have a flexible and investigative approach. In
adcition to our own research, we actively seek and assess innova-
tions from cutside REC - exploring new passibilities in cooperation
with cur supplier and customer network, with universities and
with specialized research centers.

powder that is a by-product of the FBR process into sellabie REC' investrnenis in CSG Solar AG and EverQ are the result of

silicon. The powder is hard to handle and easily absorbs impuri-
ties, butinterim results are positive. If successful, the project will
rmake REC Stticon able to produce more silicon than so far an-
nounced in the new FBR plarits and at an evan lower cost.

* REC expects further success in improving the new multi ingot
quality towards mono quality. A new furnace came online at the
end of 2007 and will undergo an extensive test program curing
the year, in addition to the other work related to improving the
wafer's electrical quality that is currently underway.

« REC expects the first new in-house cell process to be quali-
fled for mass production during 2008, and also expects o
see large cost savings from the scale-up of cell and module
rmanufacturing,

such external evaluations. REC by December 3, 2007 had a
217 percent stake in CSG Solar AG, which is a German company
rmanufacturing proprietary crystalline silicon thin-fiim solar mod-
ules using silane gas. £8G Solar is continuously improving its
manufacturing equipment and processes, but muitiple new
upgrades are sliff necessary in order to become cash positive.
CSG Solar has therefore closed another EUR 12 million round of
equity financing in February 2008 REC currently expects that
the REC 2010 cost roadmap will provide a more attractive cost
position compared to what can he achieved by CSG Solar's
technology. Consequently, REC has decided not to use its full
subscription rights. REC ownership after the transaction will be
87 percent,

The further operation and development of EverQisnow the responsi-

Exploring routes beyond those ingluded in the 2010 cost readmap,
REC is amongst others seeking further development of its silicon
techrology, ways to make silicon wafers without keif loss as well
&5 technology for recycling of kerf loss. On the cell side, REC has

MORE IN-LINE MANUFACTURING
SOLUTIONS

The drhve towards thinner

wafers, higher throughput

andiess handing drives

i the cell processes towards

the use of more indine

manufactiring soiutlons,

t THs trend makes production

: flew management even

i mose important -with

f challenges to be soived

1 that are camparable to

| 4 fhose faced by urban read

[ traffic management Several

. projects 3t REC areiinked to
impraving or transforming

i even more process steps

) irka Irrline processes.

bility of REC Solar.
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Continuous, aggressive growih is an essential
element of strategy for REC. The substantial
expansions underway in every division represent

the implementation of new technologies, increased
production capacity and strengthening of the '
nlatform that enhances the group's ability to de
competitive solar energy solutions.
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INTEGRATING ALL PROJECT
ACTIVITIES AND RESOURCES
INTO ONE UNIT ENSURES
COMPLETE OVERSIGHT OF
ALL REC PROJECTS

At year-end 2007, REC was committed to expansion projects totding

about NOK 12 billion. Large-scde expansions are being carried out
in every division of the group, as well as in R&D. Projects
currently underway incdude, in REC Solar, the addition of two new
production lines in a new solar cell production fadility in Narvik,
Norway, which will increase output from about 50 MW to 230 MW
by 2010. New module production lines in Glava, Sweden, are
to raise production from about 45 MW to sbout 150 MW by 2009,
In REC Waler, two new plants and twoc mgor extensions are
under construction at Hereya and Glormfiord that will contribute
additional combined capacity of more than 10 GW by 200
In REC Silicon, & new plant based on FBR technology and an
additional silane plant are expected {o more than tripte production
capacity from 2005 to 2010, raising it to 29 GO0 MT of silane and
19 500 MT of polysilicon production.

While these are all significant undertalings, REC has embarked

on its most ambiticus growth commitment ever -a world scale

integrated solar manufacturing complex in Singapore The
manufacturing complex will be developed in stages. It will incorpo-
rate wafer, celf and mocule production facilities and will have the
potertia to become the world's largest complex of its kind.
I addition to the wafer, ¢ell and module production, the manufac-
turing complex will incorporateinfrastructure and support facilities,
as well as an on-site supplier park Sufficient space has also been
reserved for future R&D activities and possible.manufacturing
fadlities based on potential new technologies. The initid develop
ment phases could bring the production capacity up to 13 GW,
but additional space is avalable for further expansions. Pre-
engineering cormmenced in November, 2007 and production
start-up is anticipated in 2010

The Singapcre complex underscores the necessity of rapid, continu-

ous, strategic growth. The developrment of this site wilt enable REC
to continue expanding in a cost-efficient manner and wilt support
REC's arnbitious cost target. The group's future cost position will
determine its ability to deliver solar products that can compete
with traditional energy sources in the sunny areas of the world
without government incentives.

But there are a number of maor costs associated with such extensive

and aggressive expansions -¢osts that accurmuiate long before
operations begin at the new facility. Adding a large number of staff
in order to stay ahead of the growth curve and ensure execution
on expansion plans is essentid, but costly. In addition to building
costs, pre-commissioning activities represent a maor investment.
Pre~commissioning activities include the hiring and training of
personnel, process safety management preparations, develop-
ment of maintenance procedures, procurement and management
of thousands of spare parts.

Beyond sheer cost, such sizeable growth initiatives present organiza-

tional challenges and significant measures mwst be taken to
ensure proper planning and execution of projects. During the
past 12 months, REC has strengthened its project managerment
resources across all business divisions to reduce our depandency
on externa managerment contractors. In late 2007 & new Corpo-
rate function, REC Projects, was established -a unit that is
responsibie for the development and execution of all expansion
projects throughout the group. Integrating &l project activities and
resources into one unit oplimizes knowledge and expenence
synergies gathering a critica mass of expertise and ensuring
complete oversight of all REC projects at every phase. Such controt
and coordination is essential for the successful defvery of so many
sirmultanecus substantia expansions REC Projects wilt support
the groups global growth ambitions, ensuring a solid basis for
investment decisions and delivering complex projects on time,
cost and quality -inline with high HSE standards
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REC

SILICON

APPROACH Concentrate on technological improvements
that generate cost-efficiencies that have impact through-

out the solar energy chain. Maintain an optimal mix of

HE Al Repa1 2007
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products and customers. Find the ideal balance between

focus on utilizing state-of-the-art technology in products

and processes. FOCuUs on necessary rapid expansions.

THE BUSINESS
REC Silicon rermains a tier-one producer of silicon materials (silane

gas and palysilicon) for the electronics and ghotovoltaic (PV)
markets, with an output of nearly 9 D00 MT of silane gas and
nearly 5 800 MT of pelysilicen in 2007, Such preduction
allows REC Silicon to maintain its unique position as the world's
largest producer of silane gas and as a key international
supplier of polysilicon. Sitane is the principal material used in
the production of polysilicon, and is an essential rmatenial for PV
and electronics components. Leadership in these markeis
allows REC to improve core business returns and grow with a
focus on integrated value creation,

REC Silicon has two plant locations in the USA; one in Moses Lake,

Washington and the other in Butte, Montana. [n 2007, REC
allocated about USD 485 million for additional de-bottlenecking
and capacity expansions, increasing targeted polysilicon
production te about 19 Q00 MT by 2010 and increasing silane
gas production to about 29 000 MT by 2010,

The Moses Lake facility maintains a simple product portfdio,

producing silicon materials exclusively for the solar market.
Construction of additiona capacity at the Moses Lake site
continued throughout 2007. This new facility will leverage
proprietary technologies and improved processes {0 drive
down costs associated with production. The glant is expected
to be operational late in the fourth quarter of 2008.

The Butte site produces for both the PV and electronics markets.

In 2007, REC commitied significant resources to drive
the de-bottlenecking process forward. When the Butte de-
bettlenecking effort is completed and the new Moses Lake
facility is trought on-line in 2008, REC will have the ahility
to produce more than 20 000 MT of silane and have
12 500 MT of available polysilicon capacity.

COST REDUCTICN
New technologies and economies of scale/process will help

REC Siticon drive down the cost of production. As the market
becomes more price sensitive, REC Sificon will be well posi-
tioned to accormnmodate the needs of its custorner base. We

are engaging in various strategies, such as long term take-and-
pay contracts, to batance supply and demand price sensitivity.
Qur goal is to provide material balance and price consistency
to our customers inside as well as outside the REC Group and
thus maintain the positive relationships we have established
over time.

Cost control has long been a focus. Beginning in 2002, significant

effort has been applied to optimizing and streamlining the
original Moses Lake facility, Cost savings in Butte will predomi-
nantly come from production increases and securing reason-
able iong term power prices.

Further reductions wilt be achieved via increased throughput,

using the sarme energy consurmption and without increasing
fixed costs. This most important cost saving measure will
come from implementation of the new deposition technology
based on fluidized bed reactors (FBR). Work is ongoing to turn
the ‘sub-prime’ fine particulate silicon materials yielded in the
FBR-process into valuabte products atso for theiong-term and
gain even more savings related to energy consurngtion per
kilogram of prime material.
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PROFITABLE GROWTH ‘
A fundarmentat pillar of REC's strategy is the creation of additional
polysilicon and silane capacity. This aggressive expansion
m.'r—t """""""" approach couApIed with thg COMpPany's ongorinAg comn_*itment ‘
m: &:.r;t-aa'. o to running existing operations safely and efficiently, will allow |
- REC Silicon to address growing demand within all its core
markets Significant effort has been applied to planning for the
successful start-up of Moses Lake's new facility. The facility is
anticipated to begin operations in the fourth quarter of 2008,
adding three times the capacity of the existing plant. The new
plant will vield significant cost reductions due i¢ inCreased
efficiency driven by proprietary technology REC's growth
strategy will continue to be supported by successfully manag-
ing the expansions atready in-process and by preparing for
future opportunities. REC Silicon continues to enhanceits capa-
bility of handling continuous rapid growth while keeging exist-
ing operations efficient and profitable.

TECHNOLOGICAL ADVANCES

The main development projects in REC Silicon for 2008 and beyond
arein three broad areas.

* Silane manufacturing improvements: To lower the cost of manu-
facturing silane through improvements in conversien and
redistribution technology REC Tecnology in Norway is feading
this effort and is focused on providing solutions that can be
applied to production with speed and agility,

* Polysilicon manufacturing improvements: To optimize our

proprietary technology. This effort will support successiul start
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REC

SILICON

up of our new Moses Lake plant as we implement innovative
control strategies, seeding technotogy, and process optimiza-
tion parameters that are easily scaled. REC is also aggressively
pursuing technology to provide a higher purity product. The
ioint effort with REC Technology is designed to provide critica
information on the correct level of silicon gurity needed to meet
the industry’s goals.

* Process tuning: To improve performance of the existing

Siemens reactors. Even though no further capital purchases of
such reactors are glanned, there are still significant cost reduc-
tion opportunities through technological improvement. REC
R&D tearns are investigating methods to promote a high growth
rate and create methods for selfharvesting.

In addition, REC Silicon continues to drive innovation forward via

multiple research projects currently underway in cooperation
with prominent universities and a consortium of partners
-seeking dternative approaches to the creation of polysilicon
and identifying additiona! applications for silane.

INCREASE IN SILANE
PRODUCTION

%

renewabte and clean energy solutions. Qur market outlook
remains strong, with global supply of silicon expected o grow
ragidly for several years, from slightly above an estimated
45 000 MT per year in 2007 to between 125 000160 000 MT
per year in 201/2012. This projection corresponds to less than
50 percent of the total possible production capacity and ¢an be
achieved only if dl announced and rumored polycrystalline and

upgraded metallurgical grade silicon projects materialize on
time and at full capacity Clearly, the strongest driver on the
demand side will continue to be the growth of PV.

Itis anticipated that there will be increased pressure on polysilicon
purity, to support the PV market As more and more electronics

MARKET AND CUSTOMER FOCUS

REC Silicon is positioned to maximize the value of its assets to
penefit of the entire value chain. The silicon matenals produced
suppart a diverse market portfolio, including PV and other
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firms enter the solar wafer/cell sector of the value chain, and
as solar manufacturers continue to seek higher efficiencies,
product quality requirements will converge and polysilicon
purity is expected to become more important for PV This
additional requirement will pose a challenge for second/third-tier
producers and those organizations lacking insight into the value
chain,

The short-term relationship between PV growth and demand for
silicon materials will likely not be linear’ as there are large
underutilized downstream capacities and non-existent invento-
ries outside the REC value ¢hain, These circumstances lead us
to think that a potential oversupply situation will be visible
further down the value chain before reaching polysilicon.

Balance hetween supply and demand in the palysilicon market will
likely not occur until at least 2010, Dernand and prices remain
strong and 2008 will indeed be the tightest year so far in
polysilicon history While prices are still expected to decrease
gradualy as supply catches up with demand in the future, this
development will not materialize in 2008, We assume market
prices will at teast stay stable and will most likely continue to
in¢crease until 2010,

We anticipate that the PV industry will continue i{o grow and
that the potential oversupply in 2011/2012 will prove to be a
window rather than a permanent situation -significant new
capacity beyond the total of currently announced, planned and
rumored capacity expansions will have to be brought online
untit 2020. Even if the irngpact of silicon prices on the cost of
solar power is relatively small, prices will eventualy cormne under
pressure.
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REC Silicon remains the dominant supplier of silane gas tc the

merchant market The global merchant market was estimated
to be just above 2 200 MT in 2007 and has a growth rate of
more than 30 percent per annum. The world's silane production
is eight tirmes the merchant demand, but most is allocated to
potysilicon production and 2008 could be the first year in which
market demand may not be met. Primary growth dnvers
are Liquid Crysta Displays (LCD) and thin-film solar According
ta recent announcements, some single user sites could
potentially consume between 500 and 1500 MT per year well
before 2012.

REC Silicon intends to continue to support the merchant sitane

market and ensure that tong-term visibitity and stability ae
rmaintained. REC Silicon leadership is evaluating sites for silane
gas production solely dedicated to the merchant market.

ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT
The tota number of employees at REC Silicon was 621 at the end

of 2007, an increase from 480 in 2006. We are committed to
safety, innovation and operational excellence. REC Silicon
employees run our plants, expand our ogportunities and
support our customers by embracing our corporate vatves and
internalizing our vision to continue to build a world class organi-
2ation and increase our momentum. REC Silicon is focused
upen aligningits culture with business process/quality improve-
ments and the implementation of operational conceptsthat are
sustainaple, repeatable and extensible. We will ermpower owur
ermployees to make good decisions and allow the organization
to focus on gaining further business process efficiency,
delivering on our promise to the customer.
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eding in the wafer business reguires a
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REC

§WAFER

APPROACH Commitment to R&D that delivers continuous
improvements in wafers and wafer processes. Focus

strongly on operational excellence, substantial investment
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in expansion projects at multiple locations. Bui[d" W,

4
i

partnering relationships with customers. & §

REC Waferis the world's largest producer of multicrystalline silicon
wafers for the solar industry. In 2007, REC Wafer's plants
produced multicrystdline wafers with an implied effect of
468 MW, a 61 percent increase from 2006. The increase in
annual preduction volume is mainly due to the successful start-
up of our second factory at Heraya.

REC also produces monocrystalline ingots for the solar energy
industry. In 2007, the production of this product was 38 MW,

COST REDUCTION

Continuous technological and gperational improvemnents are the
key to achieving targeted cost savings per MW. Thinner wafers
and wire are the single largest cost saving areas in REC Wafer's
2010 cest roadmap. Thinner wafers, thinner wires and
improved manufacturing yields rmean the use of less polysiicon,
directly lowering matertal costs. Other costcutting measures
include the implementation of increased automation in the
preduction process, less use of other consumables and getting
the price of these consumables down. Considerable effort is
also put into improving ingot quality, to enable increased yields
as well as higher solar efficiency. New plants are being designed
with technologica! improvements and operational capabilities
to ensure a steady cost reduction process toward the ambitious
cost-saving goal.

PROFITABLE GROWTH

At the end of 2007, the REC Wafer division had four expansion
projects underway, at various stages of construction. These
projects represent a total investment of about NOK 4.2 billion.
New wafer plants currently under construction will more than
triple  capacity by 2010, The expanded production facilities for
multicrystalline wafers in Glomfjord will gradualy be taken into
production during 2008. Also, ramp-up of production will com-
mence at the third faciory ai Hergya in late 2008, Increased
activity and spending levels are anticipated in preparation for
further internationa expansion. ncreased cost levels rdated to
these activities should also be expected in the future as the scope
of the expansion projects grow steadily larger to keep up with the
industry rate of over 40 percent annual growth. Despite these

+

i

increases, we ae determined to maintain a cost-conscious cost-
efficient culture in the running operations.

Due to extensive planned and ongoing expansions, productivity per
employee is expected to vary, as at any time a significant number
of staff hired for a particular facility are likely to be engaged in
training rather than actua production. Thus substantid costs
accumulate prior to the start of production. It is important to note
that, though rmarging are reduced duning such geriods, the under-
lying cost structure will continue to improve.

The drive toexecute substantial growth in a farly young industry with
g developing technolegy base alse gives significant exposure to
supplier-side risks For example, delays on the part of equipment,
service or consumables suppliers for new projects canlead to later
startup of new produclion capacity than projected. Atso, the aility
of key suppliers to grow at similar rates as REC s of great impor-
tance. Hence, it is high on the agenda o broaden and develop
REC's supplier base to reduce these types of risks

TECHNOLOGICAL ADVANCES
REC Wafer's technological focus is on increasing the solar efficiency
of the wafer, improving the general mechanica quality of the
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tion process. The wafer itself must become capable of convert-
ing more sunlight into electncity The quality of the wafer in
terms of strength and other physical characteristics must be
improved. And since silicon is still & rmain cost element in wafer

- St . - L
g .- G wafer-product, and reducing silicon consumption in the produc-
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bz production, scaling down the amount used is important.

. In the areas of improved sofar efficiency and ingot quality, encour-
‘I'M'?Lih 17“--1| aging tests have been conducted and a significant new step is
v et expected to be taken through the new furnaces to be installed

in the Heraya [ and 1V factories. In the effort for more efficient
use of polysilicon, significant progress was made during 2007 in
reducing wafer thickness to 180 and 160 um, and wire thickness
towards 140 and 20 ym.

The wafer production facilities themselves represent & significant
technological advantage. Substantial research and investment
has been made in order {0 develop large~scale manufacturing
concepts that enable world~class operations REC’s wafer plants
feature a manufacturing process that is technologically
advanced, strearnfined and dynamically scalable. Research
and development steadily delivers new solutions for existing
production equigment and for new proprietary technology in
several parts of the production process, much of itin the area of
automation of wafer-handling.

The decision to invest in @ new NOK 210 million R&D center

at Hergya will have a positive impact both on technetogy devel-

opment and on the division's operations Test programs con-
ducted inside an operating facility are costly and can create

interruptions. The new R&D center will reduce testing as a
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source of such risks and wiill enable a stronger and faster
approach to technology development A more efficient R&D
process will help achieve ambitious cost reductions and quality
improverment targets.

MARKET AND CUSTOMER FOCUS
The market for silicon wafers is strong and demand is still

expecied to exceed supply through 2010, REC Wafer's custom-
ers are solid international solar cell manufacturers with ambi-
tions and ability to grow their businesses tegether with REC,
REC Wafer has @ market share in multicrystaline wafers of
more than 20 percent. it is cur geal to maintain our position as
the world's largest producer of multicrystalline wafers, and to
become 3 significani producer of monocrystalline wafers.

REC is investing NOK 1.3 billion to build a new monaocrystalline

gtant, which will increase monocrystalline capacity to 300 MW
gy 200 REC's monocrystalline business supglies the market
with high-efficiency ingots.. With this investment we will apply
our industriahzed wafering concept also to this rmarket
segment. The increased emphasis on monocrystalline reflects
REC’s aim fo have a strong presence in all promising silicon
wafer products.

During 2007, REC entered into three new long-term, fixed-price
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contracts to supply approximately NOK 14.4 billion worth of
silicon wafers during the period 20082015, These contracts were
entered into with Moser Baer of nda, Photovoltech of Belgium
and Solland of The Netherlands. Securing iong-term contracts for
much of the future wafer volume provides predictability of reve-
nues and earnings It aso establishes a solid foundation for the
ongoing planning of future expansions in production capécity.
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itis aso an important goad o establish long-term customer relation-
ships in order to create the bHasis for cooperation on continuous
product quality devaelopment. As technological advances emerge,
it becormes increasingly difficult to redize improverrents without
knowledge of and insight into performance of the wafers in
customers’ cellproduction processes For example, the drive to
develop thinner wafers to reduce silicon consumption must be
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talanced with the custormer’s ability to handle them 1t is essential
that we closely monitor the progress of our custorners, understand
their agendas and work together with thern for efficient transitions.

While the current customer mix is at a good balance in terms of
geography and type of custormers, further broadening of the
division's customer base is strategically desirable,

REC Wafer is focused on staying close to the market and under-
standing the prevailing dynamics of thie market.

ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The wafer divisicn had 672 empicyees at the end of 2007 Thisisan
increase of 76 from the beginning of the year. In our experience,
investment in early recruitment and training provides an impor-
tant basis for smooth start-up of new production facilities. With
significant new production capacity coming onling, much effort
will continue to be put into attracting, emploving and retaining
qualified employees at all levels in the organization,

In addition to substantial recruitment activities, organizational
development will have high pricrity in the transitioning from a
relatively small business to a significantly larger and more com-
plex one, The organisation has been strengthened and will be
further developed to redize profitable growth through well-
conducted planning, project execution and operation.

Combining enthusiasm and drive with experience, we continually
strive to find a balance that will optimize the rapid, but responsible,
growth of our business
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successiul growth as a downstream plaver
Fablishiment in new markete

inad\g,fnamic markel requires es
clions in products and processes, agiie

sleady cost redy

inclustrial production of cells and modules, and a strategic

wproach to organizational development.







REC
SOLAR

APPROACH Focus on penetrating key markets and
segments, and on ensuring that an expanding sales and

marketing force cultivates a customer-centric orientation.

REX Asrmad Regart 2000

Build up internal resources needed to maintain efficient
operations at existing facilities and to support expansions.

that drive costs down.

REC Sclar manufactures solar cells at its facility in Narvik

{Nerway) and solar modules at its facility in Glava (Sweden).
The solar modutes are sold to distributors, project devel-
opers and system integrators in the international PV
market. REC Solar makes solar cells from multicrystalline
wafers supplied by REC Wafer.

During 2007, significant investments were made for future

growth, both in manufacturing capacity and in organiza-
tional resources. There was a strong increase in the produc-
tion of sofar cells and modules compared to the previous
year. At year-end, the installed production capacity was
about 135 MW for cells and about 100 MW for modules,
reflecting 8170 percent rise in production capacity for cells
and 120 percent rise in production cagacity for modules.

COST REDUCTION
In order to create a foundation for long-term growth, PV must

be able to compete at grid parity. PY must become steadily
more competitive with other energy sources through con-
tinuous cost reductions. Supply may cutstrip subsidized
demand towards 2012. A portion of the supply will then
have to compete at grid parity, This makes cost even more
crucial.

During 2007, REC Solar has taken significant steps to achieve

further cost reductions in accordance with its cost roag
map. Substantial capacity has been added and capacity
will continue to be added throughout 2008. As the new
capacity is ramped-up, REC Solar will realize the economic
benefits of scale and the introduction of more efficient
manufacturing technologies. The increased scale will also
reduce sourcing cost as purchasing power is strengthened.

The capacity additions currently in progress will increase our

42

cell capacity from 50 to 230 MW, and our module capacity
from 45 to 150 MW. In parallel, we are building our organiza-
tien to cope with currently planned growth in capacity and
beyond. With such a high level of investment in future
growih, we did not see reductions in unit cost in 2007.
However, we do expect some solid unit cost reductions in
2008 as we ramp-up capacity.
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Corporate PROFITABLE GROWTH

goals While production of solar cells increased 25 percent and

production of modules increased by 30 percent com-
pared to the previous year, installed capacity increased
170 percent for sclar celts and 120 percent for solar
modules.

REC Solar is set for strong growth, in line with the Group's
cemmitment to achieving greater balance across the value
chain. The divisions need for growth necessitates a high
level of investment over a longer period. REC Solar will in-
cur the major costs gssociated with creating a platform for
moving forward. While 2006 was a year of low expansion
activity and ramp-up costs, in 2007 there were significant
costs associated with growth in this division -particularly a
sharp rise in staffing costs as new people were hired for
facilities under construction. Because of such costs accu-
muylatag prior to the start of production, margins were
negatively impacted.

Whiie pursuing an aqgressive growth strategy, we also need to

maintain focus on continuous imgrovements in the ongoing
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operations to enhance profitagility. fuiure growth of the
division will target geographic expansion into key markets
-countries with sunny climates and high grid electricity
orices, but we will also look toward inceniive systems for
solar enerqy, especially in the short- to-medium term REC
Solar established sales offices in Barcelona and Munich in
2007 to better serve cur customers in these key Eurcpean
PV markets. In Greece, project development activity has
been initiated based on the attractive incentive system
there.

We witl continue to extend our international presence in the

time to come. To support our activities in the key PV
markets around the world, we continue to add sales and
marketing respurces at our headquarters. As the develop-
ment of the Y market accelerates, we want tc be prepared
to serve new segments and customer groups.

TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENT
REC Sclar has increased its technology development efforts

44

-aiming o reduce costs of sclar energy through the
production of solar cells with higher ceonversion efficiency.
Using production processes which are less costly is an
important part of achieving this.
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INCREASE IN SOLAR
CELL CAPACITY

REC Solar has established @ new technology center with a pilot

line facility at Group headquarters in Qslo. The technology
center will enable more rapid technology development and
provide a more suitable environment for the development
of proprietary technologies.

New and more cost efficient cell technologies, leading to high-

er conversion efficiency and lower production cost per unit,
will be introduced in steps as new capacity is brought on
streamn. The first elements of the new process, which tar-
gets cell efficiency above 16 percent, is being implemented
in the ongoing expansion in Narvik. further elements are
to be implemented in the Singapore expansion. When fully
implemented, more than 18 percent efficiency is anticipated
for sclar cells made from multicrystalline wafers.

As the quality of the wafer is improved, it is important to

further develop solar cell technologies and design that
ensure the solar cell can fully exploit the potential of the
wafer, in terms of solar cell conversien efficiency The value
¢hain integration of the REC Group provides unique insight
into technology development and application across the
value chain, and is a strong basis for alignment of such
activities,
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our products to the market. To achieve this, we are broadening
our custormer base. The REC Solar division had more than
20 customers in 2007, more than a sevenfold increase in the
number ¢f cystomers compared to 2006.

ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT
REC Solar is already one of the fastest growing cel and
module companies in Europe and the company will continue to

MARKET AND CUSTOMER FOCUS
The global outlook for PV cells and modules is strong, driven by the

Sawce maiwtarz LIL Daow

escalation of incentive schemes to promote the use of solar
energy, the continuously increasing competitiveness of solar
energy, and supported by environmental concerns related to the
use of fossil fuels With increased price pressure for solar prod-
ucis likely in the coming years, the issue of PV being on route to
becoming cost competitive with other enengy sources has taken
on even more significance -so measuring and achieving against
targets became even rmore important in 2007, The issue of
dignment with the evolving requirernents of the market is also
mere and more in focus.

REC is investigating what business structures and integration
models make the PV equation work in the downstream market-
place RECis exploring various ways of building robust and profit-
able market channels that can support increasing downstrearn
activities -taking steps toward answering the question of how the
customer interface is best structured.

Qverall, we see 3 generd shift toward a customer-criented PV indus-
try. Accurate knowledge of what custormers want in terms of
product, performance, design and services will be a key success
factor. Going forward, we see that it is vital to develop even closer
relationships with our customers in order to succeed in bringing
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grow at a rapid rate. This is necessary in order to achieve greater
balance in the Group's activities and to ¢laim a pesition as one of
the top ten producers by the end of 2008 Such ambitious
growth, however, must be supported oy fundamenta organiza-
tional strength and a cormmon culture, This will become steadily
more chalenging a task as REC Solar expandsinternationally, but
strong emphasis on training, transition management and corpo-
rate vaues will contribute greatly to the effort.

N line with strategic goals, additional rescurces will be added to the

division’s sales and marketing force. Technical customer support
and product development will also be heavily recruited for. While
recruitment and training have to remain top priorities, retention
is emerging as a mgor focus area in the face of a growing
industry REC Solar rrust not only strive tobe a preferred supplier
to customers, but &so a preferred employer among industry
professionals

The totd number of employees at REC Solar was 456 at the end

of 2007, and by the end of 2008 we expect that figure torise
to 650,

(V2 10 ils

-

1 HH 1T




REC
MANAGEMENT

J_r:ln Andre Lakke
(37}

Senior Vice Fresilent
Iyl Relations

Bachelce of Soence i
Buarezss and Eomnommacs,
Southarrgton Ureeersity
nlzrnationa Masper of
Business Adrranisiratin,
Gasgow Unrersity

Garan Sye
(=)

Fraeiy b Wice Pre ddent
REC i

taster of Busiresss &
Eoncimics infiorma-
oz o Data Systenns),
Moragian Schodd of
banaeTEnt

(

Erik Sauar

(35}

enior Ve Froddent
Tedinalngy & CTO

Doctorate degree in Frymical
herrestry aned Macter of
Scienozin Chemcal
Ercineasrneg, both at
pan Unrszraity of

and Technchzoy
Wastar of Saenczin
Anthropology, Unnezrsity
>f Trondhem

_
zvanaug Berglard
(57)

“ eyt Sion Preident
v zationel Desdupment
S padabe Corarnundeatione

Extengre stucdes i
eaviona coeences, and

'N

dolay Anclersenin

(0)

Feeautive Vo Fre ident
BFLU Lalar & Sragp oo

Macher of Buziness arf
Eonrrucs {Finarizey,
thorweaan ~chogl of
P aTent




Evik Thorsen
(5

Prestdent 5 CLO
EEC Gy

bAzar of Buaness
Ackrarustration, WUz
aty of Karlstad, Sweden

Bizim Brenna
(51

Frocative Yice Fiedident
b CF

dacter of Business
Admrustrabionn
Fconormics, Horweonan
“ichod] of Managerent

Ingeliss Arntsen
(4

Eaercniliae Vi

Froeident BEC Waler

Bazhuzlor of

S i B ononmics,
South Busiesss
Urivizraaty; Dexovark

Eirar Kildle
s

Tawaulioe Wloe President
REC Frufect

basbar of Soancemn

kcharicat Ervarneenng,
Morw=gan Uriearsty of
Sciene ad Technology




FICC Arvass Qapar O0F

48

RESPONSIBILITY

IN FOCUS: ENVIRONMENT AND SAFETY

There is a strong focus on responsible operations throughout the REC Group.
For REC, acting responsibly means actively seeking to minimize any actions
that may negatively impact the environment or any stakenclder groups. It also
means being proactive in implementing best practice measures and seeking
opportunities that benefit society while creating value. Strong emphasis on
environment and safety are of vital importance in securing these objectives.

ENVIRONMENT

The greatest contribution REC can make to a better society is reducing
the cost of solar energy, and particularly reducing the amount of time
it takes for a solar module to produce the amount of energy used for
its production, At the same time, alow-carbon footprint is an essential
god for a campany committed to producing clean energy responsibly

Alserna and Wild-Scholten at Utrecht University and The Energy
Research Centre of the Netherlands {ECN) have over the last years
condycted muitiple studies of the environmental impact of different
solar technologies. They have found that by far the most important
parameters are related tc energy consurnption in general, and
global warming and acidification in particular. By minimizing and
oplimizing energy consumption both these issues are
effectively minimized. Their most recent gathering of production
data from the European industry in 2005 showed that solar
systems today have energy pay-back times typically in therange
between 1.5 and 2 years when placed in Southern Europe. 30 years
ago, it took a solar energy systern 20 years of cperation to regenerate
the energy that wentintoits preduction, so clearly technologica
advances are delivering much-needed improvements.

In 2007, we asked Utrecht University to do a similar anaysis of each
REC production unit, The results show record{ow carbon footprints
compared to any PV technology -and also recordHow energy
pay-back times among crystalline silicon modute manufacturers.
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Figure 1. Life-cycie greenhouse gas emissions par kwh for different tech-
nologies currently being constdered In the work to lower emissions of
qgreenbouse gases. CCGT = Combined Cycle Gas Turblne, (CO2) implles
a power plant with carbon sequesteration and storage, CHP=Combined
Heat and Power, CdTe=PV power made from Cadmium Telluride modules.
Most data Is fcom 2005 production.

The REC results are presented in Figure 1 above, together with the
publicly available data®

REC's low carbon footprint is the result of both more energy efficient
processes than the industry average, but dlso of the high usage of
hydroelectric power at dmost all our manufacturing plants, The data
shows that PV, and REC in particula, already create products that
rmake very strong contributions to the fight against global warming.

‘Wild-Scholfen. M.J. de anc E.A Alsema, Envronmental Life Oycle Inventory of Crystalllne
SlEcon Phofovoltalc Module Production, version 2, status 2005/2006, 2007, ECN, Petten, p.
Extel file, hitp/fwww ecanlfdocs/libraryfreport/2007/eC7026- L Cld ata-cSIPV-pubvz_D s,

SAFETY

At REC, we believe safety is about prevention. We are comrmnitted to
promoting safe working conditions through safety awareness train-
ing and systematic work processes, By targeting the elimination of
atrisk behaviour and strict adherence to industrial hygiene and
monitoring and other measuras, we seek to diminate injuries to
emptoyees. In accordance with this goal, there is strong focus on
occupationa safety and health and process safety in each division.

REC SILICON

The safety performance of REC Silicon in 2007 measuratly
improved comgared to 2006. Due to the significant number of
new hires, the JumpStart operator training program was initi-
ated in order to teach new operator/technicians and fie!d opera-
tors at Moses Lake to perform their duties in a consistently safe
manner. Classroom training was also implemented te support
computer-based training at both facitities. The Process Safety
Mariagement groug was expanded and the Mechanical Integrity
test and inspection groups at each site were allocated additiona
resources.
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The energy pay-back time is an important parameter because an
energy technology with along pay-back time will, in its growth
phase, consume more power than it provides. Furthermore, it is
likety that the energy pay-tack time witl remain more constant
than the carbon footprint when a business expands in new loca-
tions. We are therefore proud to see that the energy pay-back time
for modules made by REC in 2007 is substantialy lower than &l
other crystalline siticon based modutes that we are aware of Figure
2 shows the energy pay-back time for modules made by REC in
2007 compared to some of the other data available.

The main contributors to REC's leading status in this area are the
use of energy efficient sificon, the use of our larger scae, more
enerqgy efficient crystatlization furnaces and the advantage of
thirtner wafers and sawing wire.

FUTURE SAVINGS

The REC 2010 cost roadmap is based on the introduction of several
new technologies that will improve our position even further, The
new FBR techniology will greatly reduce the energy consumption for
silicon manufacturing. The new crystalization furnaces will reduce
power ¢consumption redated toingot manufacturing, and thinner
wafers and wire will contribute further, Increased celt efficiency wilt
also contripute to reduction of energy consumption, emissicns and
carbon footprint per-watt-produced throwghout our value chan. On
the other hand, increased cell efficiency wilt also {ranslate into new
process stegs that will slightly counter these developments.

years
30

287
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mono 14 multi 1320 noeon 11.5% REC 2007

Figure 2. Energy Pay-Back time (In years) of solar systems for the three

main sificon-based PV technologles in 2005 compared to REC 2007, The
solar systems are assumed Installed In Southern Europe, with about 1700
sun bours per yeac.

The introduction of the FBR process alone is estimated to lower
the energy pay back time of REC based power plants from 136 and
104 years Introducing FBR in combination with yet again thinner
wafers and higher celi efficiency, we expect to be able to bring the
PV industry to a new level of environmentd comgetitiveness with
pay back times even below a year.

REC ams to detiver one of the most emvironmentsally competitive
energy technologies in the world in 2010, However, even when
assuming energy payback times of about 1.5 years, power

plants based on REC technclogy can dready grow by more than
65 percent per year and still provide more power to society than is
consurmed for our growth, Assuming we are successfulin maintain-
ing this performance, we will still continue to strive for further
inprovements. It is important to note, however, that with such
good environmental perforrmance, it may be more important that
REC focuses on lowering manufacturing cost so that PV can better
compete against other energy sources. So our target for the future
development of our PV technologies will initially e to maintain
enemgy pay-back times well below 1.5 vears, while focusing on
lowering the cost of PV to make it more competitive with the cost
of traditional energy sources

Figure 3 shows how cur energy pay-tack time is distributed
between the different segrnents in the value ¢hain and the impact
of intreducing silicon from the FBR process. Note that the data for
the systermn and installation costs (BOS - Balance of System) are of
a generic character only.

0o
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Flgure 3: Errergy Pay-Back Time for 3 PV system made by REC with
maodufes using Slemens. or FBR-type feedstock. The different colors
represent the contributions from the silicon, wafer, cell, modue and BOS
share of the total system.

REC WAFER

In accerdance with a firm belief in the Toyota Production System
{TPS), REC Wafer in 2007 continued to regularly monitor and
regori all near misses, incidents, accidents and relevant unsafe
conditionsin order to prevent injuries. To further increase safety
awareness and encourage safe behavior, new information
campaigns and training activities were carried out by designated
Health, Safety and Environmental staff. In close collaboration with
local communities, REC wafer has also made a strong effort to
mitigate all safety nslss related to the maor expansion projects at
all three manufacturing facilities at Glomfiord and Hereya.

REC SOLAR

During 2007, REC Solar focused upon improving the structure
of alt aspects of its Health, Safety & Environment {HES) program.
Safety training, development of an HES management system
and systematic management involvermment was implemented
both at Narvik and Glava, Introduction programs have been
enhancedin accordance with HES plans. REC Solar has adogted
strong risk mitigation measures in cooperation with iocat
authorities '

%
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MATTERS

KEY DATA PER SHARE

INOX n mitkan) 2007 20061
Market capitalization at year~end 136 431 56 335
Number of shares traded 740 n/a
Number of shares at year-end 494.3 494,2
Market price at year-end 276.0 114.00
Highest market price during the year 301.0 118.50
Lowest market price during the year 116.0 77.00
Average price 200.8 94,98
Share price/Total equity per share, at year—end 23.8 5.29

The REC share is listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange under the
ticker code REC. More than 500 investor meetings and a large
number of presentations were held during the year in Norway
and internaticnally. At the end of 2007, REC's total market
capitalization was NOK 136 431 million; more than 20 analysts
worldwide regularly publish research on the company.

RETURN ON INVESTMENT

The REC Group's ambition is to give its sharehotders a high and
stable return on their investment, This should be achieved, first
and foremost, through strong and profitable growih, at teast in
line with the growth of the solar energy market. To support
REC' growth strategy and expansicn plans, the Board believes
retained earnings should be put to profitable use within the
company. Sharehotder value should be generated through
capacity expansions throughout the entire value chain, and
through further productivity improvements.

Accordingly, no distribution of dividends to the company’s
sharenolders is proposed for 2007,

SHAREHCLDER/IR POLICY

REC has a shareholder policy approved by the REC Board of
Directors to ensure the provision of accurate, relevant and
timely information to the capital market.

lnvestors and capital market participants are to be provided
consistent, timely and precise information simuttanecusly As
REC is an international enterprise, with investors across the
globe, all news and press releases are and will be published in
English only.

REC will make quarterly earnings presentations availabte as
webcasts and PowerPoint presentations in real time. (The policy
is available on wwwrectgroup.corm)

SHARE DATA

The share price increased significantly throughout 2007, bringing
the total market capitalization from NOK S6& 335 million at the
beginning of the year, to NOK136 431 miliion at the end of the year.

SHARE PRICE DEYELOPMENT THROUGHOUT 2007
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The share price development during 2007 can be seen above as
well as the performance of the Oslo Stock Exchange (OBX) and
the NEX renewable index.

SHAREHOLDERS

As at Decemnber 31, 2007, the REC Group had slightly more than
10 000 sharehclders, and the total number of cutstanding
shares at the end of the year was 494.3 million, each with a
nominal value of NOK 1,

Share distribution and main shareholders are des¢ribed in the
tables on the next page.

SHARE LIQUIDITY

High turnover in the REC share is important for our investors as
this will reduce the cost of capital, and will further attract major
Norwegian and international investors.
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SHAREHOLDERS SPREAD AS PER BECEMBER 31, 2007

Number of shares from_~ =~ Numberof shareste  ~ _ No.of sharehofders " Mo, of shares ~__Parcent!
1 100 3431 252 101 0.05
101 1 000 5638 2 407 229 0.43
1001 10 000 1032 3 396 606 0.69
10001 10C 000 : 369 S 12888273 2.61
100 001 1 000 000 129 3g2e30sr 193
1 000 001 So T iae 147 AEST 7T T Eh .o

10634 d94314 725 T 100.00

20 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS, RBECEMBER 31, 2007

t.. Shareholder — " " " ""Percant  __~ _  No.ofshares ———Type — _Met]
1 Elkem AS 23.45 115935 300 NOR
2 O-Cells AG 17.1$ gagse 767 - GER
3 Orkls ASA 16,28 80 489 700 Coon T NOR
4 Hafslund Ventura AS 14.24 70411520 NOR
5 State Street Bank and Trust Co, 4.94 24399 083 Nom = UsA
6  Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 1.66 8205875 ‘ USA
7 Sumitomo Corporation 1.04 5 139 000 JPN
8  JPMorganChase Bank 097 4792 700 . GBR
9 Fidelity Funds 0.94 4 646 200 GBR
10 Citibank N.A. 0.74 3 655 590 Nom USA
11 Bank of New York 0.72 3574 365 BLE
12 Clearstream Banking S.A. 0.48 2 384 568 Nom LUX
13 JPMorgan Chase Bank 0.47 2 319 496 Nom GBR
14 State Street Bank and Trust Co, .46 2 296 948 Nom USA
15 Citibank N.A. ©0.42 ‘ 2079941 Nom HKG
16 Vital Forsikring ASA ’ 0.41 ’ 2038 91C ' NOR
17 JPMargan Chase Bank T 038 ' 1799349 Nom GBR
18 " State Street Bank and Trust Co, ¢34 ‘ 771690154 Nom USA
19 Citibank A" 7 T J N o e - R W - - 1-%° 0 ¢ Nom ' USA
20 Investors Bank & trust Compary 0,34 - 1665428 Nom UsSA
In 2007, more than 428 thousand trades were executed from CHANGES IN EQUITY
January 2 to December 28, 2007 In the same pericd, the total During 2007, REC issued 142,843 new shares which at
trading int the REC share was 740.5 million shares. This repre- Decernber 31, 2006 were included as shares paid but not issued.
sents a turnover velocity of 150 percent, calculated as the total These shares were subscribed by REC employees in the USA in

number of shares traded in the period as a percentage of the connection with the initiat public offering (IPC) undertaken in

average total registered number of shares. May 2006, and was issued in 2007 due to formal requirements

During 2007, REC was the fourth most traded share on the Oslo INVESTOR RELATIONS ACTIVITIES

Stock Exchange, measured in turnover by vaive, surpassed only REC puts ernphasis on transparency and equal treatment of

by StatoilHydre, Norsk Hydrg and Tetenor. Measured by numbers sharehoclders, and on informing all investors and analysts with

of trade, REC was the third most traded cormpany on the Oslo the same information at the same time.

Stock Exchange in 2007, after StatcilHydro and Norsk Hydro
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The nvestor Relations section of REC's websiteis animpoertant tedl,
and this section contains up-to-date information on the company's
financial performance and stock market information. In addition,
user can find an updated financial caendar, detailed Cormpany
information and other important data for the financial markets.

In conjunction with the release of its interim financial results,
REC qives a public presentation to investors, analyst and press.
The presentation is web-Casted and it is also possible to
participate by telephone.

During the year REC has participated in various renewable
energy- and PV conferences and held around 500 physical
meetings and severel hundred phone meetings with Norwegian
and international investors. The cities covered by REC during
road shows in 2007 include: Qslo, Stockham, Gothenburg,
Copennagen, London, Paris, Frankfurt, Zurich, Milan, New York,
Bostort, San Francisco, LA, Seattle and San Diego.

At the end of the year, the nurmber of anatysts that regularty
follow REC amounted to more than 20, of which nine are based
in Norway An updated list of analysts following the company
can be found under investor relations at wwwreggroup com

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2008

Dats T Event’
18.01.2008 Capital Markets Day
12.02.2008 Q4 2007
22.04.2008 Q12008
19.05.2008 Annual General Meeting
12.08.2008 Q2 2008
21.10.2008 Q3 2008
February 2009 Q4 2008

REGISTRAR

If you have any questions regarding your holding
of REC shares, piease contact our reqistrar in Norway:

Dydd NOR VES Service
Registrars Dapartment
Stranden 21

Q021 Oslo

Norway

Phone; +47 22 48 3590
Fax: +47 224817

CONTACT
For further information about invasting in REC,
please use the contact information betow:

Jon Sndivs Lekhe

Investor Relatiens Officer
Phone: +47 67 57 44 50
Email: ir@recgroupcom

Higrn R, Bernt<en
Shareholder Services
Phone; +47 67 57 44 50
Email: ir@recgroup.com

hall address

PO Box 594
N-1302 Sandvika
Norway

ifice addresa
Kjsrboveien 29, Sandvika
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RISK

Like all business ventures, Renewable Energy Corporation ASA,
and its subsidiaries are exposed to various economic, general
industry, political and company specific risks. These nsks may
constrain the company’s operations and have an adverse effect
on the {inancial performance

ECONOMIC AND INDUSTRY SPECIFIC RISKS

The future growth of the PV solar power market is dependant
on several factors, which may inflyence demand.

Please refer to the Report from the Board of Directors for an
in-depth review of risks associated with the PV industry and the
rapid technology development.

OPERATIONAL RISKS

Praduction

The production of polysilicon, wafers, solar cells and modules
are highly complex processes REC continuously strives to
improve these processes and expandits manufacturing capacity
but may experience lower than anticipated yields.

The company medules carry a 25-year power output guarantee
and a two 1o five-year workmanship guaréntee, consistent with
industry practice. Due to the long warranty period, REC bears
the risk of extensive warranty claims long after REC has shipped
products and reéognized ravenues Although REC fests its solar
celts and modules thoroughly and has three years of testing
experience, solar cells and modules have not been and cannot
be testedin an environment simulating the 25-year warranty
geriod. As a result REC may be subject to unexpected warranty
expense, which in turn could harm its financial results.

Sales

The Coempany's five largest external custorners accounted for
52 percent of sales in 2007 If cne or more of these customers
were to terminate a contract prematurely, this could have an
adverse effect on REC's operationa; and financial performance.
Since REC is a vertically integrated producer of solar-grade poly-
silicon, PV wafers, cells and modules, a substantial portion of its
products is sold internally to other REC divisions A sustained
interruption in production or substantial financiat difficuttiesin
any of REC's divisions could adversely affect the performance
in cther REC business areas and REC's overall performance.

Project execution

The Company's growth strategy is dependent on its ability to
successfully bring on new production capacity on time and
budget, and on parallel implermentation of inngvative new tech-
nologies With an increasing number of high griority expansion
projects there is arisk of both delays and cost overruns. To
mitigate this risk, REC has established a separate corporate
function focusing entirely on project management, which has
taken on the overall responsibility for planning and execution
of projects in the REC Group.

Knowledge risks

Inteelkctual property protection

REC continuousty seeks to protect important proprietary
intellectual property. This requires employees, consultants and
companies to sign confidentiality agreements. However, steps
taken to protect proprietary intelleciual property may not be
adequate, ang inability to obtain and enforce intellectual
property rights may harm the company’s performance.

REC may from time to tirme face intellectual property infringe-
ment claims which could be time-consuming and costly (o
defend, and which could result in loss of significant rights.

Hiumein macar:es

REC has grown rapidly over the past three years and expects
growth to continue. The development of appropnate internal
organizational structures and management processes to take on
the rapid growth represents a constant challenge and occupies
significant management resources. As REC continues to grow,
the company will need to hire and integrate a large number

of qualified emgloyees, This represents a particular challienge.
The majority of REC's employees in Norway and Sweden are
represented by labor unions under collective bargaining agree-
ments. These agreements typically govern terms and conditions
of employrment and resolution of disputes. Work stoppage asa
result of iabor disputes could have a material negative effect on
REC’s operating and financial performance. The future success
of REC depends heavily on certain executive officers and key
employees. The loss of executives, key employees or other
employees in key positions could have a negative effect. REC
continuously works to reduce the risk of losing key employees

Risk management

The REC Group has developed and implemented effective
management and control systems for early recognition and
assessment of risks, The audit committee will focus on the
various risks that could negatively affect REC and monitor the
management’s ability to plan and mitigate these risks.

Sensitivity anatysis

The following table presents the sensitivity of Revenues and
EBITDA of REC's financial results to hypothetical changesin
prices and exchange rates for 2007.

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
'INOK in rovhon)

4

Revenues __EBITDA

+/= 10% change in price of polysilicon +/-200 +/- B0
+/- 10% change in price of wafers +/~437  +/-1384
+/~ 10% change in price of cell prices +/-75 +/=30
+/~= 10% change in NOK/USD '_+/—_2§0_ +/-130
+/- 10% change in NOK/EUR +/-110 +/-90

Ploase refer to Note 11 for more information on the flnanclal effects on
derivatives from curency changes.
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GOVERNANCE

A sound and transparent Corporate Governance structure
confriputes to vaue creation and improved results, it builds trust and
provides a basis for socidly responsible conduct. Corporate gover-
nance is crucial te REC's development and this policy provides a
structure for setting the objectives of the Company, establishing the
means for attaining these objectives and monitoring the perfor-
mance of the Cormpany.

REC Corporate Governance Principles specifies the distribution of
rights and responsitilities armong different participantsin the corpo-
ration, such as, the board, managers, shareholders and other stake-
holders, and spelis out the nules and procedures for making decisions
on corporate affairs. These grinciples include processes and control
features established to dign managerment and shareholder interests.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPCRT

Corporate governance in REC is based on Norwegian legislation,
primarity the Norwegian Putlic Limited Companies Act, the Oslo
Stock Exchange Regulaticns, the Norwegian Code of Practice for
Corporate Governance as well as other applicabie rules and
recommendations issued by relevant crganizations

In 2006, the Board formalty adopted REC's Corporate Governance
Principles descriging the distribution of rights and responsibilities
among different participants in the corporation, such as, the board,
executive management, sharehoiders and other stakeholders. The
aim of these principles is to further the goal of providing effective
governance of the Cormpany’s business and affairs for the long-term
benefit of the Company's stakehoiders.

In 2007, the Board adopted separate guidelines for handling conflict
of interest in the Board.

REC's Corporate Governance Principles complies with the Norwegian
Code of Practice for Corporate Governance issued by the Norwegian
Corporate Government Board (NCGB), of 2006. In December 2007 a
revised Code of Practice was issued by NCGB REC has initiated the
work for implementation of the revised code in 2008

CORE VALVUES

In 2007, a new set of Core Values was formulated through an
extensive process. The five essential principtes that we identify
ourselves with are:

RESPONSIBILITY
ENTHUSIASM
COMMITMENT
INNOVATION
DRIVE

The vafues imptementation program has been initiated, headed
up oy the Chief Executive Office.

CODE OF CONDUCT
The REC Code of Conduct has been implemented throughout
the organizations All members of the Boards, as well as REC

managament and employees are covered by the Code, and will ag-
here toits principles and policies. The Code of Conduct buikis on our
Core Vaues and Governance Prindges, and provides all our clients
and employees with a clear understanding of what we stand for and
the way we do business.

TRANSPARENCY

REC believes that an objective, sufficient and timely provision of
information to the market is a prerequisite for a fair valuation of
REC's shares and in turn, the generation of value for REC's share-
nolders. This commitrnent will be evenly futfilled irrespective of
whether the informationis positive or negative for the Company.

JOB DISCUSSIONS/ PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Job Discussions was implemented in 2006 as a {00! o ensure
strategy implermentation and employees’ goal orientation. The
program invelves the employee in determining geoals and objec-
tives at individual tevel, and ensures that essentia! preconditions
to achieve the goals are discussed and development activities
are agreed if needed. The Performance Evaluabon process
provides the individual with the support and feedback that will
help them reach their full potential.

GOVERNANCE BODIES

The composition of governing bodies of REC outlines the respon-
sigility for managing the Company. The governing bodies consist
of the General Meeting, the Noermination Committee and the
Board.

GENERAL MEETING
The annuat general meeting (AGM) has supreme authority in all
of REC's affairs. Any shareholder is entitled and encouraged o
attend any general meeting {GM) provided an admission card
has been oblained. The general meeting provides an opportu-
nity for shareholders to address the Board and the executive
management directly.
The GM shall consider the following:
Approve the financial statements and the annual report
inclueding the atlocation of profits or deficits
Determine remuneration to the Board and approve
remuneration to the auditor
Elect non-employee members of the Board and auditor
Elect representatives to the Board’s nomination committee
Other issues that shall be considered by the general meeting
according to law of the articles of association

REC ASA heldits annual general meeting on May 14, 2007. More
than 76 percent of the shares were represented. Minutes and
protocol from the annuat general meeting can be found on
WWW.reCgroup.com

For more information on the annual generat meeting, see
articles of association §9-10. The articles of association can
be found on wwwrecgroup.com.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is composed and elected pursuant
to the Company's articles of association, and shall propose can-
didates relating to the annual generat meeting's election of non-
emgiovee members, as well as suggest remuneration for these
members.

Mermber Edeeg b

Rune Selmar 20.04.06
Stig Grimsgaard Andersen 14.05.07
Marius Grenningseter 20.04.06

More information about REC's Nomination Committee can be
found at wwwrecgroupcom

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REC seeks to continuously adapt the organization to international
and national corporate govemance requirements. The composi-
ticn of the Board and the background and expertise of the indi-
vidual directors witl mirror the challenges REC faces in the years
ahead. When selecting directors, REC's Nomination Committee
seeks to recruit individuas with different and complementing
backgrounds and insighis. The Board periodically evaluates
whether alarger or smaller slate of directors would be preferable.

In the 2007 annual general meeting it was decided tohave
employees’ board representation. REC s Board now consists of
12 directors. Eight of these are elected by the general sharehold-
ers meeting and four are elected by and among employeesin
the Norwegian REC companies The Board has held 8 meetings
in 2007 for information about Board members sharehelding
see note 16 for further information.

wember Elzcted

Cle Enger (Chairman) 08.11.04

Tore Schigtz 14.12.01

Marcel E. Brenninkmeijer 28.05.02

Roar Engeland 16.11.05

Line Geheb 09.05.06

Susanne E. Munch Thore 09.05.086

tnger Johanne Solhaug 14.05.07

Christian Berg 14.05.07

Karen Helene Ulitveit-Moe ‘from 09.05.06 io 14.05.07
Mona Steinsvik 14.05.07

Rolf B. Nilsen 14.05,07

Jorn Mobaek 14.05.07

Rita Glenne from 14.05.07t011.12.07
Unni Kristiansen 11.12.07

Qverview of REC's Board can be found at wwwrecgroupcom

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors incorporates three committees - a
Comgpensation Committee, an Audit Committee, and a Corporate
Governance Comnittee. REC Board of Directors may add new

committees or remove existing committees, as it deems advis-
abte in the fulfillment of its primary responsibilities. Each com-
mittee wili perform its duties as assigned by the Board of Direc-
tors in compliance with Company bytaws and the Commitiee’s
charter.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Compensation Committee stays informed as to market
levels of compensation and, based on evaluations, recommends
compensation levels and systems to the 8oard. Compensation
of the Chief Executive Officer will be proposed by the Compen-
sation Committee and approved by the Board.

The Compensation Committee has held 2 meetings in 2006

Membr Appainted
Qle Enger 14.09.05
Susanne £. Munch Thore from 23.05.06 t0 19.09.07
Inger Johanne Solhaug 19.09.07
Marcel E. Brenninkmeijer 19.09.07
Rolf Nilsen 19.09.07

More information about REC's Compensation Committee can be
found at www.recgroup.com

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is a preparatory body that supgorts the
Board of Direct-ors in futfilling its responsibilities with respect to
REC's financial reperting, auditing and ¢ontrol. The committee is
responsible for making recommendation to the Board and Gen-
eral Assembly with respect to the appointment, compensation,
retention and oversight of the Company's independent auditors
The Audit Committee has held 5 meetings in 2007,

Membar Appotnted
Roar Engeland 15.12.05
Karen Helene Ulltveit-Moe from 23.05.06t0 14.05.07
Christian Berg 20.06.07

More information about REC's Audit Committee can be found at
WWW.TeCgroup.com

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

To further improve the cormpany’s efforts to provide effective
governance, the Board of Directors has implemented a Corpo-
rate Governance Committee. The committee acts as a prepara-
tory and monitoring body and assists the Board in executing its
responsibility on matters of Corporate Governance.

Mermhar Appolnded
Tore Schigtz 23.05.08
Line Geheb 23.05.06
Marcel E. Brenninkmeijer from 23.05.06t0 19.09.07
Susanne E, Munch Thore 19.09.07

More information about REC’s Corporate Governance Commit-
tee can be found at www.recgroup.com
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

HIGHLIGHTS:

(] Continued strong growth
and revenue growth

{1 Continued margin expansion
and strong operational
cash flow

[] Secured major long-term
polysilicon and wafer contracis

(1 Significant strengthening
of the organization

[J Progressing on major
expansion projects in all
business areas

(] Selected site in Singapore for
new large solar power complex

KEY EVENTS IN 2007

The REC Group (REC) continyed to show strong revenue growth
and further strengthened its marke! position in 2007. The photo-
voltaic (PV) solar industry has grown by more than 40 percent
annuatly since the turn of the century, and some industry analysts
indicate a growth rate above 50 percent in 2007 REC kept pace
with theindustry, reporting a revenue increase of 53 percent to
NQOK 6 642 million, and 56 percent revenue growth when using
constant currency ratesin the transtation of subsidiaries.

Whereas general market conditions supported the revenue
growth, expansion projects and improved productivity remaned
the main growth contributors.

Earnings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization
(EBITDA} increased 61 percent to NOK 3172 million in 2007,
and the EBITDA-margin improved by three percentagepoints
tlo 48 percent. EBITDA increased 68 percent on aconstant
currency rate for translation. Earnings before Interest and Taxes
(EBIT) increased 64 percent to NOK 2 588 million in 2007

REC continued to strengthen its platform for profitabie long-
term growth, through increased resear ch and development
activities, further strengthening of the management and the
organization, increased long-term contract coverage, and new
major investments in production facilities which will come on
stream in the years to corne.

OLE
ENGER
(59)

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

Chairman of the Board o!

Directors since May 2007.

Member of the board since
November 2004. Currently

CEC and President of Sapa AB.

Mr. Enger holds 2 masters degree
from the Norwegian University of
Life Sciences and a business degree
from the Norwegian School of
Economics.

CHRISTIAN
BERG
(38)

Member of the Board of Directors
since May 2007, Currently President
and CEO of Haislund. Board
memberships also include Oslo
Pensjonsforsikring AS and AS
Hamang Papirladrik, Mr, Berg holds
an MBA degree from the Norwegian
School of Economics

and Business administraticn.

MARCEL EGMOND
BRENNINKMEIJER
(49)

Member of the Board of Directors
since May 2002, Currently Chairman
and founder of Good Energies.
President and delegate of the
administrative hoard of Good Energies
AG, Member of the supervisory board
of O-Cells AG, and of CSG Solar AD,
M. Breoninkmeijer has a higher
national diplomna in business studies
from Kingston Polytechnic and has
done an executive studies program
at the International Insitute for
Management Devel opment ("TMD™)
in Switzerland and Harvard Business
Sehoolin the United States.

LINE .
GEHEB
(44)

Member of the Board of Directors
since May 2006. Currently
Commercial Adviser, A/S Norske
Shell. Member ol the Board of
Directors of Geheb A/S, Ms. Geheb
holds a Masters degree in Chemical
Engineering from the Norwegian
Institute of Technatogy, Trondheim,
and has attended the Master of
Management Program at the
Norwegian $¢chool of Management.
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INGER JOHANNE
SOLHAUG
(38)

Member of the Board of Directors
since May 2007. Currently Executive
Vice President, Orkla Corporate
Development Marketing & Sales.
Ms. Solhaug holds a degree from
the Norwegian School of Economics
ang Business Administration (NHH).

TORE SCHI®@TZ
(50)

Vice Chairman ¢t the beard since
May 2007. Former Chairman of the
Board cf Directors frem Detember
2001, Currently Group Senior Vice
President in Hatslund ASA and
Managing Director Hafstuna
Venture. Chairman ol the Board ot
Directors of Etis. Member cf the
Board of Direcfors of Cogen, of
Matallkraft, of Fesii, of SolarNor
and of Chapdrive. Mr, Schigfz
helds a Masters of Business
Administration from the Norwegian
School of Management and CEFA
Degree.

ROAR
ENGELAND
(48)

Member of the Board of Directors
since November 2005. Currently
Executive Vice President, Financial
Investments and Corporate develop-
menrt, in Orila ASA. Chairman of the
Board of Orkla Finance and Crkla
Eiendom AS. Mr.Engeland holds a
Masters of Philosophy and a Masters
of Business Administration from
INSEAD, France and is a graduate

of the Norwegian Military Academy.

SUSANNE ELISE
MUNCH THORE
(47

Member of the Board of Directors
sintce May 2006, Currently partner
of Ehe law firm Wikbaorg, Rein & Co,
Oslo. Member of the Board of
Directors of Gjensidige Bank ASA
and of Oslo Areal ASA. Ms, Munch
Thore holds a Candjur (law) degree
from the University of Oslo, 3
Master of Laws from Geargelown
University and a Diploma of
International Affairs from John
Hopking School of Advanced
International Sfudies.

UNNI KRISTIANSEN

ROLF 8.
NILSEN
(42)

Member of the Board of Directors
since May 2007. Employees elected
representative. Member of the Board
of Directors of REC ScanWaler AS,
from 2004 - 2007. Currently
Operator in ScanWaler. Mr Nilsen
has been Local Union leader for
REC Scanwaier Glomfjord since
2004. Mr. Nilsen has 4 degree

from technical college.

a,/’

(34)

Member of tha Board of Directors
since December 2007, Employees
elected representative. Currently

Group Chief Accountant in REC ASA.

Ms. Unni Kristiansen hotds a degree
from Norwegian School of
Economics and Administration
(NHH).

MONA
STENSVIK
(30)

Member of the Board of Directors
since May 2007. Employees elected
representative, Currently Project
Engineer at REC ScanCell.

Ms. Stensvik holds a Masters degree
in Chemical Engineering trom the
University of Trondheim, and has
worked at REC ScanCell since
November 2002.

JORN
MOBAK
(46)

Member of the Board o! Directors
since May 2007, Employees eiected
representative. Currentiy Warehouse
Leader at REC ScanWales Hergya.
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Qverall, REC is progressing well with its technotogy-driven 2010
cost roadmap’, despite a cost overrun related to the new plant for
qQranular polysilicon in Moses Lake.

In addition to the ongoing expansions at existing production sites,
REC plans to establish a maor manufac turing complex comprising
wafers, cells, and modules with a production capacity of up to
1,5GW. A nine months site selection process culminated with the
choice of a suitable location in Singapere in Qctober, 2007. The
initial investrment decision is expected in the first half of 2008,

ACTIVITIES

Group Presentation

REC was established on December 3,1996, and has grown o
become one of the largest playersin the rapidly expanding PV
solar energyindusiry. The Group headquarters were in 2007
moved from Hevik to Sandvika outside Oslo, Norway.

REC's business structure comprises the three business segrments
REC Silicon, REC Wafer, and REC Solar, in addition {o EverQ GmbH
in Germany. REC owns 33.3 percent of EverQ, which is proportion-
ately consolidated on a liney-line Gasis in the Financial State-
ments,

The operational activities are carried out in seven subsidiaries
and onejoint venture: REC Solar Grade Silicon LLC and REC
Advanced Silicon Materials LLC in the USA, REC Scanwafer AS,
REC SiTech AS ang REC ScanCell ASin Norway, REC ScanModule
ABin Sweden, Solar Vision (PTY) Ltd. in South Africa, and the joint
veniure EverQ Gmbh in Germany, REC's invastment in CSG Solar
AG is described under associated companies.

MISSION AND VISION - CLEAN, RENEWABLE

AND COST-EFFICIENT ENERGY

The UN kitengovernmentat Panef on Climate Change, which shared
the 2007 Nobel Peace Prize with Mr. Al Gore, expects that continued
increased dernand for energy will quadruple annua carbon emis-
sions this century, unless active climate policies are quickly imgte-
mented. To meet the continued increasing demand for energy, the
world therefore needs to develop viable alternatives to fossil fuels
and other traditional energy sources. REC believes the solar power
industry witl play a key rofe as a long-term supplier of sustainable en-
ergy, andits vision is to become the world's feading provider of high-
lycompetitive solar energy solutions and thereby increase the use of
¢lean and renewable energy which could reduce the negative envi-
ronmental impact from traditional energy sources.

PV solar energy has a very attractive carbon footprint, compared
with natura gas or fossil fuels -even when including CO2 capturing-
and rmeasures up well also compared to nuclear power and to
other renewables. Energy pay-back time is also declining rapidly,
from almost four years in the Iate 1990s to two years in 2005 and
possibly to less than a year with best available technology in 2010.

While electricity generated from solar power still makes up a

very smdl part of the global electricity supply, the solar industry

is offering increasingly competitive power in the best suited geo~
graphical regions. The number of sun-hours is obviously important,
although interest rates, purchasing power, local avatlability and
price of traditional power are other important factors.

In many regions the development of solar power is also supported
by incentive programs and governmental policies on the use of
renewable energy. REC believes subsidized demand will amount

to approximately 4-5 GWin 2008, and grow to 147 GW by 2012,
As many of theincentive driven markets are non-capped, and new
markets are in the process of being established, these estimates
rnay end up being higher. Given the supply chain capacitiesin the
solar power industry, the market is likely to remain tight in 2008.
However, industry growth is expected to continue at astrong pace
over the next five years, and supply is likely to exceed subsidized
demandin 2012. To clear the market in 2012, REC therefore esti-
rmates that module prices may hgve to be significantly recuced
towards 2012, from an average of approximately EUR 3/Wpin
2007

The sclar industry will ultimately compete with elec tricity prices

in the grid. So~caled grid-parnty has dready been reached without
subsidiesin a very few selected markets, and REC firmly believes
inits potential to reduce the long-term cost position sufficiently to
maintain long-term growth and profitability also in markets without
subsidies. With its ambitious 2010 cost roadmap’, the company has
taken industry ieadership in cost reductions, and REC maintainsits
corporate vision of making REC one of the most cost-efficient
providers of solar energy.

REC is progressing on its cost roadmap, which s designed to
armost halve production costs per watt of a module in the best
plant in 2010 compared to world-class 2005 production. Given
aset of reaistic assumptions with respect to the number of sun-
hours, systerm performance and financing costs, REC is already at
a systern production cost of apgroximately 15 Ecent/&Wh in its best
plants and Photon Consulting estimates that more than 400 TWh
of electricity annually is being sold at prices above this level. The
cost roadmap should bring comparable costs further down by
2010,

The costimprovements are closely linked to the implementation of
new technotogies in the many expansion projects across the value
chain. Many of the cost benefits will be seen through 20092010
when new facilities are running at full capacity, However, we will
dso see a step change towards the end of 2008, when REC Solar
will have new expansions fully up and running.

REC sees scope for further substantial costimproverments also
beyond 2010. To facilitate the technology development needed

1o achieve these further potential cost reductions, REC will consid-
erably increase its R&D resources including investments in the
COMiNg years.

STRATEGY - PROFITABLE GROWTH

The platform for REC's strategic ambitionsis built on an integrated
value chain, reaching from silane and polysilicon production to
meodute systerns deliveries. The integrated approach provides
in-depth industry insights and the opportunity to exploit operationa
synergies and apply consistent manufacturing principles.

REC has grown its activities at a fast pace ever since the establish-
ment of the company, and remains commitied to profitable growth.
REC's secure, long-term, and cost-efficient access to polysilicon is an
impor tant strategic advantage, and has enabled significant expan-
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sion of the wafer, cell, and module production over the past years.
The company will continue to expand within all these areas dso
qoing forward.

REC Siticon is already a major producer of polysilicon for solar power
apglications at two plants in the US, and the position will be strength-
ened with the comptetion of a new 6 500 MT plant for production

of granular polysilicon in 2008 Including the effect of debottte-
necking projects in existing plants and a fourth planned plant, this is
expected to take polysiicon production capacity to acund 19 000 MT
and silane gas production to 29 000 MT by 2010, REC Silicon is
currently in a site selection process for additional plants which could
increase production further beyond 2010.

REC Wafer is a major producer of multicrystalline wafers for solar cell
production, accounting for around 20 percent of the global produe-
tion in 2007 Production increased by 65 percent to more than
S00 MW in 2007, and already approved capacity expansions are
expected to more than triple production toclose to 17 GW by 2010,

REC Solar is the smallest of the main business segments, and dso
holds a relatively low global market share. However, the growth
ambitions are high also in this segment, and approved capacity
expansions are exgected to more than quadrupte solar cefl produc-
tion and triple solar module productionin the relatively near future.

In October 2007, REC cormpteted an extensive site selection
process and chose Singapore as the location for establishing a new
integrated solar manufacturing complex. The complex will be devel~
oped in stages, and incorporate wafer, cell, and module production
facilities

A signed agreerment with the Singaporean government agency,
Economic Development Beard, outlines the operational and com-
mercial conditions related to the development of the site and the
construction of the manufacturing complex.

The initialinvestment decision is expected to take place & soon
as the pre-engineering activities for he first phase have been
completed during the first half of 2008. Tota investrnents will
depend on the final capacity and site development.

TECHNOLOGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The growth in REC is closely connected with a cost-efficient tech-
nology asset base, and the growth strategy will atso entail allocation
ofincreased resources to R&D in the years to come. This will rman-
tain and further strengthen REC's technological position and secure
the know-how and process competencies needed to put new tech-
nologies to work in industrial-scale operations

REC has anincreasing portfolio of patents, granted and pending,
across the value chain. Key patents cover technologies for silane,
fluidized bed reactors and polysilicon deposition, ingot crystalliza-
tion, wafer sawing, washing and singulation, cell process and design,
and module cost savings, These help raise barriers to entry and
strengthen long-term competitive advantages.

REC's total research and development expenditures were

NOK 166 million in 2007, of which NOK 55 million was capitaliized.
This compares to NOK 107 million and NOK 24 million, respectively,
in 2006. In 2008, the REC Group expects toincrease R&D expendi-
tures to rmore than NOK 300 million.

The investment programis also being significantly increased,
with capital expenditures of more than NOK 300 million in three
separate technology centers, of which a new wafer technology
center at Hergya in Norway account for NOK 210 miltion. The
silicon technology center is being set up as a collaboration
between Moses Lake and Butte in the US and Sandvika cutside
Osto, Norway, whereas the cell/module technology center will
be built at the corporate headquartersin Sandvika,
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REC has also allocated significant funds for technological devel-
opment through strategic investments into companies like CSG
Sclar AG. REC will continue to monitor the development of alter-
native promising technclogies and evaluate strateqgic opportuni-
ties.

THE ‘2010 COST ROADMAP* AND BEYOND

REC's '2010 cost readmap’ targets a reduction in the groduction
cost of almost 50 percent from world-class 2005 production to
test plant in 2010, measured per watt of 8 module. The main
elerments in the roadmap are the introduction of fluidized bed
reactor (FBR) technology, improved polysilicon utilization
through thinner wafers and wire, increased ingot quality, and
increased conversion efficiency with new cell and module
tachnologies.

REC sees positive effects of continuous productivity improve-
ments and scale advantages, and the positive effects of thinner
wafers and wire. However, the main effects of the scaling-up of
the cells and medules business will only begin to have positive
cost effect 1ate in 2008 and into 2009, and the positive effects
of the FBR project, improved ingot, snd new cell and madule
technologies, is expected in 2009 and 2010,

Within REC SHlicon, the silicon cost component in the module

is expected to be reduced by 70 percentin the best plant in
2005-2010, hased on a combination of thinner wafers and saw-
ing wire, higher efficiency celis and the new plant for production
of granular polysilicon. The bulk of the reduction is expected to
come from 2009, when the new polysilicon plant becomes fully
operational. At this new plani, the main cost savings relate to
around BO percent reduction in energy consumptionin the
chemical vapor deposition step compared to traditional so-catled
Siemens reactors, but other improvements are also expected.

Excluding polysilicon, the costs of wafer conversion on a per
watt basis is expected to be reduced by more than 50 percentin
the same period, with the biggest improvermnents expected
towards the end of the period and coming from reduced wafer/
wire thickness and higher cell efficiency. In cell production, costs
are expected to be reduced by more than 30 percent from world
class levels in 2005 and a'most halved compared to REC's own
costs base in 2010, with the biggest cost improvements ¢coming
late in 2008 In module production, the cost target is a reduc-
tion of 40 percent from 2005 to 2010 compared to wortd~class
production. The bulk of the cost reduction is expected to
become visible towards the end of 2008, and then in 2010 as
rmore highly efficient proguction capacity is coming on-stream.
Looking bevond 2010, REC will continue to focus development
resources on scalable, low-cost technologies across all business
segments {o enable further potential cost savings

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pursuant to Section 3-3a of the Norweqgian Accounting Act, the
Directors confirm that the Financial Statements have been
prepared under the assumption that the enterprise is a going
concern and that this assurmption was redlistic at the date of the
accounts.

REC reports its consolidated financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IF RS), as adopted
oy the European Union and the Nerwegian Accounting Act The
financid statements for the parent cormpany, REC ASA, have been
prepared in accordance with Norwegian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (NGAAR),

For more information, please refer {o the Financial Staterments and
note disclosures.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

{NOK miflion} 2007 2006
Revenues 6642 4334
EBITDA 3172 1985
EBITDA - margin 48% 45%
EBIT 26588 1574
EBIT - margin 3% 36%
Net financial items e -B10 -830
Profit/loss before tax 1977 744
Income tax expense/benefit -644  -286
Profit/loss for the year 1333 458
Earnings per share, basic and diluted, in NOK 2.70 1.03

REC achieved revenues of NOK 6 642 million in 2007, an increase of
53 percent compared to the 2006 revenues of NOK 4 334 million.
The EBITDA of NOK 3 172 million was an increase of 6] percent from
NOK 1965 million the previous year, and the EBITDATnarginin-
creased by three percentagepoints to 48 percent. When using
constant currency rates for the translation of subsidiaries, revenue
increased by 56 percent and EBIT DA by 68 percent from 2006 to
2007, .

Although supported by the consolidation of EverQ and higher
prices for palysilicon and wafers, the revenue increase was primar-
ily a result of organic capacity expansion, in particutar in REC Wafer.
The capacity expansion projects entailed expansion costs of
NOK153 millien in 2007, up frorm NOK 139 million in 20086, and
REC's growth plans will continue to increase expansion costs in
2008. EBIT increased by 64 percent to NOK 2 588 million in 2007,
up from NGK 1 574 million in 2006.

Net financial costs were NOK 610 million in 2007, compared to
NOK 830 milliortin 2006. For 2007, this included a negative

effect of NOK 642 mitlion related to embedged derivatives related
to certan wafer sales contracts denominated in USD. This non-
cash loss will be reversed in the income statement over the
contract periods. in the previous year, net financial costs included
NOK 796 million in ¢changes in fair vaue/fforeign exchange effect of
convertible loans. Besides the above, ne! financial items were posi-
tively affected by increased interest income and decreased interest
expenses, primarily due to the refinancing of REC in the first half of
2006 and the capita increase in connection with the IPQ in May
2006, Net currency losses increased compared to 2006, primarily
related o USD financid assets held by REC ASA, and these losses
were partially offset by gains on other derivative instruments with
the purpose of ecenomic hedge. REC's share of foss of the associ-
ated company CSG Sofar AG was NOK 45 million in 2007,
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compared to NOK 18 million in 2006. The loss in 2007 included an
impairment loss.

The reported profit before tax was thus NOK 1977 million in 2007,
compared o NOK 744 million in 2006, whereas the net profit
after taxes increased to NOK 1333 million from NOK 458 million in
the previous year. Reported earnings per share was NOK 270 on
both a basic and diluted basis, compared to NOK 1.03 in 2006.

CASH FLOW AND LIQUIDITY

The net cash flow from cperating activities mere than doubled

to NOK 3 055 million in 2007, up frorm NOK 1 379 million in 2006,
Theincrease reflects the positive development in the operations as
well as net interest income. Cash flow is not affected by unrealized
losses on derivatives and currency effects on financid instruments

Net cash flow from invesiment activities was NOK -4 453 millionin
2007, which cormpares to NOK -1 634 rnillion reperted for the prewvi-
ous year. The main investment activities retate to cash payments
for capital expenditure, including prepayments. The cash payments
for capital expenditure in 2007 primarily related to expansion
and debottlenecking projects in REC Silicen (NOK 2.3 billion),
REC Wafer (NOK 1.2 billion), REC Solar (NOK 0.5 billion), and
EverQ (NOK 0.2 bitlion).

Net cash flow from financing activities was NOK 254 millionin
2007, reflecting funding of EverQ’s expansion by banks and the
owners and parts of a prepayrment from EverQ to REC Silicon,
partially offset by installments made by REC ASA In 2006, the
net cash flow from financing was NOK 7 022 million, as a result
of a complete refinancing of the Group and a NOK 6 8 bilikon
share issue in connection with the IPOIn May 2006.

Cash and cash equivaents was NOK 5795 million at the end
of 2007, which was a8 decrease of NOK 1481 million from

NOK 7 276 million at the end of 2006, Foreign currency effects
on cash and cash equivalents were NOK -337 million in 2007
compared to NOK -6 million in 2006.

Exctuding restricted bank accounts and prepayments from
EverQ to REC Silicon, the net cash position was NOK 3.0 billion
on December 31, 2007. In addition, the REC Group hiad avaiable
cormnmitted credit facilities of NOK 39 billion.

Capitd expenditure relating to approved projectsis expected to
ameount to NOX 7 billion in 2008 The net cash pesition, committed
credit lines and cash flow from operating activities are expected

to provide amgple funding for the approved capacity expansions.
The Board hence considers the iquidity position satisfactory at
December 31, 2007,

REC plans for further significant expansion projects, including the
solar manufac turing complex in Singapore. Board approvals of the
panned expansion projects willimply that REC also will have to
further strengthen its capita base.

BALANCE SHEET

The tota assets were NOK 17 945 million at the end of 2007, which
was an increase of NOK 3165 million during the year Close to
NOK 3 billion of the increase is explained by property, plant and

equiprment. Total non<current assets increased by NOK 4.5 billion
to NOK 10.4 biflion at the end of 2007.

Net working ¢apital decreased by NOK 830 mitlion to a negative of
MOK 140 million, excluding derivatives and cash and cash equivatents
The decrease was primarily due to higher anounts of current income
taxes payshle and payables and accruals for capital expenditure

Equity increased by NOK 1121 million to NQK 11 757 million during
the year, primarily reflecting the profit for the period and partially
offset by currency translation differences

Totalinterest bearing ligbilities amounted to NOK 3.1 illion at the
end of 2007, including prepayments from EverQ of NOK O3 bilhon,
cornpared to NOK 2.6 billkon at the end of 2006. The increase
primarily reflecis increased borrowings in EverQ, prepayments
from tverQ and {inancial lease in REC Solar, partidly offset by
instairments in REC ASA and cumrency effects As mentioned above,
the REC Group is in a net cash position of NOK 3.0 billion, excluding
restricted bank accounts and pregayments from EverQ,

SEGMENT ANALYSIS

REC Silican

REC Silicen produces polysilicon and silane gas for the photo-
voltalc industry and the electronics industry at two facliities

in Moses Lake, Washington anc Butte, Montana in the USA.
REC Silicon employs more than 600 people. A third plant under
construction is expected to come into production in 2008, and,
Iincluding also a teurth expansion project under planning,

REC Silicon’s capacity for polysificon producticn is expected

to tripte trom 2007 to 2010.

REC SILICON - KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES

(NOK midlion) 2007 2006
Revenues 2496 2127
EBITDA 1347 1063
“EBITDA - margin 5a%  SO%

REC Silicon’s operations comprise REC Solar Grade Silicon LLC {(SGS)
in Moses Lake, Washington and REC Advanced Silicon Materials LLC
(ASiMI)in Butte, Montana. Revenue from the cperation was

NOK 2 456 million in 2007, which was an increase of 17 percent from
NCK 2127 miftion in 2006. Measured in USD the revenue increase
was 27 percent. :

The organic increase was primarily explained by higher production
of both silane gas and polysilicon. Measured in NOK, the polysilicon
price increase in local currency was partly counterbalanced by a
weakening USD.

Qverall production of polysilicon amounted to 5 780 MT in 2007,
which was an increase of 4 percent from 2006. The production

fell below the initial 2007 target of 6 000 MT, due to power cutages
which negatively affected production at both the Moses Lake and
Butte plants in Segternber and Ocicber,
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In excess of two-thirds of REC Silicon's polysilicon sales volumes were
dedcated to REC Wafer in 2007 Shipments of polysilicon were high-
er than the production dso in 2007, reflecting a further drawdown
on inventories and increased defiveries of secondary material which
attracted high prices in the spot market.

Production and deliveries of silane gas continued to increase in 2007,
and REC Silicon further strengthened its dominating position in the
growing merchant market for silane gas.

REC Silicon's EBITDA was NOK 1347 rnillion i 2007, which was
anincrease of 27 percent from NOK 1 063 million in 2006. The
EBITDA-margin improved by four percentage-points to 54 percent.
The above mentioned power outagesin Septernber and October
affected EBITDA negatively by approximately NOK 50 million,

The EBITDA included expansion costs of NOK 69 miflion in 2007,
up frorm NOK 55 rilion in 2006. The adjusted EBITDA-margin
thus increased by four percentage-points to 57 percent, and
REC Silicon confirmed its position as an indusiry cost leader.

The expansion costs mainly refate to early hiring, and REC Silicon
overal added more than 140 employees during 2007, In 2008,
total expansion costs are expected to amount o approximately
NOK 200 rmillion.

The polysilicon production target for 2008 is 7 000 MT, after
downward revisions due to delays in the construction of the new
plant for production of granular polysilicon in Moses Lake.
Commercid production is now expected to start late fourth
quarter 2008 The overall capital expenditure for the new plant
has been revised to USD 800 millicn, and the cost-overrun and
delay is described in more cetail under “Subsequent Events”.

In order to maximize cutput from the existing Siemens-hased
production facitities in 2008, a ptanned de-bottenecking project
has been postponed, In the revised schedule, the project will
coincide with other planned reactor modifications and is expected
to be on-stream towards the end of 2009,

Further ahead, REC Silicon targets production capacity levels of
abeut 19 Q00 MT of pelysiticon and 29 Q00 MT of silane gas by
2010 A site selection process 1s ongoing for the possible construc-
tion of further capacity which would provide for further production
growth from 2012 and beyond,

REC Silicon has entered into contracts covering the entire expected
production volume in 2008, and expects average selling prices for
polysilicen to be more or less unchanged from 2007 to 2008,
Earlyin 2007 the company entered into along-term agreement
with SUMCQ TECHX IV Corp. for sugply of potysilicon worth

NQOK 4.8 billion over a seven year period. The contract combined
renegotiated terms for existing supply contracts and an extension
of duration and volumes

REC Wafer

REC Water employs more than 650 people and produces
mono- and mutticrystaliine ingots and walers tor the solar
cell indusiry at two sites In Glomfjord and at Heraya in
Norway. Approved capacity expansions are expected to
more than triple production to close to 1.7 GW by 2010,

* REC WAFER - KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES

(NDK mithon) 2007 2006
Revenues 4360 2455
EBTDA 1813 8265
IF.-BI‘T DA . margm 42% 34%

REC Wafer reported revenues of NCQK 4 360 million in 2007, which
was anincrease of 78 percent from NQOK 2 455 million in 2006.
The strong revenue growth continues to be driven by increased
production, although anincrease in average wafer prices of
pproximately 10 percent also contributed positively.

REC Wafer reconfirmed its position as the leader in production of
wafers for solar applications. Measured in megawatt (MW), overall
production increased by 65 percent to 506 MW, of which

92 percent were multicrystalline wafers. The production target

of 500 MW for the year was thus exceeded,

The production of multicrystalline wafers increased 70 percent to
468 MW, driven by gradually increasing production at the second
production line at Hergya through the year The production of
rmonocrystalline ingots in Glomfjord increased 23 percent to

38 MWin 2007,

REC Wafer EBITDA amounted to NOK 1813 million for 2007,

which was 3120 percent increase from NOK 825 millicn in 2006,
The EBITDA-margin increased by eight percentage-points to

42 percent, reflecting continued strong operational efficiency

and cost discipline. The EBITDA included expansion costs of

NOK 9 million in 2007, compared to NOK 65 million in the previous
year. On an adjusted basis, the EBITDA-margin thus increasad by
six percentage-poinis (o 42 percent.

REC Wafer will continue to increase production. The planning and
phasing-n of new production capacity is expected to entail expan-
ston costs of NOK 200 million in 2008, and ternporarily put pres-
sure on the EBITDA-margin.

During 2008 production increases are primanty expected to come
from the initial rarmpup phase of a new wafer plant at Hergya,

The production target for 2008 is 630 MW, which represents a

24 percent increase from 2007 The anticipated higher use of
secondary material in 2008 is aso expected tolead to higher
processing costs REC Wafer targets production of close to17 GW
y 2010, of which close to 1.4 GW will be multicrystaline wafers, and
dready entered contracts cover approximately 73 percent of the
total estimated production voiume through 2010.

The planned new capacity expansions in Singapore, which still are
pending approval, will open further growth opportunities by 2012,
REC wafer has contract coverage for the entire expected produc-
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tion volume in 2008, at sefing prices which on average are approx-
imately three percent below the 2007 prices, in accordance with
terms in long-term contracts and reduction in wafer thickness.

During 20Q7, REC Wafer signed three major long-terms supply con-
tracts with leading customers in Holland, Belgium and Ingia. In sum,
these contracts cover defiveries of gradually increasing volurmes in
2008-2015, and the overali contract value is estimated at around
NCOK 14 billion.

REC Sofar

REC Solar employs more than 450 people and produces solar
cells in Narvik, Norway and sclar medules in Glava, Sweden.
Approved capacity expansions are expected to quadruple solar
cell production and triple solar medule production by 2010,
and the planned Singapore-project is expected to significantly
increase the capacity for cells and modules towards 2012

REC SOLAR - KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES

(NOK rrethon) 2007 2006
Revenues 1116 873
EBITDA 171 195
EBITDA - margin LM ek

REC Solar achieved ravenue of NOX 116 million in 2007, which
was anincrease of 28 percent from NOK 873 million in 2006,
The growth was driven by increased production volumes due to
increased capacity

For 2007, solar celi production increased by 24 percent to 46 MW,
whereas module production increased by 27 percent to 42 MW,
The annual production voiumes were slightly below the target due
to & slower than expected ramp-up of new capacity towards the
end of the year. Asin 2006, almest all of the cell production was
sold internaily. Average selling prices for medules dechned by
approximately five percent from the previous year, which was in
line with expectations

REC Solar EBITDA dedined by 12 percent to NOK 171 million in 2007,
compared to NOK 195 millien in 2006, and the EBITDA -margin
dedined by seven percentagepaints to15 percent. Costs were
negatively affected by higher wafer prices, and alsc higher expansion
costs compared to the previous year, £xpansion costs Increased to
NOK 52 million from NOK 19 million in the previous year. Adjusted for
this, the EBITDA increased slightly in 2007, although the adpssted
EBITOA-margin declined by five percentage-points to 20 percent.
REC Solar expects tomore than triple the groduction of solar cells to
145 MW in 2008, of which approximately 50 MW will come from the
existing preduction lines and the remainder from twa new produc-
tion lines in Narvik. The first of theseis currently in rarmp-up, and the
second is expected to start production in the second quarter of
2008. The medule production is expected to increase by approxi-
mately 150 percent to 105 MW, of which 45 MW will corme from exist-
ing ines and the remainder from expansion projects encompassing
new productionlines as well as an upgrade of the existing lines

Cell production is expected to exceed module production in 2008,
and approximately 20 MW of solar cells will likely be converted to
moduies in toli-manufacturing agreements.

The significantly increased production growth in 2008-will entail
higher costs related to expansion and ramp-up. In combination
with ongoing greparations for future production growth, this wili
continue to negatively impact the EBITDA-margin. The average
margin is expected to be lower during the ramp-up phase in the
first quarters of the year, despite that the bulk of the expected
expansion costs of NOK 50 million will be incurred later in the
year. Already agproved expansion plans are expected to estab-
lish production levels of 225 MW of sclar cells and 150 MW of
modules by 2010. The planned rew capacity expansions in
Singapore, which still are pending Board approval, will increase
cell production capacity further and altow REC Sclar to become
a top0 global player also in this segment.

n order to increase its presence in key solar markets, REC Solar
has opened sales officesin Barcelona, Spain and Munich, Germany.
A sales office will shortly be opened in Milan, Italy,

EverQ

EverQ produges solar modules in Thalheim, Germany, based

on Evergreen’s string-ribbon technology. The company employs
approximately 1000 people, and is owned 33.3 percent each
by REC, Evergreen and Q-Cells, In October 2007, the three
partners signed a binding Memorandum of Understanding to
prepare tor an PO of EverQ.

EVERQ - KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES

(NOK i o) 2007 2006
Revenues 371 10
EBITDA 57 3
EBITDA - margin 15% 354

REC in 2007 recognized NOK 371 million in revenue and EBITDA

of NOX 57 million, with a corresponding EBITDA-Margin of

15 percent. REC has proportionately consolidated 33.3 percent of
EverQ's financial statements line-yine from December 19, 2006,
from which time REC, Q-Cells and Evergreen Sclar have been equal
partnersin EverQ. Due to the short consolidation peried in 2006,
recognized revenue amounted to only NOK 10 millicn and EBITDA
to NOK 3 million in 2006,

EverQ commenced commercial shipmentis of sclar medules in
2006, and the main focus in 2007 was the ramping-up of EverQ2
which more than trigies production capacity 10 100 MW. The ramgp-
up of the wafer plant was completed towards the end of 2007, and
is ongoing in the cell and modie plants. Total module production
was 50 MW in 2007, and is expected to increase to approximately
90 MW in 2008

The partners in 2007 also approved an investment plan of

EUR 144 million for construction of EverQ3 during 2008, which wili
further increase the capacity to 180 MW. REC also offered EverQ

a polysilicon supply agreement which will enable further capacity
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increases to 600 MW. The agreement runs untll 2015, and covers
approximately 4 000 MT in total with annual volumes peaking at
slightly more than 700 MT. EverQ has to confinm its acceptance
of the offered polysilicon supply agreement by the end of Aprit,
2008 If accepted, total polysilicon volumes supplied by REC to
EverQ under the existing and new agreements could potentidly
reach 2 200 MT per year.

REC, Evergreen, and O-Cells in October, 2007, signed a binding
Memorandum of Understanding delailing the required steps to
prepare EverQ for an IPO. Pregarations are gngoing, and the time
schedule for the IPO will be announced at alater stage

REC ASA

REC ASA preparesits Financial Statements according to NGAAR.
The activities in the parent company REC ASA cormprise corporate
functions, research and development, business development,
project management, and in-house treasury and banking activities.

These activities continued to be scaled up during 2007, and the
EBITDAYoss for the parent company increased to NOK 123 million
from NOK B0 millicn in the previous year. Due to the increased
activity and complexity of the REC Group, costs are expected to
continue toincrease alsoin 2008. Expansion costs related to the
major Singapore-projects is estimated at NOK 50 million in 2008.

Prefit before tax increased to NOK 501 million from NOK 495 million
in 2006 Increased group contnbution from subsidiaries, interest
on the net cash holding, and gains on derivatives were offset by
increased operating costs as explained above, currency [osses on

financial assets, and imparment of the investment in CSG Solar AG.

After atax charge of 28 percent, the profit for the year was

NO¥K 340 million, compared to NOK 356 million in 2006, Tota
equity for the parent company amounted to NOK 9 849 million at
Decemper 31, 2007 The increase of NOK 343 millicn during the
year primarily reflects the profit for the year,

At December 31, 2007 REC ASA's interest-bearing liahilities
amounted to NOK 1559 millien, compared to NOK 1 877 million
at the end of the previous year. REC ASA was net cash positive at
year-end,

Total assets increased to NOK 11693 mitlion from NOK 11510 million
at the end of 2006, primarity reftecting investments in the period.

ALLOCATION OF PROFITS

As described above, the parent company REC ASA had a net profit
for the year of NOK 340 million, cormpared with NOK 356 million

in 2006. The Board proposes that the net profit is transferred to
other equity, Following this, the parent cormpany had a distributable
equity of NOK 1087 million at December 31, 2007, up from

NOK 744 miillion at the end of the previous year.

Due to the growth strategy and corresponding extensive invest-
ment requirements, the Board believes the funds may best be
put to use within the company, and thus does not propose any
dividends to be paid to the Shareholders for 2007

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

REC on January 18, 2008, hosted a Capital Markets Dayin Qslo,
with more than 250 investors and analysts attending. The three
main focus areas were cost reductions, profitable growth, and
organizationd development. REC alsc offered its views on market
drivers and long-term markat growth, the progress on ongoing
and planned expansion projects, an update on technology develop-
ments and the cost roadmap, and a segment-ty-segment business
update

On February 6, 2008, REC announced cost overruns and delays
related to the construction of a plant for production of silane gas
and granular polysilicon. The cost estimate for the engineering,
procurernent and construction of the plant in Moses Lake,

- Washingion, was increased by close to 20 percent to close to

USD 80O million. The best estimate for the mechanica completion
of the plant was postponed by approximately two months, and
cormmercial production is now scheduted to start fate fourth
quarter 2008

REC started the project in 2005, and an investment decision for a
plant with a design capacity of 6 500 MT of granular polysilicon
and 9 000 MT of silane gas was approved in May, 2006, REC has
throughout 2007 added resources o avoid negative consequences
of anincreasingly pressured giobal engineering, procurernrent and
construction market but has not been able te fully mitigate the
negative impact.

Delays in equipment deliveries have been the prime contributor to
the expected costincrease and project schedule extension. The
delays impact both detalted engineering and construction, and
additronal costs have been included to mitigate the potentid effects
of further delays in comaletion. Both REC and Fluor have strength-
ened their project management, and Fluor's project management
function has been rearganized.

REC Sificon's project organization now counts some 50 people,
and a project office has been established in Houston, Texas, to
execute future REC Silicon projects.

RISK FACTORS

The globa market for PV solar systems has shown strong growth
ever since the establishment of REC in 1996. Reports from market
andysts indicate that the growth picked up further speedin 2007,
and REC shares the predorminant analyst view that growth will
continue at stronglevels alse in the coming years However, the
actual growth rate will depend on a number of factors affecting
supply and demand.

Besides strong sunshine, REC believes the most impoertant factors
driving demand for solar power in the different regions are sotar
power incentive structures, low interest rates and strong purch as-
ing power, and high energy/power prices.

The growth of solar power has traditicnally been supported by a
range of different incentive programs in major markets such as
Germany, Span, California and Japan Qver the past few years,
incentive schernes like feed-in tanffs and tax credits have been
adopted in more regions, most notably in Europe and in the US.
Many countries have also implernented legislative environmentat
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targets which are expected to further support the demand for
renewable energy sources,

REC velieves government initiatives will continue to support solar
power investrments, and estirmates that subsidized demand may
increase from 4-5 GW in 2008 to 147 GW in 2012. Political and
economical developments may potentially affect the incentive
schemes negatively. In the US, the federal tax credit was not
extended in 2007, and the upcoming election may slow the prog-
ress through Congress in 2008 However, new incentive schemes
are being implemented in several states and cities. In Germany,
proposals are in place to accelerate the decline rate for feed-in
tariffs frorm 2009, and similar proposals may be forthcomingin
other European nations. Other mgor markets are less dependent
on incentives, although reduced political support may potentially
negatively affect demang also in these regions

REC primarily addresses this risk through ongoing cost reduciion
programs, which @&m to enable the company to competein as
many regions as possible also without the support of subsidies.
Demand for PV solar power has heen further supported by a comr
tination of hedthy economic growth and low interest rates for sev-
eral years in 2007, economic growth has declined in many regions
and credit risk prermiums have increased. However, interest rates
have declined in several major markets, most notably in the US

The effective interest is of high importance to buyers of grid-con-
nected PV solar systerms; as depreciation and interest are the most
prominent cost items ypeon the investment. REC estimates that an
increase of one percentage-peoint in long-term residential interest
rates generates an increased required price for solar power of close
to 3 EUR cents per KWh at current market prices for solar systems.
REC ongoing cost program should work to reduce this risk factor, as
the cost reductions will significantly reduce the pay-back time for
PV-systerns.

High power prices have intensified the focus on dternative power
sources, and future dermand for PV solar power will ocbviously be
dependent on future power prices. Energy prices remained at high
tevels through 2007, and aif prices - as an example - have increased
further to record levels around USD 100 per barrelin 2008
Although many energy analysts expect high energy prices also
geing forward, a potential drog in power prices may negatively
affect demand for solar power in the future

The growth of the PV sclar market also depends on supply-side
factors. Access to solar grade polysilicon has been tight for some
years and this situation is likely to continue alsoin 2008 REC
strives to balance its production capabilities through the value
chain, and its captive production of polysilicon has offered protec-
tion and will to a large degree continue to shield the company from
this risk factor going forward. However, the announced twe-month
delayin the completion of the new plant for granular polysilicon
highlighted the problemy as the delay will also have effect on
production capabilities for wafers

The sotar power indusiry has been and will continue to be subject
to rapid technologica change, frequent improvernents, new prod-
ucts and services, and ever-changing custormer requirements
Competitors may launch new products and services earlier or

at more competitive prices, or secure exclusive rights to new tech-

nologies. REC firmly believes it holds a solid pesition from which to
meet competition. To fortify and expand its technoiogica funda-
ment, the comgany wilt allocate significantly higher resources to
R&D going forward. However, REC has in 2006 and 2007 made a
number of major investmeni decisions, which will involve develop-
ment of a number of new technologies which have not been fully
tested in real-scale high-volume production. As exernplified by the
announced cost-overrun on the new plant for production of granu-
lar potysilicon, the construction and ramp-up of new manufacturing
facilities involving new technologies could aso cost more than
expected. To further mitigate such risks, REC has strengthened its
project management resources considerably to align schedules for
different expansion projectsin a timely and cost-efficient manner,

CURRENCY RISK

REC cperates internationally and is exposed (o currency risk,
primarily to fluctuationsin US Doliar (USD), EURQ (EUR) and
Norwegian Krone (NOK), arising from commercia transactionsin
currencies other than the entity's functional currency, recognized
assets and liabilities, and net investments in foreign operations.
When presenting the Financial Statements in NOK, the amounts
are affected by the NOK exchange rates when converting the
Financial Staterments of foreign entities from their functional
currencies to NOK.

In Decemnber 2007, REC revised its finance policy. This revised
finance policy more clearly defines the objectives of the policy,

the financial risk profite of REC and the responsibilities under the
finance policy. In addition, it has been extended to include additional
topics, such as countergarty risk, liquidity management, capita
structure, corperate funding and commodity risk. RECS revised
finance policy is to cover between 80 percent and 105 percent

of expected future cash flows in foreign currencies on a ralling

12 month basis. Tne policy defines coverage of the net currency
exposure for a 48 month period, with gradually declining coverage.

Regarding currency risk, REC should pnmarily focus on achieving
stability and predictability in operating cash flows, preserving the
carrving value of net investments, and giving predictability of highty
probable (normally Board approved) future payments for invest-
ments in foreign currencies.

REC seeks toreduce the risks associated with the net

currency exposure primarily by use of various financial instry-
ments, such as forward contracts and currency options. See also
note 31 for further information about currency risk and coverage,

INTEREST RATE RISK

Apart from indirect effects of interest rates on revenue and
operating cash flow, as described above, REC's interestrate risk pri-
rmarily relates to short-term liquidity and interest-bearing financial
assets, and interest-hearing long-term borrowings Interest hedging
instruments may be used to control and minimize the company's
interest cost within the framework defined in the finance policy
Qver time, REC believes that its interest cost will be minimized by a
floating interest rate. Interest rate hedqing is only to be entered into
when REC is in a net-debt position. See note 31for further informa-
tion about interest rate risk and coverage
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CREDIT RISK

All new customers are ¢recit checked before entering into long-
term contracts. Given the transparency of the industry, the current-
Iy relatively smali number of end~cusiomers and the strong prod-
uct demand, the credit risk is generdly perceived to be low. Over
the course of its history, REC has had only minor losses on its
receivables.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Prudent liquidity risk managerment implies maintaining sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and securing availability of additional
funding through committed credit facitities.

The cash raised through the IPC of REC in May 2006, has been
investedin a number of different monetary market funds, in the
Group cash pool system and other bank deposits, which allows
for flexibility if the company should want to act on investment
opportunities Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying busi-
nesses, REC also mainiains committed credit lines in order to
maximize its financial flexibility.

To be able to execute expansions beyond what is already
approved, additional funding may be required. The cost and
availability will partially depend on market conditions at the
different peints in time. Capital structure and funding will be
apart of major expansion decisions.

ORGANIZATION

At the beginning of 2007, and to reflect expanded strategic
focus on cells, modules and systerns, the REC Solar divisions
overall organizational and management structure was changed.
To head up the extended REC Solar division, EVP REC Wafer
John Andersen, Jr. was appeinted EVP REC Solar & Group CQOQ,
Ingelise Arntsen started in the middle of 2007 and replaced

Mr. Andersen as the new EVP heading up the REC Wafer division.

with the increasing number of high priority expansion projects,
REC has established a separate corporate function entirely
focusing on project management and with the overall Fesponsi-
bility for planning and execution of projects in the REC Group. To
head this new function, Einar Kilde was hired as EVP Projects at
REC ASA in the beginning of October 2007, Strengthening of the
REC project organization through developing REC competence,
capacity and best practices will secure project development and
execution across the divisions.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT

Aiming to e an industrydeader, health, safety and environmen-
tal care is a top priority. Several programs are in glace to
promote a safety-oriented culture and safe practicesin all parts
of REC, as well as to ensure process safety and mechanical in-
tegrity. As in 2006, REC experienced noloss of lives in 2007.

The overall reported number of injuries in REC was 31in 2007,
which is substantiatly lower than the 54 injuries reported in
2006, Reportedinjuries are defined as an injury that requires
medical attention beyond first aid. The majority of these
occurred in the US operations in REC Silicen, All injuries have
been documented and measures adopted to avoid recurrence.
There were no reports of significant damage to property or

equipment in 2007 In REC ASA there were no reportable
injuries in 2007.

In general, the working environment in REC is satisfactory.
Absence on sick leave was 4.5 percent in 2007, which was an
increase from 2.8 percent in the previous year. In REC ASA the
absence on sick leave was 0.5 percent in 2007 REC aims to
keep sick leave at iow levels by continuously improving the
working and safety conditions,

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER

REC and all its subsidiaries are commitied to equat empioyment
opporiunity in all their emptoyment practices. All employees and
applicants will be provided equa! employment opportunities
without regard to age race, color, creed, sex, sexual orientation,
national crigin, religion, maritat status, disatility, or any other
protected status REC requires that all employees cooperate fully
to ensure the fulfillment of this commitment in all actions and
decisions, including hiring, promotions, upgrades, iransfers,
layoffs, training, education, pay, benefits, and social and recre-
ational programs. Selection of personnel for hiring and prome-
tion is based on such factors as education, experience, proven
skills, initiative, dependability, cooperation, availability, and
growth potential, .

Employees are encouraged to recommend for promotion these
individuals whose past performance demonstrates an ability to
assume greater responsidility. Such recommendations are in
no way allowed to be influenced by an individual's race, sex,

or other protecied factors.

Fernale employees made up 20 percent of the total number
of employees. In REC ASA, 30 percent of the employees were
fernale. Out of a tetal nine executives on the REC Group man-
agement level, the company had two fermnale executives at the
end of 2007 This means female representation constitutes
22 percent on the executive level,

At the end of the year, five out of twelve members of the Board
of Directors were female,

All emgloyees in REC are required to conduct business in align-
ment with values establishedin the company's Code of Conduct.

ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS

"REC continuously works on assuring the quality of the opers-

tions in all its subsidiaries The Group's vision to become the
worid's leading provider of highly-competitive solar energy soiu-
tions, and thereby reduce the negative environmental impact
from traditional energy sources, underlines the Group's empha-
sis on the significance of the environment.

REC will continue its efforts to reduce the consumption of non-
renewable inputs throughout the different business areas in the
Group, both directly in the production process and indirectty

in administrative and supporting functions, and continue to
reduce energy consumption and other emissions to the environ-
ment. Energy is animportant input factor in REC's value chain,
inparticular in the production of polysilicon. REC continuously

strives at reducing the energy consumption as this will also be
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an imgortant contribution to the total unit cost of production
The next significant contribution to reducing energy consump-
tion in polysilicon preduction will come through implementation
of fluidized bed reactor (FBR) technology for production of
granular pelysilicon in REC Silicon's new ptant in Moses Lake,
Washington, which will allow for radically reduced energy con-
sumption cormpared with traditional technologies.

Wwith regards to ermissions to air and water, REC conducts its
operations in accordance with permits granted by local and
national authorities, and all the Group's plants have obtained
all necessary permits.

REC ASA does not contarminate the external eavironment.

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

REC puts emphasis on transparency and equa! treatment of
shareholders £ach share holds one voting right at the General
Assembly and there are no limitations fo trading of shares. The
General Assembly will be open for all shareholders and any
shareholder not attending the General Assermbly will be given
the oppoartunity to vote by proxy.

During 2007, more than 740 mittion shares have been traded
on the stock exchange, corresponding to approximately

150 percent of the iotal number of shares outstanding Per
December 31, 2007 the company had mere than 10 600 share-
holders, REC employs a full-time Investor Relations function,
which wili attend to any sharehoider matters. REC will proactive-
ly seek to provide investors and analysts all details to enable
them to assess REC's true financial sttuation as well as risks and
opportunities facing the company. REC will subrmit by web casts
all interim presentations, and host an annual capital markets day
to enhance investors’ and analysts’ interest and knowladge in
the industry and the company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors seeks to provide effective governance

of business and affairs to ensure long-term benefits of the
company's stakeholders, Approved and implemented Corpcorate
Governance principles are built on a set of rules and procedures,
which, along with the charters and key practices of the Board
Committees, provide the framework for the governance in REC,
The Board will annually review the Corporate Governance pelicy,

The Beard appoints from among its own members the members
of the three board committees, the corporate governance com-
mittee, the compensation committee and the audit committee,
In addition a nomination committee has been elected, indepen-
dent of the Board and the Company's execulive management.
REC complies fully with the Norwegian Recommendation for
Corporate Governance. The Board has a yearly evaluation of
their work.

For information about compensation pdlicy, please see note 16.

OUTLOOK

The globat market for photovoltaic (PV) solar cells continued to
grow strongly in 2007, Average annual growth has been more
than 40 percent over the past ten years, and the pace is picking

up Inits Quartertly Photovoltaic Industry Update in February,
2008, Navigant Consulting estimates anindustry growth rate of
56 percent in 2007, despite continued shortage of solar grade
polysilicon. Tota modute shipments were estimated at 3.1 GW,
with customers in Europe accounting for approximately

70 percent. According to Navigant Consulting, Europe for the
first time overtook Japan also as the main supplier, with defiver-
ies of more than 1 GW.

Although the risks with regards to factors such as economic
growth, interest rates, energy price deveiopments, and sotar
power incentive structures should be duly noted, REC shares the
view of most industry analysts that growth is set to continue at a
healthy rate also going forward. Subsidized demand is expected
toincrease by an average 25-40 percent annually from 2008 (o
2012, and in that timeframe further cost reductions should also
enable the industry to compete profitably without suasidies in
saverat large geographical markets.

REC kept pace with the strong industry growih also in 2007, and
Major expansion programs are ongoing in &)l business areas o
secure growth also going forward, The approved expansion
rogram will greatly expand the silane gas production and triple
the polysiticon production from 2007 to 2010 The wafer capacity is
expected to more than triple in the same period, whereas the
cell capacity is set for a more than a fourfold increase and mod-
Jle capacities for more than a trigling. Capital expenditure relat-
ing to approved projects is expected to amount to.approximate-
ly NOK 8 tillion in 2008 REC has also cormmenced pre-
engineering of a solar power complex in Singapore, which will
enable continued strong production growth for wafers, cells and
modutes beyond 2010, and is also in a site-selection process for
further capacity increases for sitane gas and golysilicon, The
investment decision for the Singapore-groject and the
announcernent of a new silicon site are both expected during
the first half of 2008.

In 2008, the company expects an increase in polysilicon produc-
tion in excess of 20 percent to7 000 MT and flat bolysilicon
prices inlocal currency. Wafer production is expected to
increase to 24 percent to 630 MW, with prices expected to
decline Dy an average three percent from 2007 to 2008. Cell
production is expected to more than triple to 145 MW, whereas
meodule production is expected to increase by more than

150 percent to 105 MW in 2008. In the first half of 2008, average
module prices are expected to decline by approximately five
percent from the first half 2007, and further price declines could
be expected in the second haif of the year.

REC also expects continued growth in production and revenue
in EverQ, which has an increasingly significant effect on REC's
financial statements. As tverQ EBITDA-margin is lower than the
REC Group average, this is expected to adversely affect the
Group's average EBITDA-margin.

For the {ull year 2008, total REC revenue is expected 1o increase
by approximately 25 percent compared to 2007, The expansion
projects will entail increased costs for 2008. Defined as costs
incurred prior to start-p and commercial production from new
plants, total expansion costs have been estimated at
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NQK 500 million in 2008, compared to NOK 153 miltion in 2007,
Approximately NOK 200 million relate to REC Silicon, approxi-

rnately NOK 200 million to REC Wafer, and approximately

NOK 50 million to REC Solar. REC ASA is also expected to incur
expansicn costs of NOK 50 myllion in 2008, related o the

Singapore project,

Due io investments in new technology centers and ongoing cevel-
opment programs, R&D expenses are set toincrease going forward.
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In 2008, R&D expenses are expected to more than double to
NOK 300 million from NOK 11 millionin 2007.

REC’s cost reducion activites will bring new, lower cost capacity on
stream when new plants are fully ramped ug. However, the effect

of such improverments will be limited in 2008, & new plants come
into produc tion towards the end of the year. Existing production

Sandvika, March 28, 2008

Board of Directors

P

A
; .
.-';:",_- Naow oy e

Marcel Egmond Breﬁninkmeijer
Member of the Board

‘
.

Susanne Elise Munch Thore
Member of the Board

P2
e

A
GAT g

Rolf B. Nilsen
Member of the Board

won gk
v Jorn Mobask
Member of the Board

will be subject o generd costinflation in 2008, in particular with
respect to power prices and other consumables

- A
s o

oS

Tore Schigtz
Vice Chairman of the Board

et b

Line Geheb
Mernber of the Board

CL

Christian Barg
Mermber of the Board

LQ"N'\/ 'm\_’
Unni Kristiansen
Member of the Board

é‘.é}%ﬁ&k/
Erik Thorsen
President and CEQ

0214



| FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTENTS

PAGE
70 Consolidated balance sheet
72 Consolidated income statement
73 Consolidated statement of recognized incomne and expense
74 Consolidated statement of cash flows
75 Index of the financial statement notes
76 Notes to the consolidated finacial statements

PAGE
124 Balarice sheet (NCAAP)

126 Income statement (NGAAP)

127 Statement of cash flows (NGAAP)

128 Index of the financial statement notes
129 Notes to the financial statemants




REC GROUP

[ e
IAT DECEWEER 31 IYOK IN THOUSAND) NOTES ALY 2006
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill 7 799 456 792 284
Other intangible assets 7 256359 | 254950
Intangible assets 7 L EEIBee | 1047234
t.and and buildings 6 1336940 1005228
Machinery and equipment [ 3 151 642 -2 886853
Other tangible assets 6 ! 112 685 130933
Assets under construction 6 3038626 ...820787
equipme y 6 A 4643801
...... i ; |
! 08 654 - 0
] y !
Investments in associates { 8 8548 52658
Investments in shares 10 1237 1126
Other non-current receivables ] 180 184 10 425
Restricted bank accounts” 14 | 340774 141991
Financiat assets . .. i w0t g 206200
Deferred tax assets 18 230758 274
iotal non-current assets . L 5893977
Current assets . |
Inventories 13 | 655 165 508 455
Trade and other receivables 12 1019802 995 188
Current tax assets | ¢} 53 323
Derivatives 11 | G2 218 42 052
Restricted bank accounts 14 20671 ' 0
Cash and cash equivalents' 14 b T494 897 7275548
Total current assets 3 R s 50 - 8880566
Total assets ! 7 G, YA 14 780 543

[

* Non-urrent restricted bank accounts at December 31, 2006 have been reclassitied from current cash and cash equivalents.

70 -
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REC GROUP

(AT DECEMBER 31 (NOK IN THOUSAND) NOTES T 2006
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 15 494315 494 326
Share premium and other paid in capital 15 8548841 8549744
-in.capital 15 PSR 9044 070
Other equity and retained earnings 15 1 380097 1134117
Profitsloss for the period 15 1333459 458 330
Other equity and retained earnings T 1592 447
Minority Interests 15 346 0
Total Equity 15 BN 10636517 -
Non-current liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations 19 116 200 103231
Deferred tax liabitities 18 310320 233714
Non-current financial liabiities, interest bearing 17 2312593 2 498 417
Non-current prepayments, interest bearing 17 326 554 0
Provisions and other non-interest bearing liabilties : 20 116871 201989
Total non-current liabilities 5 R e 3037351
Current liabllities
Trade payables and other iabilities 20 1334985 659 962
Current tax liabilities 480 413 152 854
Derivatives il 706 363 148041
Current financial liabilities, interest bhearing. 17 483 979 145818
Total current liabilities o ey 1106675
!
Total liabitities G 4144026
Total equity and liabilities S i | 14 780 543
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT.

REC GROUP

'YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 (NOK IN THOUSAND) NOTES R 2008 2008 |
Revenues .. 6,642 043 ..3334072 ....2433016
Cost of materials L .1310700 -806 643 620903
Changes in inventor ies ! 38 180 | 66 892 4477
Employee benefit expenses 23 -1 033 432 ! -667 950 -409 854
Other operating expenses 22 -1.163819 | 961 778 597 455
EBITDA Foilake 1964593 v 830181
Depreciation 6 -481 997 -333 877 -201 353
Amortization 7 91 725 -44 481 -13 648
Impair ment 6 -10 859 -11807 -13733
EBIT L gtak, 1574 428 601 447
Share of loss of associates 8,24 45 465 -18 330 -7 052
Financial income 24 31463% 164 173 6261
Financial expenses 24 -63 563 -148 500 -145 572
Net currency gains/losses 24 -345 737 -50232 68036
Net gains/losses derivatives 24 470218 18640 0
Fair value & foreign exchange effect on conver tibie lgans 24 o -796 219 -493 037
Net financial items D e -830 468 571364
!
Profit before tax | 4 YYE P P 743960 30083
! !
Income tax expense 18 -643 994 | 285630 -26.160
i ARE 25 4581330 3923
Attributable to: {
Minority interests { -106 0 0
£quity holders of REC ASA 1333 459 | 458 330 3923
E£arnings per share for profit attributable to the ‘r ;
equity holders of REC ASA (in NOK per share) \
- basic 25 2.70 1.03 0.01
- diluted 25 2.10 1.03 0.01

Lo . R, R, - LN .

EBITDA is earnings before net financal items, income taxes, depreciation, amartization and impairment.
EBIT is earnings before net financial items and income taxes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF RECOGNIZED INCOME AND EXPENSE
REC GROUP

e — e o - e e e e s mm o & mme e mh e A e e v s = ——

CASH CHANGE IN |

| TRANSLATION now ACCOUNTING  PROFIT/ ‘
{YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 (NOK IN THOUSAND} DIFFERENCES TAX  PENSION HEDGE ACGUISITION _ PRINCIPLE LOSS TOTAL i
Year 2006
At January 1, 2006 31823 23421 . -34364 0 134117 -49918 2166 102913
Currency translation differences -40 236 540 0 0 0 0 0 -39696
Actuarial gain/loss on defined
benefit pension schernes 0 406 9 807 0 0 0 0 10213
Effect of EverQ acquisition 0 o] 0 o 76817 0 0 76817
Cash fiew hedges -
- valuation gain~losses taken to equity Q0 47363 0 -169177 0 0 0 -121814
- transferred to profit/loss for the period’ Q_-13445 Q 48019 0 0 o] 34574
Total income and expense .
i ctly in_equity . 16817 Q 0. -399%6
..... 0 0..458330 458330
76817 0...458330 418424
210934 -49918 4956184 521337

@413 58285 24557 1211588 210934 49918 456164 521337

-3316%2 33089 0 0 0 0 0 -2986563
Actuarial gain/loss on defined
benefit pension schemes 0 480 8617 0 0 ¢ 0 -8137
Effect of EverQ acquisition 0 0 o} 0 23322 0 .0 23322
Cash flow hedges
- valuation gain/losses taken to equity 0 -30139 0 107 569 0 0 0 77430
=.transferred to profit/loss for the period 0 2.492 0 8900 B 0 0 5.408
Total income and expense
23322 0 0212235
Q 01333353 1333353
331852 5922 g 23322 0.1333353..1120997
At December 31,2007 -340065 64207 33174 22489 234206  -49918 1789517 1642334
Total change attributabte to: .
Equity holders of REC ASA 331643 5922 8617 98669 23322 01333459 1121112
Minority interest ) -9 0 0 0 0 0 -106 -115
{Tftal change in the period -331 652 5922 8617 98669 23322 0 1333353 1120997 |
"Cash flow hedge - transferred to profit/less for the peried affected the following ling items in the income statement .
[a9OK 1N T HOUS AND) 007 2006)
Revenues 340987 | -37 563
Cost of materjals 26087 | . +10 456
Total PN -48 019
4
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS

REC GROUP

e e e e et e e o = e e -
!

[YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 (HOK IM THOUSAND) NOTES P 00 2008 2005
Cash tlows from cperating activitles

Profit/loss before tax 1977347 743 960 30083
Income taxes paid -365 020 -182 667 0
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 584 581 380 165 228734
Associated companies 45 463 18330 7052
Fair valuesforeign exchange effect on convertible loan o 796 219 493 037
Changes in trade receivable and prepayments from customers -130 187 -631813 -4Q7 507
Changes in inventories -172 798 -140 335 -1 854
Changes in trade payable and prepaid expenses 115421 152911 299 164
Changes in derivatives | 606 124 128 743 -22 947
Currency effects not operating activities ! 369 342 i 67 647 -68 000
Qther items ! 24841 -64 303 1775
Net cash flow from operating activities i A i 1378857 .. 56550987
Cash flows from Investing actlvities ! |

Cash payments for shares (incl. associates) : +3 309 | -15 690 -114 510
Proceeds from finance receivables and restricted cash } 17251 25703 0
Payments finance receivables and restricted cash | -185 400 o] 0
Proceads from sale of property, plant and

eqguipment and infangible assets 2360 35672 1905
Payments for property, plant and eguipment

and intangible assets -4 301 B5C -1 540613 -445 027
Proceeds from investment grants 45825 6126 18 593
Cash payments on purchase of subsidiaries !

and joint ventures, net of cash purchased * 9,30, -28 369 -144 923 -1888335
Net cash flow from investing activities ! Beast ud | -1633725 2427374
Cash tlows from financing activities :

Proceeds from issuance of shares, nat of relatec costs : o 6777671 34000
Repayment of equity i 916 0 0
Proceeds from issuance of convertible bond ‘ 0 0 913080
Repayment of borrewings ! -343 400 -52 284 -906 301
Proceeds from borrowings L 598 735 296907 21635433
Net cash flow from financing activities ; e m o 1022294 1976212
Effect on cash and cash equivalents of changes |

in foreign exchange rates i 336991 -5840 10 697
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents : -1 480651 6761586 115522
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1° 7275548 513962 398 440
Cash and cash eguivalents at December 31° ; P oo WY 7 275548 513 96?_]

L - - P o —— - ——— e e e - - - — R . e e e e . - ——— —— ———
* Restricted bank accounts of USD 22,7 million have tor 2005 and 2006 been reclassitied from cash and cash equivalents to cash payments on purchase of

subsidiaries and joint verfures, net of cash purchased in 2005,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REC GROUP

(1. GENERAL INFORMATION

b d

Renewable Energy Corporatian ASA (the Company) and its
subsidiaries (together the REC Group} have a significant presence
in the international solar energy industry. The areas of operation
are principally the devefopment and sale of products related to
the photovoltaic (PV}industry. The Compary is a limited company

incarporated and domiciled in Norway. The address of its registered
office is Kjarboveien 29, Sandvika.

These consalidated financal staternents have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on March 28, 2008,

[2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting palicies applied in the preparation of

these consolidated finandal statements are set out befow. These
policies have been consistently applied to alf years presented, unfess
otherwise stated.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The financial statements are presented in NGK, rounded to the
nedrest thousand unless ctherwise stated. As a result of rounding
adustments, the figures in cre or more rows or cofumns included

in the finandal statements may not add up to the total of that rew
or column, The consclidated financial statements of the REC Group
have been prepared in accordange with international Financial
Reparting Standards (iFRS) as adopted by the EU and the Norwegian
Accounting Act. The consalidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modfied by the
revaluation of derivative instruments at fair value. The preparation
of financial staterments in confarmity with IFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates, It also requires managerment
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the REC

Group's accaunting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated finandal statements are disclosed
in note 4.

2.2 CONSOLIDATION

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the REC Group has the power
to govern the financisl and operating policies, generafly requiring

a shareholding of more than ane half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights or aptions that are
currently exertisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the REC Group contrals another entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consalidated frem the date on which cantrol is transferred to
the REC Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases,

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the REC Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity
instrurments issued and fiabilities incurred or assumed at the date
of exchange, pius costs directly atfributable to the acquisition,
Identifiable assets acquired and liabifities and contingent liabiliies
assumed in 3 business combination are measured initially at their
fair vafues at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any
minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair
value of REC Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill (see nate 27). If the cost of acquisition is
fess than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognized directly in the income statement. Step
acquisitions: both an increase in ownership of a jointly controfled
entity that becomes a subsidiary and anincrease in cwnershipin

a subsidiary company are accounted for in accordance with the
requirernents aof IFRS 3 Business Combinations with goodwill being
recognized at each step of the acquisition when applicable.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains on
transactions between group companies are efiminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of animpairment of the asset transferred.

(b) Jointly controlled entities

The REC Group's interests in jointly controffed entities are accounted
far by proportionate consofidation. Accordingly, the REC Group
combines its share of the jointly contralled entities’ individual
incame and expenses, assets and fiabilities and cash flows an a
line-by-line tasis with similar items in the REC Group's financial
statements. Unrealized gains on transactions between the REC
Group and its jointly controffed entities are eliminated to the
extent of REC Group's interest in the entities. Unreahzed [osses

are also efiminated unless the transaction proviges evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred Anincrease in ownership of a
shareholding that becomnes a jointly centroffed entity is accounted
for in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 3 Business
Comhinations with goodwill being recognized at each step of the
acquisition when applicable (see note 27).

(¢} Associates

Associates are entities aver which the REC Group has significant
influence but not cantrol ar joint controf, generally encompassing a
shareholding of between 20 percent and 50 percent of the voting
rights. Investments in assaciates are accounted for by the equity
method of accounting and are initiafly recognized at cost (see note
27). The REC Group's share of ils associates' post-investment profits
or losses is recognized in the incorne statement. The cumulabve
past-investment movements are adjusted against the carrying
armount of the investment. When the REC Group's share of (osses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, induding
any other unsecured receivables, the REC Group does net recognize
further [asses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate. Unrealized gains on transactions between
the REC Group and its associates are efiminated to the extent of

the REC Group's interest in the associates. Unrealized [osses are

alsa efiminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. :

2.3 SEGMENT REPORTING

A business segment is a distinguishable cornponent of the REC Group
thatis engaged in provicing products that are subject to risks and
returns that are different frorn those cf other business segments;
this also carresponds to the internal management reporting in the
REC Group. A geographical segrent breakdown is based on the REC
Group's major markels and site locations (see note S).

‘ 2.4 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

{a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial staterments of each of the REC
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
ecanamic environment in which the entity aperates (“the functicnal
currency”). The consclidated financial staterments are presented
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in NOK which is the parent company's functional and presentation
currency.

(b} Transactions and balances

Fareign currency fransactions are transiated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and tiabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the balance sheet date exchange rates.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resufting from the settlement or
the translation of menetary assets and liabilities are recognizedin
the incorme statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying
cash flow hedges, qualifying net investment hedges or as a partaf a
netinvestment.

(c) Group companies

The resufts and financial position of all the REC Group entities that
have a functienal currency different frorm the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as fallows:

(i} Assets and (iabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate;

(i} Income and expenses for each incorne statement are translated
at average exchange rates; and

(i} All resutting exchange differences fram translation are
recognized as 4 separate cempanent of equity.

On consolidatian, exchange differences arising from the transfation
of the net investment in foreign entities, including manetary items
that are regarded as a part of the netinvestment, and of borrowings
and ather currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are included in shareholders' equity. When a foreign
operation is sofd, suth exchange differences are recognized in the
income statement as part of the gain or foss on sale, The REC Group
didnot at December 31, 2007 or 2006 held any borrowings or other
currency instruments accounted for as net investments hedges.

2.5 CURRENT/NON-CURRENT

An assetffiability is classified as current whenitis expected/due to
te realized or settfed within fwelve months after the bafance sheet
date. All derivabives that are not designated and effeclive as hedging
insiruments are accounted for as *held for trading” and classified

as current assets/liabitities. Further, derivatives that hedge purchase
and sale of goods are classified as current assets/liabifities.

2.6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

l.and and buildings primarily cansist of aperating pfants and offices.
All property, plant and eguipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciaticn and unreversed impairment (osses.
Histarical cost includes expenditures that are directly atiributable to
the acquisition, construction or installation of the iterns, Subsequent
casts areincluded in the assel's carrying amount or recognized as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is prebable that future
economic benefits assaciated with the itern will flow to the REC
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
costs are charged to the incame statement during the financial
periodin which they are incurred. Borrowing costs incurred for

the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalized during the
period of time thatis required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use. Land is not depreciated. Depredation on other
assets is calcufated using the straight-fine method, to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives. The assels’ residual values,
if any, depreciation method and usefut lives are reviewed at least
annually and related depreciation rates are adjusted prospectively.
Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for heir
intended use.

2.7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair vatue of the REC Group's share of the net identifiable assets
af the acquired subsidiary/associate/jointly controlled entity at the
date of acquisition. Goodwill related to assaciates is included in the
carrying value of investments in associates. Goadwill is carried at
cost less accumulated irmnpairment [ossas.

(b) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that have a definite useful life are carried
at historical cost less accumulated amortization and unreversed
impairment losses. Amortization is calculated using the straightline
method to allocate the cost of other intangible assets over their
estimated useful lives, Amortization commences when the assels
are ready for their intended use. The REC Greup has no intangible
assets with indefinite lives other than goodwill. The assels' residual
values, if any, amertization method and useful lives are reviewed
at least annually and related amartization rates are adjusted
prospeclively.

{c) Research and development

Research expenditures are recognized as an expense asincurred.
Costs incurred on development projects (refating to the design,
canstruction and testing of a chasen alternative for new or
improved materials, devices, praducts, processes or systems) are
capitalized as intangible assets when itis probable that the project
will be success ful considering its commercial and technofogical
feasibility, and costs can be measured refiably. Other devefoprnent
expenditures are recognized as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognized as an expense are not
recognized as an asset in subsequent periods. Development costs
with a finite useful life that have been capitalized are amortized
from the time the assets are ready for their intended use, which
normally is at commencernent of the commercial use.

2.8 IMPAIRMENT AND DERECOGNITION OF NON-FINANCIAL
ASSETS AND CASH GENERATING UNITS

Goodwill and other intangible assels that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested al feast
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation
or amortization are reviewed far impairment whanaver events or

. changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may

not be recoverable. An impairment (ass is recognized in a separate
line itern as a part of earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT}in
the income statement for the amaount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recaverable amount. The recoverable amount

is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sefl and value in
use, For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped

at the lowest [evels for which there are separately idenbfiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Goodwill is allecated to individual

or groups of cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment
testing. Currently, each of thase individual or groups of cash-
generating units represents the REC Graup's investment determined
by each aperating ¢company except for REC Silicon where gaodwill

is allocated to the primary reparting segment. Assets ather than
goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for passible reversal
of the impairrent at each reporting date.

Losses on derecognition include assels that are disposed of

and assets with no foreseeable future econamic benefits. Gains
and [osses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount and are reported as a part of EBIT. When
applicable, gains and losses on the dispasal of an entity incfude the
carrying amount of gocdwill refating ta the disposed entity. Losses
due to assets assessed as having no future econamic benefits are
reported as animpairment [oss.
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2.9FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The REC Group classifies its financeal assets in the follawing
categories: held for {rading (derivatives, except for derivatives

that are designated and effeciive as hedgingirstruments), (oans
and receivables, available-for-sale finandal assets and hedging
instruments. Financial tiabifities are held for trading (derivatives,
except for derivatives that are designated and effective as hedging
instruments), hedging instruments or recognized at amortized cost.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the financiat
assets and liabififies were acquired/incurred. Management determines
the dassification of its financial assets and liabilities af initial
recognitron and re-evaluates this designation when appropriate.

Financial assets andfiabilities held for trading comprises primarily
derivatives that are not designated and effective as hedging
instruments, includng the ineffective portion of a qualifying hedging
instrument.

Loans and receivables are nan-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.

Available-for-sale financial assets are primarily shares owned less
than 20 percent At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the REC Group had
insigrificant available-for-sale financial assets.

Financial assets and liabilities are inifially recognized at fair value

plus fransaction costs except for derivatives. Financial assets

are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from

the investments have expired or the REC Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership Available for-sale
financial assets and financial assets held for trading are subsequently
carreed at fair value, unfess fair vafue camnot be reliably measured

in which case they are measured at cost Loans énd receivables are
carried at amortized cost which far current iterms approximates
historical cost.

Gains or [osses ansing from changes in the fair value of financial
assets and liabilities held for trading are included in the income
staterment as part of financial items,

2.10 ACCOUNTING FOR DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The REC Graup uses derivative financial instruments to hedge a
portion of its risks associated with interest rate and foreign currency
fluctuations. Derivatives are inifially recognized at fair value on

the date a derivative contractis entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets
when the fair value is positive and as fiabilities when the fair value

is negative, asfong as the REC Group has no intention and ability

to settle the contracts net The method of recognizing the resulting
qain or [oss depends on whether the derivative is designated and
qualifies as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the itern
being hedged. Derivatives are categorized as held for trading uniess
they are designated and qualify as hedging instruments.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or ather
non-financial host contracts are treated as separate derivatives
when their risk and characteristics are not closely related to those
of the host contract and the host contractis not carried at fair vahse
with gains or [osses reportedin profit or loss. Currently, for the REC
Group thisis relevant for currency derivatives embedded in corrmitted
sales contracts in which the currency in the contract is not the functional
currency of one of the parties to the contract. The embedded
currency derivative is separated based an the forward currency
rates at the date of the contract and the host contract is treatec as

a sales contractin the relevant REC entity's functional currency

Beginning in 2006, the REC Group designated certain derivative
financial instruments to hedge a portion of its risks associated with
foreign currency fluctuations related to highly probable fulure
purchase or sales transactions and applied hedge accounting.

At the inception of a hedge refaticnship, the REC Group formally
designates and documentis the hedge relationship to which the REC
Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk managernent
objective and the strategy for undertaking the hedge, The
docurnentation includes igentification ef the hedging instrurment,
the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being
hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging instrument’s
effectiveness in offselting the exposure to change in the hedged
iterm's fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk Such
hedges are expected (o be highly efiective in achieving offsetting
changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed ¢n an ongoing
basis ta determine that they actualfy have been highly effective
thraughaut the financial reperting pericds far which they were
designated.

Al year-end 2007 and 2006, the REC Group only applied cash

flow hedges to hedge highly probable transactions such as the
purchase and sale of goods in a foreign currency. In 2007, EverQ
applied hedge accounting for some interest rate swaps. A cash flow
hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variabifity in cash flows that is
attributable to a particular risk associated with & recagnized asset
or ligbility or a highly probable forecasted transaction that could
affect profit or loss, The effective partion of the gain or loss on

the hedging instrument is recognized directly in equity, while the
ineffective portion is recognized in profit or foss. Amounts taken to
equity are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction
affects profit or foss, such as when a forecasted safe or purchase
occurs. Where the hedged itern is the cost of a non-financial asset
or liability, the amounts taken to equity are transferred to the initial
carrying amount of the non-financial asset or fiability.

If the forecasted transaction is no fonger expected to cecur,
amounts previausiy recognized in equity are transferred to profit

or [oss. If the hedging instrument expires or is sald, terminated or
exercised without replacement or roflover, or if its designation as 2
hedge is revoked, amounts previously recognized in equity remain
in equity until the forecasted transaction occurs. If the related
transaction is not expected to octur, the amount is taken to profit or
foss. .

2.11 INVENTORIES .
Inventories are stated at the lower of cast or net reglizable value.
Cost for inventory with different nature or use is determined using
the first-in, first-out (FIFQ) or average cost method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labor, cther direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). Net realizable value is the
estimated seiling price in the ardinary course of business, ess
appficable variable sefling expenses. The REC Group is integrated
in the vafue chain, and REC entities sell goods to ather REC
entities. Consequently, finished goods for one REC antity became
raw materials ar work in progress for another REC entity. The
classification by the separate entities is alsa used in the classification
in REC's consalidated financial statements.

2.12 TRADE RECE IVABLES

Trade receivables are recognized initiaily at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost, fess provisions for
irmpairment. A pravision fer impairment of frade receivablesis
recognized in the income statement and is established when there
is objective evidence that the REC Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the originat terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probabifity that-the
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debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and default
ar delinguency in payments, are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired.

2.13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and demand
deposits at banks and money market funds. Bank accounts that
according to agreements cannai be used within fwelve months are
classified as non-current restricted bank accounts. They are not
included as a part of cash and cash equivalentsin the cash flow
staternent. They are classified as current restricted bank accounts
when the restriction is expected to be mare than three months but
(ess than twelve months.

2.14 SHARE CAPITAL
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are
shown in eguity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.15 BORROWINGS

Borrawings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsecuently stated at amortized
cost Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemptlian value is recognized in the income
statement aver the period the borrowings are outstanding using
the effective interest method. The REC group had two convertible
bonds that were denominated in a foreign currency Folfowing IFRIC
guidance (IFRIC Update April 2065}, a fareign currency conver tible
bond is not a compeound financial instrument and is cfassified
wholly as a liability in the financial statements. Following 1AS 39
Financial Instrurnents, by definition, fareign currency denaminated
convertible debt contains an embedded derivative in relation to
the cenversicn optian, and must be remeasured to market at each
reparting date with the change in fair value recagnized to profit or
{oss. All of the bonds were converted to equity dunng 2006 at the
fair vafues at time of canversion (see nole 27).

2.16 INCOME TAX

Income tax expense represents the tatal of the tax currently payable
(current tax) and the change in deferred tax allocated to the income
statement. The current tax is based on taxable prefit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit/loss befare tax as reportedin the
income staterment becauseit excludes items of inceme or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years (temporary differences)
andit further excludes iterns that are never taxable or deductible.
Deferred taxis pravided in fufl, using the fability method, on
temparary cifferences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilifies and their carrying amounts in the cansolidated financial
staternents. However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or ligbility in & transaction other than a
business combination, that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable prafit nor [oss, it is nat recognized.
For the REC Group this is refevant for sorne government grants.

Current and deferred taxis determined using tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the refated tax asset is realized
or the tax liahility is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognized

te the extent that it is prabable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temparary differences can be utilized.
Deferred income tax assels and liabilities are offset when thereis a
[egally enforceable right to affset current tax assets against current
tax liabifities and the REC Group intends to settieits current tax
assets and current tax liabilihes on a net basis.

Ceferred taxis pravided on undistributed earnings in subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controfled entities to the extent that the
future dividend is taxable, except where the timing of any dividend is

controlled by the REC Group and it is probabfe that the dividend will
not be distributedin the foreseeable future.

2.17 PROVISIONS

Provisions for environmental restoration, asset retirement
abligations, restructuring casts, long-term bonuses, product
warranties and legal claims are reccgnized when: the REC Group
has a present (egal or constructive cbligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outfiow of resources wilf be required to
setife the obligation; and the amount has been refiably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise (ease termination penalties and
ermployee termination payments. Provisions are not recognized
far future operating fosses. Where there are a number of simifar
obligations, the likeflihcod that an outflow will be required in
settfernent is determined by considering the class of abligations
as a whole. A provision is recagnized even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small, Assessment of fair value and likelihoad
is mace at each reparting date. Provisians are measured at the
management's best estimate of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the abligation at the balance sheel date, and are
discounted to present value where the effect is material.

2.18 PENSION/POST RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines an amount of
pensicn benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on ane or mare factars such as age, years of service
and compensation. The liabifity recognized in the balange sheet in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present vafue of the
defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date fess the fair
value of plan assets.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity
vig the Statement of Recognized incorme and Expense in the period
in which they arise.

Gains or [osses on the curtailment or setifement of a defined benefit
plan are recognized when the curtailment or settlernent occurs. A
curfaiiment occurs when the Group either is demonstrably commitied
to make a material reduction in the number of ernployees covered

by a plan; or amends the terms of a defined benefit plan such that

a materai element of future service by current empleyees wilf no
fanger qualify for benefits, or will gualify anly for reduced benefits.

For defined contribution plans, the REC Group has no further
paymen! obligations ance the cantributions have been paid. The
cantributions are recognized as empioyee benefit expense when
they are due. When suffident information is nat available to use
defined benefit accounting for a multi-emplayer plan that is a
defined bensfit plan, the plan is accounted for as if it were 3 defined
cantributiaon plan. )

2.19 REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenues are primarily generated from sale of goods: polysilicon,
silzne gas, wafers, ingots, cells and modules,

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods and services,
net of value-added tax, rebates, discounts and expected refurns,

Revenues are normally reportet gross with a separate recarding of
expenses to vendars of products or services Revenue is recognized
when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has
occurred or services have been rendered, the price is fixed or
determinable and collectability is reasonably assured, The REC
Group's apinion is that it has na significant difficulties in deciding
when delivery has accurred. Defivery is normally according (o terms
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in the relevant contracts. When REC praducts are sold with a right
of return for damaged goods, experience is used to estimate and
provide for such returns at the time of sale.

When sub-contraciors are used to perform parts of the production,
egwaler culting or cell production, revenues are not recognized on
the defivery to these sub-contractors as they are regarded as agenis.
Instead a cost for the production service is recognized at the time the
revenue for sale to the customer is recognized,

The REC Group has some long-term contracts in different segments
where sales prices and wolumes are predetermined, with some
adjusting mechanisms. The coniracits are often take-or-pay cantracts
or fake-and-pay contracis, The volumes and pnices may vary between
years, and some are dedining over time and sorme increasing The
custormer may aiso be able to chogse varicus product types and
qualities each period. The REC Group has determined that each year's
prices and quantties are separate deliveries and revenues should be
recognized according to the contract terms for the indivigual year,

Same products, primarily madules, are sold with product warranties.
The expected warranty amaunts are recognized as an expense at the
fime of sale, and are adjusted for subsequent changes in estimates or
actual outcames.

2.20INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME

Interest income is accrued on a time basis. Dividend income from
investments is recognized when the shareholders’ nghts to receive
payment have been established, normally an the dectaration date.

2.21 LEASES

Leases are classified as finance [eases whenever the terms of the
[ease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the fessee, Other leases are classified as operating leases. The
evaluation is based on the substance of the transaction. The criteria
that primarily has been the dedsive facter for the REC Group in
concluding that a finance iease exists is when the present value of
the minimum fease payments amounts to at (east substantially afl
of the fair value of the Ieased asset at the inception of the [ease.

According to IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains
a fease the REC Group may enter into an arrangement that does
nat take the legal form of a lease but conveys a right ta use an
asset in return for a payment or series of payments. Determining
whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease shall be based on
the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of
whether: (2} fulfillment ¢f the arrangement is dependent on the use
of a specific asset; and (b} the arrangement conveys a nght to use
the asset.

Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the
Group at their fair values at the inception of the (ease or, if [awer,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The jeased
assets are depreciated aver the shorter of the useful life of the
asset or the lease term. The correspandng liability to the lessor

is indudedin the balance sheet as an inferest-bearing liability.
Payments made under aperating feases (net of any incentives
received fram the lessor) are charged to the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the period of the [ease.

2.22 DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

Dividend distributions to the Cempany's sharehalders are recognized
as a hiabifity in the REC Grouwp's financial statements in the periodin
which the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders.

2.23 GOVERNMENT GRANTS
Government grants are recognized at their fair values when there

is reasonable assurance that the grants wilf be received and the
REC Group will comply with all attached conditions (see Naote 22).
Government grants related to assets are prasented in the balance
sheet as a reduction to the carrying amount of the assats and
reduce depreciation in the income statement. Government grants
refating to income are deducted in reparting the refated expenses.

2.24 ADJUSTMENTS AND RECLASSIFICATIONS

Bank accounts that cannot be used within fwelve months due to
contractual abligations are classified as non-current restricted
bank accounts and are nat included as a part of cash and cash
equivalents in the cash flow staterment. NOK 142 million (USD 227
million} was reclassified from cash and cash equivalents in the
balance sheet as of December 33, 2006, to non-current restricted
bank accounts (see note 213), which also affected the presentation
of cash and cash equivélents in the 2006 and 2005 cash flow
staternents.

2.25 NEW STANDARDS ETC.

(a) Standards, interpretations and amsndments to published
standards implamented at January 1, 2007:

IFRS 7 Financial instruments: disclosures and a complementary
amendment to 1AS 1, presentation of financial statements - capital
disclosures (effective from January 1, 2007}, IFRS 7 intraduces new
disclosures to improve the information about financial instruments.
It requires the disclosure of qualifative and quantitative information
abeut expasure to risks arising from financial instruments, induding
specified minimum disclosures about credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk, including sensitivity analysis to market risk. it replaces
I1AS 30, Disclosures in the Financial Staternents of Banks and

Similar Financial Institutions, and disclosure reguirements in 1AS 32,
Financial instruments: Disclosure and Presentation. The amendment
to 1AS Vintraduces disclosures about the level of an entity's capital
and how it manages capital, IFRS 7 and the amendment o 1AS 1
have increased note disclosures for the REC Group.

(b) Standards, Interpretations and amendments 1o published
standards that are not effective at December 31, 2007:

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations ta existing
standards have been published and are mandatary for the REC
Group's accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2008.
The Group has not early adopted these.

() Those that are expected to have an effect on the REC Group's
Financiat Statements In the future are:

IFRS 8 Operating segrments (effective from January 1, 2009,

early adaption possibie}. IFRS 8 requires an entity to adopt the
‘management approach’ to reporting on the financial performance
of its aperating segments. Generally, the information to be reported
would be what management uses internally for evaluating segment
performance and deciding how to allocate resources to aperating
segments. Such information may be different from what is used to
prepare the income staterment and balance sheet. The proposals
would therefare require explanations of the basis an which the
segment information is prepared and reconciliations to the amounts
recognized in the income statement and balance sheel The REC
Group anticipate that IFRS 8 will nat have a material atfect but has
not cancluded on the potential impact of IFRS 8 ar whether the REC
Group will implement IFRS 8 early, :

Revised |AS 1 presentation of Financial Staterments (effective

for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009, Early
adoplion is possible. JAS 1 was not approved by the EU Commission
as of March 28, 2008). 145 1 replaces 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements (revised in 2003) as amended in 2005. IAS 1sets overall
requirements for the presentation of financial statements, guidelines




for their structure and minimum requirements for their content. The
REC Group's preliminary evaluation is that the patential impact of
145 1is lirnited. The REC Group has not decided if it will implement
IAS 1earty.

Revised |AS 23 Borrowing Cosis (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2009. Early adoption is possible).
The revised |AS 23 removes the option 1o expense borrowing costs
and requires that an entity capitatize borrowing costs directly
aftributable ta the acquisition, construction ar production of a
qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. This change in
I1AS 23 will not constitute a change in accounting policy for the
REC Group.

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements (effective for annual
periods beginning on ar after January 1, 2008 IFRIC 12 was not
approved by the EU Commission as of March 28, 2008).iFRIC 12
provides guidance on certain recegnition and measurement issues
that arise in accounting for pubfic-to-private service concession
arrangements. The REC Group has not identified any Service
Concession in the past for which IFRIC 12 will change the accounting,
but IFRIC 32 may be relevant for future periods.

Revised IFRS 3 Business Combinations. The IFRS replaces IFRS 2 (as
issuedin 2004} and cames inte effect far business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting pericd beginning on or after July 1, 200%. Earfier
application is perrnitted, hrovided that |AS 27 (as amended in 2008}
i applied at the sarme time. The revised IFRS 3 was not approved
by the EU Cornmission as of March 28, 2008. The objective of the
IFRS is to enhance the refevance, reliability and comparability of the
infarenation that an entily provides in its financial statements about
a business carmbination and its effects. It does that by establishing
prlnc;p!es and requirements for how an acguirer:
recegnizes and measures in its financial statements the
identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any non-
controiling interest in the acquiree;
- recognizes and measures the goodwill acguired in the business
combination ar a gain from a bargain purchase;
- and determines what information ta disclose to enable users
of the financial statements to evaluale the nature and financiaf
effects of the business cormbination. .
The REC Group has not concluded on the patenhal impact of the
revised IFRS 3 or whether the REC Group will early implement the
IFRS.

Revised IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Staterents. The
arnended Standard must be applied for annual periods beginning
on or after July i, 2009. Earfier application is permitted. However, an
entity must not apply the amendments for annual periods beginning
befare July 1, 2009 unless il also applies IFRS 3 (as revised in 2008).
The revised tAS 27 was not approved by the EU Commission as of
March 28, 2008, The objective of IAS 27 is {0 enhance the refevance,
refiability and comparability of the information that a parent entity
provides in its separate finandal statements and in its consolidated
financial staterments for a group of entities under its control. The
Standard specifies:
+ the circurnstances in which an enlity must consalidate the
fingncial staterments of anather entity (being a subsiciary},

- the accounting for changes in the level of ownershipinterestin a
subsidiary;

- the accounting far the foss of centrol of a subsidiary; and

- the information that an entity must disdose to enable users of
the finandial statements to evafuate the nature of the refationship
between the entity and its subsidiaries. The REC Group has
nat concluded on the potentialimpact of the revised 1AS 27 or
whether the REC Group will early implerment the |AS,

{lif Those that are not expected to affect the REC Group's Financial
Statements in the future, because they relate to Issues that have not
been relevant for !nancial years up to, and Including December 31,
2007, are:

Amendments ta |AS 32 Financ@al instrurments: Presentation and

1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Staternents (as revised in 2007)

and consequential amendments 10 IFRS 7 Financial instruments:
Disclosures, 1AS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and IFRIC 2 Members' Shares in Co-operative Entifies
and Sirniar Instruments. The amendments result from proposals
that were containedin an expasure draft of proposed amendments
te 1AS 32 and 1AS 1-Financial Instruments Puttable at Fair value and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation published in June 2006.

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Fayment, The amendments
finafize the proposals that were contained in the expasure draft
of proposed amendments to IFRS 2-Vesting Conditions and
Cancelfations publishedin February 2006.

IFRIC 11IFRS 2-Group and Treaswy Share Transactions. This
Inferpretation addresses two issues. The first is whether the
folfowing transactions should be accounted for as equity-settled
ar as cash-settled under the requirements of IFRS 2: (a) an entity
grants ta its employees rights to equity instruments of the enbity
{eq share options}, and either chooses oris required ta buy equity
instruments {ie treasury shares) from another party, to satisfy

its abligations to its employees: and (b} an entily’s empioyees

are granted rights to equity instruments of the entity {eg share
options), either by the entity itself or by its shareholders, and the
shareholders of the entity provide the equity instruments needed.

IFRIC 13 Custorner Loyalty Prograrnmes, This Interpretation applies
te custemer loyalty award credits that (4) an entity grants o

its customers as part of a sales transaction, ie a sale of goods,
rendering of services or use by a customer of entity assets and (b}
subject to meeting any further gualifying candticns, the customers
canredeem in the future for free or discounted goods or services.
The Interprefation addresses accounting by the entity that grants
award credits toits custorners.

IFRIC 14,1AS519-The Limit on 3 Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
funding Requirements and their Interaction. The issues addressed
in this Interpretation are: (a) when refunds or reductions in future
contributions should be regamed as available in accordance with
paragraph 58 of tAS 19, (b} how a minimum funding requirement
right affect the avaifability of reductions in future contributions, )
when a minimum funding requirement might give rise ta a liabifity.

oui?
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

i ]

3,1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The REC Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (primarily currency and interest-rate risk), creditrisk and
liquidity risk, The REC Group finance palicy was ariginafly established
in 200% and the main principles were included in the iPG Prospectus
as of May 2006. At March 31, 2006 financing was transferred from
the subsidiary level to the REC Group level to enable a centralized
management of financial risks. In December 2007, the REC Group
revised its finance poflicy. This revised finance palicy more clearly
defines the abjectives of the policy, the financial risk prafile of the
REC Group and the responsibilities under the finance policy. in
addition, it has been extended to include additional Yapics, such as
counterparty risk, liquidity management, capital structure, corporate
funding and commodity risk. The REC finance pelicy does not apply
o Jaint ventures and Associates of the REC Group.

The revised finance policy aims at creating predctability and stability
in operational cash flows and values, and preserving the carrying
value of net investments, long-term receivables, deposits and
barrowings. The policy sets the framework and limits for hedging
activities in the REC Group in order to maintain a low to moderate
financial risk profile. All hedging transactians should be undertaken
in order to reduce negative impacts of changes in financial markets
on values and operationai cash flow The REC Group uses derivative
financial instrurnents to hedge exposures arising from operational,
financing and investment activities in accordance with the finance

policy.

{(a) Currency tisk

The REC Group operates internationally andis exposed to currency
risk, primanty to fluctuations in US Daflar (USD), EURO (EUR} and
Norwegian Krone (NQK), arising fram commercial transactions in
currencies ather than the entity's funclional currency, recognized
assets and fiabilities, and netinvestments in foreign aperations. The
REC Graup's revised finance palicy is to cover between 80 percent
and 105 percent of expected future cash flows on a ralling 12 month
basis. The palicy defines coverage of the nel exposure for a 48
month period, with gradually declining coverage. The hedge position
should normalfy be updated on a quarterly basis in accordance with
the hedging rmatrix defined in the finance policy.

The REC Group should primarity facus on achieving stability and
predictability in operating cash flows, preserving the carrying value
of net investments, and giving prediciability of highly probable
(normally Board approved} future payments for investments in
foreign currencies, Cperational cash flow and cash flows related
to future investrments shalf be hedged separately. To manage
currency risk arising from cormmercial ransactions, REC entities
may use farward coniracts, including flexible forward contracts
and participating forward contracts, swaps or options. The REC
subsidiaries manage their currency risk by entering into fareign
exchange contracts through REC ASA or by using embedded
derivatives. REC ASA manages the currency risk on an overafl
Group level and establishes external foreign exchange contracts
with banks. In 2007 and 2006, hedge accounting accerding to [AS
39 Financial Instruments was used for cash flow hedges of certain
revenues and expenses of REC Wafer. Currency hedging is also
perfarmed in other REC Group companies without hedge accounting
treatment This primarily relates ta REC ASA for foreign currency
monetary items and REC ScanCell's nef sales in EUR. [n 2007,

REC wafer's hedges of future purchases in USD using embedded
derivabves were not hedge accounted.

Hedging of net investments was nat induded in the previcus finance
palicy, and pracedures were not in place at year-end 2007 for such
hedging.

In order to achieve stability and predctability in operational

figures and investments, the REC Group wifi cansider whether
hedge accaunting under IAS 39 shauld be established for hedging
of currency risk. To achieve |AS 39 hedge accounting there are
extensive reguirerments for documentation, effectiveness testing,
calculating fair values and ineffectiveness, conduct accounting
entries, provide note disclosures ete. These requirermnents will have
a cost element due to the resources needed in order Lo achieve and
maintain 1AS 39 hedge accounting. However, even though econamic
hedge is achieved, IAS 39 hedge accounting may not be achievable
or anly partially achievable in sorme cases.

when presenting the financial statements in NOK, the amounts are
affected by the NOK exchange rates when converting the financial
statements of fareign entities fram their functional currencies fo
NOK.

(b) Credit risk

The REC Group has same concentrations of credit risk as it has a
few large wholesale customers in the safar and efectronic industry
in Eurgpe, USA and Asia. Poficies arein place to ensure that sales

of products are only made to customers with an appropriate credit
histary in combination with requirements for various payment
quaraniees or prepayments. The REC Group has experienced
minimal asses on receivables. Management's ¢pinion is that the REC
Group has na significant concentration of credit risk.

Intra group balances are eliminated an consofidation of subsidiaries.
The REC Group propartionally consafidates 33.33 percent of EverQ,
and cansequentiy the REC Group has some credit exposure related
to loans and guarantees pravided to EverQ. The REC Group also has
provided some loans to the associate CSG Solar AG and vendors.
These are limited amounts and have consequently no significant
credit risk.

Derivative counterparties and cash transactions are limited to high-
credit-quality financial institutions. Any positive vafues in embedded
derivatives do not contain any credit risk before sales are made and
receivables are established.

{c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and having availability of funding through
an adeguate amaunt of committed credit facifities. Due ta the
dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the REC Group aims
o maintain a high degree of financial flexibility by keeping sufficient
cash and cash equivalents or committed credit facilities available. At
year-end 2007 and 2006, the net cash pasition, committed credit
facilities and expected future cash flow from operating activities
were expected to provide ample funding for approved capacity
expansians. The REC Group plans for further significant expansion
projects, including the establishment of a major solar manufacturing
complex in Singapare. Board approvals of the planned major
expansion projects will imply that the REC Group also will have fo
evaluate addtional funding.

(d) Interest rate risk

Changes in market interest rates affect the fair value of assets

and liabilities or the variability in cash payments, The REC Group is
exposed to interest rate nsk through funding and ¢ash management
activities. Interest bearing assets and liabilities primarily carry
variable interest, Subsequent to the eguily intrease in May 2006,
the REC Group has held interest-bearing assets primarily exposed

te changes in NOK interest rates and to some extent USD interest
rates {see nole 31 for interest rate sensitivity). Borrowings through
REC ASA are primarily expased to changes in NOK interest rates and
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to some extent USD interest rates. Barrowings of EverQ carry EUR
interest rates, that are fixed or for which inlerest rate swaps have
been entered into for the purpose of converting the net exposure

to fixedrate. Intergst income and interest expense in the income
statemnent, as well as interest receipls and payrments, are influenced
by interest rate changes for financial instruments that carry variable
interest rates,

Interest hedging instruments may be used to control and minimize
the company’s interest cost within the framewaork defined in the
finance policy. Gver time, the REC Group beflieves that its interest
expenses will be minimized by a floating interest rate. interest
rate hedging is only to be entered into when the REC Group is in

a net-debt position. The interest-rate hedging of the Group's net
debt portfolio (excluding finance lease debt} should be measured
by an average interest (ock-in period (duration). Accarding to the
revised finance palicy, the duration for the net-debt pasition in the
REC Group shall not at any time exceed 2.5 years, measured on
an average interest commitment. Normally, the duration shouid
be less than 1.5 years and it may be zera The net tolal volume of
quistantng interest-rate hedging instruments should at no point
exceed the sum of the outstanding and approved borrowings.

During 2007, the jaint venture EverQ has established cash flow
hedge of some variable interest-rate fiabilities.

{#) Hedging of risk related to input factors

Accarding to the revised finance policy. REC subsidiaries that have
a high portion of total costs from a specific input factor shall hedge
the risk of significant negative movements in prices. The extent of a
significant negative movement is evaluated in each case considering
the effact of price increases and price volatility for the refevant
input factor on the operating results for the subsidiary. Price risk
for the input factor should be hedged primarily through long-term
contracts. Financial instruments may also be usad for hedging
significant changes in the price of impartant input factors. As of
year-end 2007, no such hedges have been conducted.

3.2 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

In 2005 and 2006, profit was significantly negatively affected by
neon-cash effects fram changes in the fair value assessment and

fareign exchange effects of two convertibie loans. During 2006,

these [pans were converted to equity (see nate 27).

The fair value of foreign exchange derivatives (see note M1} is
calculated based on quoted currency rates at the reporting dates.
For cormnplex instrurnents (flexible and participating forward
contracts} the calcudation includes usage of commenly accepted
valuation modefs. The fair vakie calculations were performed by
independent banks,

The REC Group had insignificant financial assets available for sale at
Decemnber 31, 2007 and 2006

Estimated fair values of financial instruments are shawn in note 31.

3.3 CAPITAL STRUCTURE .

The REC Group is engaged in production of silane gas and
polysilicon for the sofar and electronic industry, walers and ingots
for solar applications, and manufaciunng of solar cefls and sofar
madules, In light of the REC Group's ambilions to have strong,
profitable growth at feast in fine with the devefoprment of the

PV industry, the REC Group needs o define an apprapriate and
sustainable capital structure as well as fund expected grewih. in
determining the appropriate capital structure for the REC Group,
various factors have been considered These include risks associated
with the REC Group's business profile, the fact that the PV industry
has high capital intensity, particularly upstream, and the expected
unfavarable impact on the demand for REC Group's products and
higher cost of capital from increased interest rates. Also, PVis a
refatively new business with limited history and is sill dependent an
governmental incentives in various countries to a great extent.

The finance palicy approved by the Board of Directars in December
2007 states that the REC Group shall have sufficient equity capital
at all times to implement the business strategies and have financial
flexibifity in relation ta passible new investments and acquisitions.

In addition, the REC Group shall maintain access to various sources
of funding. Further, the REC Group shall have financial flexibility in
reation to creditors and the capital markets. in order o support the
REC Group's grawth ambitions and have sufficient financial flexibility
in refation to new investment oppartunities, the REC Group should
maintain a capital structure that has good headroom.in relation

to the financial covenants as defined in the NOK 5,425 miflion
Multicurrency Term and Revolving Facifities Agreement dated March
23, 2006 (as amended and restated pursuant o an Amendment and
Restaternent agreement). This [0an agreement requires that REC
Group maintaing a gearing ratio (netinterest bearing debt, as of the
last day of each quarter, to EBITOA) that is not mare than 2.5, and
that the equity ratic (total equity to total assets) shall not be less
than 30 percent.

The REC Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to
sharehalders, repurchase shares, issue new shares, sell assets lo
reduce debt, repay or issue debt in order to maintain or madify the
capital structure. For the fiscal years 2007 and 2006, the Board of
Directors recommended not o pay dividends,

Neither REC ASA nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to other
externally imposed capitaf requirements.

The following table shows the calculation of the gearing and equity
ratio at Decernber 31.

Frpel ZOF

o
8



INOK(N THOUSAND  —~ - b0 2008!
Interest-bearing financial llabiltties* 27%6 572 2644235
Cash and cash equivalents™ -5 794 89T -7275548
Net debt REC Group Including EverQ™ -2 998 325 -4631313
Of which EverQ net debt proportionally consolidated 351 415 45301
Net debt excluding EverQ™ -3.349 740 4676614
EBITDA REC Group 3172272 1964 593
Of which EverQ proportionally consolidated 56514 -..3468
EBITDA excluding EverQ 3115758 1961125
Total assets REC Group 17946337 14780543
Of which EvarQ proportionatly consolidated 1131832 695526
Tota) assets exduding EverQ 16813 505 14085017
Total equity REC Group. ... 131 757 060 10636517
Gearing ratlo (Max 2,5) NA™ NA™
Equity ratlo (Min 30%, 0% 6%
* Exctudes prepayments from Ever(Q, see note 17.

“ Excludes restricted bank depaosits, see note 14.

““REC Group was in a nef cash position af December 31, 2007 and 2006.

P FUNC T S U o g e
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY ]

4.1 CRITICAL JUDGMENTS IN APPLY ING THE REC GROUP'S
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Management's judgments having the most significant effect on
amounts recagnized in the financial staterments are discussed below
andin the refevant nates.

{a) Deferred tax on undistributed earnings

According to current reguiations and tax treaty, withholding tax of
15 percent would apply on any dividends paid by the REC Group's
aperations in the US to the parent company in Norway, REC ASA
controls the distribution of fuiure dvidends from the US operaticns,
and has determined that those profits wilf not be distributedin the
foreseeable future. Consequently REC ASA has not recognized a
deferred tax liability on these undistnbuted earnings. If at a later
paointin time this evafuation changes or dividends are distributed
under the current regulations and tax treaty, additicnal tax expense
will be recognized in the relevant periods.

(b) Functional currencies

The REC Group's presentation currency and the parent company's
(REC ASA's) functional currency is Norwegian Krone. The REC
Group management has evaluated the functional currency of

the different REC entities. The functional currency for mest REC
entities corresponds to the currency of the countries in which they
aperate, However, for the Norwegian and Swedish operabians the
facts and circumstances are mixed and the conclusion is not readily
apparent, as revenues and expenses currently are in NOK, SEK, Eure,
and US Daollar. Deliveries are made to several countnies, inCluding
Norway and other countries in Europe, Asia and USA. Currently,
pricing is determined by & significant demand for productsin
several markets and from government incentives, Government
incentives and the relative attractiveness of sefling to different
countries change over time. Eurcpe is currently a farge market, but
countries in Europe have different government incentives, demand
and prices. Indicatians on sales prices and costs are mixed. For the
Norwegian entities, Norwegian Krone is the currency in which funds
frorn financing activities G.e. issuing debt and equity instruments)
primarily are generated and in which receipts from operating
activities are usually retained for these entities.

Functional currency affects the reporting of currency gains and
fosses and exchange differences as well 35 hedging strategies and
effects. The evaluation of what is the functional currency for the
separate entities may change cver time if there are refevant and
significant changes in facts ar circumstances. A change in functional
currency must be made prospectively from the date of the change.

(¢} Devetopment expenditures

The REC Group tonducts numerous research and development
activities and projects. Some costs incurredin the development
phase of anintangible asset may be capitalized if the recognition
criteria are fulfilled. Costs that are expensed cannot be capitalized
at alater stage. Consequently, there may be development costs that
cannot be capitalized because the REC Group cannot demonstrate
that afl requirements are fulfilled at the relevant points in time.

Al year-end 2006 and 2007, most development costs have been
expensed, except same costs relating to the Fluidized Bed Reactor
(FBR) project in REC Silican, subsequent 1o the gecision in 2006 to
build a new plant utifizing the FBR technology, and same furnace
developrnent activities in REC Wafer (see note 7).

{d) Business combinations - pra-existing contractual arrangernents
At the time of the acquisition of ASIMI ang SGS in 20085, the REC
Group had pre-existing customer refationships with the acquired
companies. There is no clear guidance on how a pre-existing
customer redationship should be accounted for in a business
combination. IFRS 3 Business Combinations requires that all

assels and fiabilities are valued on a market participant basis, This
means that the basis of the valuation is the value to any acquirer
(markel-participant), and should not take into account any spetific
assumptions refating to the actual buyer (entity-specific). The REC
Group has recognized the pre-existing customer relationship as an
intangibie asset (original fair vafued at approximately USD 15 million}
and arnartizes over the estimated remaining customer relationship
period (10 - 16 years, see note 7). The REC Group has determined
that there was no settfernent gain or toss on the effective setifernent
of the pre-existing relationship.
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{e) Leases

IFRIC 4 requires that the determination of whether an arrangement
is or contains a lease should be based on the substance of the
arrangement. If an arrangerment contains a fease, the requirements
of IAS 17 shall apply to the lease element of the arrangement. Other
eferments of the arrangement not within the scape of 1AS17 shall be
accounted for in accordance with other standards.

Seme arrangements in which the REC Group is a parly include
naymenits for the right to use the assets and payments for other
elements in the arrangement (e.g. for autput from a facility).

The fair value of the assets, the lease and other elements in the
arrangement may not be available for the REC Group, and the REC
Group has to make its best estimate of these values. This may afso
affect the conclusion if the leases are finance or gperating leases.

For the 2007 and 2C086 note disclosures the future minimum
payments for the [ease and other elements in an arrangement in
REC Silicon have been reported as part of purchase commitments
(see note 29). Al Decernber 31, 2007 this contract, as welf as a
simifar but smaller agreement in REC Solar had been determined
to contain operating leases. The conclusions were, amaong other
things, affectec by the REC Group's estimates of fair values. In 2007,
REC Solar determined that a (ease ¢f & production building was a
finance ease. In 2006, REC Wafer began accounting for a capacity
contract that was concluded to contain leases and purchase of
goods and services. The lease parts were for a production building
and equipment far recovery of exhausted sfurry, and were in 2006
determined to contain operating and finance leases, see note 7 and
29. The canclusions, balance sheet amounts and note disclosures
were, amang other things, affected by the REC Group's estimates
of fair values. Al the end of 2007 REC Wafer entered into additional
capacity contracts with the same vendor. The production facilities
were not constructed at year-end, and the REC Group was not able
to determine the respective fair vafues of the lease and commadity
output elements of the new contracts, and was not able to separate
these elements in order to determine what parts of the contracts
are operating or finance [eases, see note 29.

4.2 KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
Intermational Financial Reporting Standards requirgs management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assels and liskilities, as weli as the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
staterments and the reported amoaunts of revenues and expenses
during the reparting pericd. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Certain amounts included in or affecting the REC Group's
financial statements and refated disclosures must be estimated,
requining management o make assumptions with respect to vaiues
ar conditions which cannot be known with certainty at the time the
financial statements are prepared. A “crifical accounting estimate”
is ane which is both impaortant to the portrayal of the comparny's
financial condition and results and requires management fo make
estimates ahout the effect of matters that are inherentiy uncertain,
and which are subjeclive or cornplex. Management evaluates such
estimates an an angoing basis, based upan historical results and
experience, consuitation with experts, ulilizing trends and other
methods considered reasonable in the particular circumstances, as
well as forecasts as to how these might change in the future.

(a) Impalrment

The REC Group tests annusfly whether goodwill or intangible assets
not ready forits intentional use, have suffered any impairment.
Property, piant and equipment, ather intangible and financial assets

are tested for impairment when circurnstances indicate there

may be a patential impairment. Factors management considers
impartant and which could trigger an impairment review include;
significant faflin market values; a significant underper formance
redative to historical or projected future operating resufts; sigrificant
changes in the use of the assets or the strategy for the overall
business, including assets that are decided o be phased out

or replaced and assets that are damagad ar taken out of use,
significant negative industry or economic trends; and significant
cast overruns in the development of assets.

The recoverable amounts of assets and cash-generaling units

have been getermined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates including estimates of
future performance, revenue generaling capacity of the assels,
assumptians of the future market conditions and the successin
development and marketing of new products and services. Changes
in circumstances and in management's evaluations and assumphons
may give rise 10 impairment lasses in the relevant periods. For the
periad presented, no significant impairments have been recognized
(see nates 6, 7 and 8).

{b) Depreclation and amortization

Depreciation and amartization are based or management estimates
of the future useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets. Estimates may change due to technological
developrments, competition, changes in market conditions,
expectations far replacements or disposal of assets and other
factars. Technological developments are difficult to predict and

the REC Group's views on the trends and pace of devefopment

may change aver time. Management periadically reviews the
expected future useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets taking inta consideration the factars mentioned
above and ather important factors. In case of significant changes
in estimated useful lives, depreciation and amortization charges
are adjusted prospectively. In the case of replacements or disposals
any remaining carrying value will be recognized to the income
statement, net of any proceeds receivable.

{c) Business combinations, joint ventures and associated companies
The REC Group is required {o alfocate the purchase price of acquired
cornpanies, including joint ventures and associated companies,

to the assets acquired and liabikties assumed based on their
estimated fair values. Such vafuations require management to make
significant estimates and assumpbions. The acquired intangible
assels recognized by the REC Group include customer relationships,
arder backlog, custemer contracts (of which one is recognized as a
ligbility, see note 20}, developed technology and in-process research
and development. The significant tangible assets primarify include
processing property, plant and equipment. Critical estimates in the
evaluations of useful fives for such assels include, but are not limited
to, contract periods and expected developments in technology

and markets. Critical estimates in valuing certain assets indude,

but are not limited to; future expected net cash flows for custorner
contracts and hypothetic patent licensing, and replacement costs
far in-process research and development and praperty, pfant and
equipment. Management's estimates of fair value and useful fives
are based upon assumptions believed (o be reasonabfe, but which
are inherenily uncertain and unpredictable and, as a resull, actual
results may differ from estimates.

{d) Income taxes

The REC Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Judgment is required in deterrnining the provisien for income faxes,
There are transactions and calcuiations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The REC Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit
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issues based an estimates of whather additional taxes will be due.
where the final tax outcorme of these matters is different from the
amounts that were inibafly recorded such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made. If the actual outcome differs from
management's current estimates, REC Group will need fo ncrease
or decrease current and deferred tax fiabilities,

Thea REC Group companies perforrm significant fransactions with
each other and with other related parties. These are primarily

sale of products to the next step in the production chain, and ta
sarme extent services for the berefit of the other party. The REC
Group companies shall negatiate terms and conditions as between
unrelated parties, including transfer prices. For some of the products
there are limited directly comparable sales to external parties

and the infarmation on directly comparable transaclions between
external parties are fimited, For some of the products, prices in the
spat market andin fong-term contracts are significantly different.
In additicn prices in fong-term contracts vary significantly, amang
other things based an at which pointin time the contracts were
enleredinto and the fength of the conltracts. Tax authorities of the
differen{ countries may have different views on the transfer prices
used with potential negative effects for the REC Group,

(e) Fair value of convertible loans

Up to March 2006, the shares in REC ASA were not fisted and the
fair vafue of the convertible [0ans had to be estimated. The changes
in fair values had significant impacts on REC's profit for 2005 and
2006 and on equity in 2006 (see notes 15, 24 and 27}

{f) Warranties

In cennection with the sale of solar modufes by REC ScanModufe
AB, a5 year limited warranty that the product is free of defects
inmaterials and workmanship, 8 10 year limited warranty of

90 percent power output and a 25 year limited warranty of 80
percent of power output of the solar modules are provided. This

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

is customary in the market for sofar modules. REC Group's jointly
controlled entity EverQ GmbH produces sofar modules using

a different technology and also provides warranties. The REC
Group believes that the material in the solar maodules made by
REC ScanMadule is capable of produaing a rafative steady output
far a period of at least 25 years. However, neither the REC Group
nor any of its cormpetiters have a 25-year history, Management's
estimates of warranty provisions take into consideration, among
other things, limited experience for sales where a third party takes
over the warranty liability and cornparison to EverQ. A change in the
canstruction process in 2006 is also considered.

During 2007, the REC Group made further evaluations of the
pravisions. Tests refatec to the lang-term power output part of the
warranty have been promising, but nat conclusive at year-end.

Al December 31, 2007 the tatal provision for REC ScanMedule
amounted 1o 1 percent of accumulated sales, of which 0.8 percent
related to power output. The total pravision in percentage of
accumulated sales is reduced from the previous year, due ta revised
estimates af product defects.

Management believes that the assumptions are reasonable, but they
are inherently uncertain and unpredictatbXe and, as a result, future
estimates and actual results may differ from the current estimates,

{g) Penslon costs, penslon obligations and pension plan assets

The calculation of pension costs and net pension obtiigations (the
difference between pensicn obligations and pension plan assels)is
made basedon a number of estimates and assumplions. Changes
in, and deviations from, estimates and assumptions (actuarial gains
and [osses) affect the fair value of net pension liabiliies. Changes
are recognized in the financial siatements with the effect to equity
through the consolidated statement of recognized income and
expense. Key assumptions and sensitivity analyses are outlined in
nate 19.

The segment information presented shows the main companents
of the REC Group's business that is evaluated on a regular basis

by management. Financial and operational infarmation are
prepared specificelly far each segment for the purpaose of assessing
performance and allocating resources. Financial information is
disdosed primarify on the same basis as presented internally.

The REC Group's primary format for reporting segment infarmaton
is business segrnents. The REC Group's segments are managed
separately and each segment represents a strategic business area
that offers different products and serves dfferent markets. The
REC Group's segments are REC Silicon, REC Wafer and REC Solar. In
addition, the REC Group reparts "QOther”,

REC Silican produces silane gas, solar grade polysilican for the
phatavoltaic industry as well as electronic grade polysificon for

the efectronic industry. REC Silicon is comprised of the aperating
companies REC Salar Grade Sificon LLC (SGS) and REC Aadvanced
Siflicon Materials LLC (ASiMI} focated in the US. Revenues are based
onlong term contracts for the electronic industry (primarily in Asia},
while solar grade polysilicon is primarily sold internally to REC Wafer
on [ong-term contracts based on arms-fength terms, conditions

and market expectations that existed at the time terms were fixed.
Curing 2005 REC acquired 100 percent of ASiMI and the remaining
30 percant of SGS, see note 30. A new plani under construction is
expected {0 start production at the end of 2008.

REC Wafer is comprised of multicrystalline wafer manufacturing

in Glorfjord and Heraya (Norway) and maonocrystalline ingots at

a separate plant in Glamfjord The main customers are currently
located in Germany and Japan, while a part is sold internalty to

REC Solar at arms-length prices. Revenues are based on mufli-year
contracts reducing volatility and securing a steady cash flow. In the
fourth quarter of 2006, REC Wafer started production and ramp-up
at a second plant at Heraya, New plants are under construction, but
are expected to add only limited additional capacity during 2008.

REC Solar is comprised of solar cells manufacturing in Narvik
{Norway) and solar modules in Glava (Sweden), as well as a srall
installation business of sofar hame systerms in Sauth Africa. Europe
has been REC Solar's main market, with Germany as the largest.
Revenues are based an short term contracts, and therefore
influenced significantly by market price fluctuations. Curing 2006
and 2007, REC Solar increased its annual preduction rate due to
ramp-up activities in both cell and module, including building of a
new plant for celf production. Additional capacity is plannedin 2008

QOther aperations consist of companies and activities thatin
thermselves are nal significant encugh to be reporied as separate
segments. The main operating company is Ever® (33.33 percent
awned from December 19, 2006) and corporate functions and
Graup activities. EverQ is ajoint venture between the REC Group,
EverGreen SolarIn¢, and Q-Cells AG, and manufactures sclar
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maodufes. A second plant was constructed in 2007 and a third plant
is under construction. Group functions and activities is comprised of
parts of the Group management, corparate functions, research and
development, business development and the REC Group's in-house
bank.

Intercompany sales and transfers within the Group are based on

arms-fength prices, infercarnparny service fransactions are based on
cost oriented prices.

Profit anc toss for the year endec December 31, 2007

Group contribution and dividends are not included in the profit
and [oss statements for the segments or Other. Segment revenues
and expenses include transactions eliminated on censolidation.
The large amounts for assets and liabilities in Other were due to
Group internal receivables and payables. Investment in shares in
subsidiaries and jaintly controlled entities are not included in the
balance sheets for the segrments or Other.

HNOK IN THOWSAND RECWAFER.  RECSOLAR. . OTHER.
Ravenues - third parties 3 836 453 1116 254 371 467
Ravemues - REC Groun e LATTO80 .. 528644 49 28265 .. .-1734908 ........C
Total revenues 2495819 4 365097 1.116 303 399732 -1.734.908
13037 170 654 66
175677 -274095 -56 754 78055
i 1 538942 113,900 +145031
Assoclated companies 0 4] -4% 465
Net currency gains/losses -30 -9048 4676 341337 0 -345737
Gains/losses derivatives 0 -649 456 48 417 130820 Q . +a70218
Other financial items 71837 -17882 8100 157385 251076
beforetaxes 1099536 862 559 158 893 :243 628 1977347
* The segment result is EBIT,
Profit and loss for the year ended December 34,2006 o
NG THOUSANM REC SILICON REC WAFER SOLAR . OTHER  EUIMINATIONS _ _  _ TOTAL!
Revenues = third parties 1394509 2 057 365 872 333 9 865 0 4334072
Revenues — REC Group 732941 . 3928035 904 12309 71144189
3 2127450 2 455 400 873237 22174 -1144 189
1062 925 825418 195221 76747 -42 224
(188750 161 584 -36 228 3603 )
- 874175 663834 157 993 -80 350 -4] 224
Associated companies 0 0 -18330 0
Net currency galns/losses 57 8587 -64 602 0.
GalnsAesses derlvatives o] ‘11374 28233 0
GalnsAosses convertible debt o] o] -796219 0
Other finanglal ltems. -135 807 31680 201 453 -13.173
Profit/loss baforetaxes 738425 629377 129815 -54 397
“ The segment result is EBIT,
Profit and foss for the year ended December 31, 2005
[OK 1N THOUSAND) T T T T T e BHLICON RIC WAFER RLC SOLAR OTHIR  ELIMINATIONS TOTAL]
Revanues - third parties 652 711 1396374 a03 727 1104 Q 2453916
Ravanues - REC Group 365348 6875 572 485
Total revenues 1018059 7979
EBITDA 413019 43746 42 128 830181
Ospreciation amortization and Impairment 62670 (168 0 228734
EBIT" ; 343349 43914 -4l 128 €01 447
Asscciated companies 0 -7052 o] -7 052
Net currency gains/losses 4014 39249 0 68032
Gains/osses convertible debt 0 ¢ 0 -493037 o] -493 037
QOther financial ltams -96 897 24936 -4 785 -39 403 26714 -139307
250 466 287 742 50 446 +544 157 -14 414 30083

“The segment result isESIT,

E
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Balance sheet and Investments for the year ended December 31, 2007

[(NOK IN THOUSAND) REC SILIKON __ REC WAFER REC SOLAR OTHER __ELIKINATICHS TOTAL]
Goodwill 237700 342 325 4181 215250 0 799 456
Other non current assets* 4937 441 2 811509 984 375 3215997 2617 652 9331670
Cash and cash equlvatents 111285 10345 3800 5669 467 0 5794897
Other current assets 527 080 977 252 412 767 1424788 +1 583 331 1 788 556
Taxassets 208 181 696 13823 32899 230758
$ 5813714 4323127 1418 946 10 658 401 17945337
Cther non-<urrent Habilities 98746 714986 37127 25212 233071
Non-currert labilties, interest bearing 3324189 60299 227 795 1631066 -2 604 202 2639147
Other current llabilitles 521082 1365107 275623 182 530 -302 994 2041 348
Current liabilltles, interest-bearing 1533 651237 452 418 458 863 -1 080072 483979
Tax liabtities 357201 435 180 39 556 8104 *4% 308 790733
noN cUrrent assats™ 2691141 454 364 770915 279930,

Py

g investments in shares in subsidiaries and joint ventures.

“Including property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, goodwilt and acquired business.

Balance sheet and investments for the year ended December 31, 2006

[MOK N THOUSANDY REC SILICON REC WATER REGSOLAR OTHER__ CLIMINATIONS TOTAL)
Goodwill 274780 342 325 4084 171095 0 792 284
Other non currant assets” 2 766824 1809913 201 778 2114231 -1 787 795 5104951
Cash and cash equivalents 431283 10840 8047 6 825378 0 7275548
Other current assets , 462 090 821082 357 698 1159190 -1 254 365 1545695
59323 0 14919 109 408 62 065
3.994300 2 984 160 586517 10379302 14780543
210321 51346 0719 12 834 3n5220
Non-current liabilitles, interast bearinq 2226046 135970 710 1914973 -1779 282 2498417
Other current labilittes . ' 296399 606531 200063 126863 -421 853 808003
Current ilabilities, (nterest-bearing 0 688308 43 289 183 054 ~748 833 145818
Tax llabilities 2735632 141736 43 468 82311 -164 479 3866568
Purchase of non current assets™ 453392 1123645 40735 448527 0 2072299
" Extluding invest ments in shares in subsidiaries and joint ventures,
*“including property, ptant and eguipment, intangible assets, goodwill and acquired business.
Assets and Investments by geographicat location of the company for the year ended December 31, 2007
|{NOK 14 THOUSAND) USA Nonwg___mmptH_;_gﬂ_;yﬁgj,yamﬁ_gmm_;rgmu
Gooawtll 237700 346 409 215347 0 T99 456
Other rion cusfent assets” 4 937 441 6677 658 719670 -3 003 9% 9331670
Cash and cash equivalents 111061 5580 411 103 425 0 5794897
Othar current assets 527 081 2 467 283 430577 -1 636 385 1788556
Tax assets 15435 6 419 230758
Totai assets 484 357 14632 968 17 945337
Other non-currant Habllities 98746 107 299 38325 -11 299 233071
Non-current ltabllities, interest Hearing J 324189 1540 80& 384742 +2 610 590 2639147
Qther ¢urrent Habilitigs . 521040 1637 034 257 609 -374 335 2041 348
Current liabititias, Interest-bearing s} 1411 276 152 775 -1080 072 483 979
Tax liabitities 367142 462 299 20600 -49 308 790733
Purchass of non cursent assets™ 2693141 1156 966 348 303 0 4198410

* Excluding investments in shares in subsidiaries and joint ventures.

“tneluding property, plant and equipment, intangible assefs, goodwill and acquired business.
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Asseis and investments by geographical locatlon of the company for the ysar ended Cecember 31, 2006

TINOK IN THOUS AND) USA NORWAY OTHER __ ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
Goodwill 274780 Ja6 409 171 095 0 792284
Other non current assats* 2766824 4 161 567 348324 2171764 5104951
Cash and cash aquivalents 430914 6721 382 1232582 0 7275548
Other current assets 462090 1991 296 424911 -1332 602 . 1545695
Tax assats 59323 115725 3054 -116 037
Totai assets 3993931 13336379 107
Other non—current llabllities 210321 71 808 40096 *17 005 305220
Non-currert liabliities, interast bearing 22269046 2012 505 45556 -1 785 690 2498 417
Other current flabilities 295548 717 406 280126 -a85 Q77 808003
Current llablilties, interest-bearing 0 718598 176 053 -748 833 145818
Tax llabities 273198 243 385 24 464 -154 479 386568
Purchase of non gurrent assats™ 453392 1155623 463 284 0 ....2072299
* Excluding investments in shares in subsidiaries andjsint ventures.
“Including preperty, plant and equipment, intangible assefs, goodwill and acguired business.
Geographic distribution of external revenues based on customer locatlon :
[NOK I THOUS AND) o) 2006 2008
Germany 2298933 1427 255 1118007
Europa (excluding Germany) 1233140 455 066 120475
USA 620613 216 263 133615
Japan 1 567 167 1262 858 741170
Asia (excluding Japan 731694 737 695 314084
98 26562
2453916
Geographic distribution of sxternal revenues based on company location —
FNOK I THOUSANOD). _ [3067] 2008 2003
Norway 3 866 693 2086776 . 1 466 399
Sweden 1081274 837 160 324569
usa 1313108 1388 866 652711
Qther countries 380968 21279 10236
Total revenues ..0642043 4334072 ...2453816,
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i6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1

reererremred/m s o re T LAND AND WACHINERY AND OTHER TANGIBLE  ASSETE UNDER

A(NOK 1N THOUSAND) BUILDINGS EQUIPHMENT  FIXED ASSETS CONSTRUCTION 'n:n.iu.JI
Carrying value at January 1, 2006 623075 2344 726 157722 235 681 3361204
Exchange dlfferences 25 458 *122 285 ‘11574 -2 595 -161 912
Acqusition of business 30949 85 016 2757 78 911 197 633
Nat aaditions 410638 865517 12027 308 790 1596972
Disposals -93 2 992 -1327 0 4412
Dapraciatien -33 883 271 628 28 366 0 -333877
Impalrment U S § 98- 396 9 ;11807
Larrying value at December 31, 2006 1005228 2886853 130933 620787 4643801
At December 31, 2006 .

Cost price 1078504 3 488 996 208399 620 787 5396 686
Accumulated depreclation/lmpalrment 73276 602 143 77466 0 -752 885
Carrying value at December 31, 2006 1005228 2886 853 130933 620 787 4643 801 |
Carrying value at January 1, 2007 1005228 2 886 8513 130933 620 787 4643801
£xchange differences 56 963 228 973 -11 668 <243 378 540982
Net aaditions : 435284 910 414 22511 2662 217 4030426
Disposals 666 2716 -2 104 o] -5 486
Depreciation 51 488 -404 323 26 186 0 -481 597
Impairment -455 9613 191 0 10859
Carrylng value st December 31, 2007 1330940 3151 642 112 695 3039 626 7634903
‘At Dgcember 31, 2007

Cost price 1 452 682 4079 90S 184535 3039 626 8756748
Accumulated depreciation/impalrment 1121742 928 263 *71 840 0 -1121845
Carrylng value at December 31, 2007 1330940 112 695 3032 626 7634903

Acquisitian of business in 2006 was related to EverQ, see nole 9.

Estimated usefu lives of assets included in the different ¢lasses are primarily in the range of. buildings 5-33 years; machinery and equipment
3-20 years and other tangibfe fixed assets 3-7 years. The effects of the annual analysis of the useful fves resudfted in @ minar increase in
depreciation for 2007 and 2008,

Flnance leases st December 31 __

TNOH IN THOUSAND) —aap 2006)
Cost - capitallzed tinance leases 333 068 145793
Agcumulated depreciation -26 335 8417
carrying value 306 733 137376
Land and buildings 233 687 30119
Machinery and equisment 70170 104835
Other 2876 2422
306 73; 137376

Finance leases at Decermber 31, 2007 were primarily lease of production equipment for recovery of exhausted slurry for REC Wafer and the
lease of 8 new cell plant in REC ScanCell.

Slurry is the cutting fluid used when sawing silicon blocks into wafers. The plant is built adjacent to REC Scanwafer's plants at Hereya, Narway,
The agreement is a capacity agreement where REC Wafer is expected ta take afl of the output of the plant (see nate 29}. The finante lease
elernents of the agreement are for the machinery and are fixed according to the total capital expenditures incurred and may increase for any
further capital expenditure. The carrying value was NOK 70 million at December 31, 2007. The minimum contract term for the total contract was
extended in 2007 and is until December 31, 2018, and shall be prolonged automatically for twa-year pericds unfess terminaled by either party
with twelve months notice. The assets under the financial (ease are paid over 7 years, and are depreciated over the shorter of estimated useful
lives and the (ease term.

The new cell plant was completed at the end of 2007, The minimurm contract term is until 2022. The lease agreement has a renewal oplion of
two periods of five years each, and the lease agreement contains a purchase option in the third year. The carrying value was NOK 233 million at
Oecember 31, 2007.

Finance leases at December 31, 2006 were primarily [ease of plant and equipment for recovery of exhausted slurry for REC Wafer, In 2007 the
estimate was revised, and the finance Iease element was reduced by NOK S0 milfion.
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

N

! ASSETE UNDER CUSTOMER
i(NOK IN THOUSAND) GOODWILL CONSTRUCTION RELATIONSHIPS OTHER TOT.ALW‘
Carrying value at January 1, 2006 634945 41 742 133 445 84g 069 894 201
Exchange differences 12219 -3 168 -8 483 3199 27 069
Acqusition of business 169558 0 0 57 124 226682
Effect final PPA 0 0 26553 0 26553
Nat additions 0 0 4] 2 436 2 436
Internal devalopment 0 23 707 Q 0 23707
Disposals 0 v -1576 -113 -1 689
AMOTHZAUON. e sttt st o . 9 e
Carrying value at Pecember 31, 2006 192284 62 281
At December 31, 2006
Cost price 792 284 62 281 166 571 1142879
Accumulateg amortization o] 0 -56 863 95645
Larrying va 182284 62281
Carrying vaiue at January 1, 2007 792 284 62 281 109 708 1047 234
Exchange differgnces -42 833 3519 -4 581 67 663
Effect final PPA 50005 4] 0 50005
Net additions 0 317 67 459 67776
Internal devalopment 0 14518 35 670 | 50188
Disposals 4] ]
o

675497
Al Dacember 31, 2007
Cost price 799 456 67 597 105314 275 359 1247726
Accumulated amortization 0 qQ 39143 -152.768 -i91911
Carrying value at Decamber 31, 2007 799 456 67 597 66171 122 691 1055815

Acquisition of business in 2006 was related Lo EverQ, see note 9. Effect of final purchase price allocation (PPA)} was refated to ASiMI and SGS
in 2006 and EverQ in 2007, see notes 30 and 9. Cost price and accumulated amortization in 2006 were affected by the final PPA of ASIMI and

SGS, see note 30.

The intangible assets included abave have estimated finite useful fives, over which the assets are amortized an a siraight-line basis.

Intangible assets under construction are not ready for their intended use, and consequently amortization has not started. At December 31,
2007 and 2006, assets under canstruction refated primarily to the Fluid Bed Reactor technolagy in REC $GS. Customer relationships are
amartized over the expected customer redatianship period. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, customer refationships were primarily refated

to pre-existing refationships at the time of acguisition of ASIMI and SGS, and are amartized over a period of 10 {a 16 years. Negative vafue of a
delivery contract is reported as a liahilily, see note 20. Other intangible assets at December 31, 2007 were primarily related to Silane technalogy
in REC Silicon {3 years), furnace technofogy in REC Wafer {10 years} and software (3-8 years). At December 31, 2006 it also included order
backlog in EverQ that was fully amaortized during 2007,

Impalrment test goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating units or groups of cash-generaling units at Cecember 31, in each segment identified as follows:

Carrying_amount of goodwill at December 31

J{NOK IN THOUSAND) - - S o]
REC Siticon 237 702 274781
REC ScanWater 330001 330001
REC SITech 12 324 12324
REC Solar - REC ScanCall, Solar Visien and HanBit Solar 4179 4082
EverQ* 215 250 171096
Totat REC Group 799 456 792 284

* EverQ was acquired with effect at December 19, 2006. EverQ is a jaintly controlled entity that is accounted for using proportionate consalidation. At December
14, 2007 the final purchase price allocation was completed, see note 9.

The changes in the carrying amounts of geodwill during 2007 were primarify due {e translation differences and the final purchaée price

allocation of EverQ.

Recoverable amounts for the cash-generating units (group of units) are based an value in use. Value in use has been estimated by discounted
cash flows. Business plans approved by the management have been used in the calculation. EBITDA less capital expenditure has been used
as estimates of cash flows. The cash flows do not inciude effects frorn expansion and enhancement investments that are not committed and
where canstruction has naot started. Cash flows and discount rates are pre-tax.
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The business plan periad is four years. To arrive af the estimated recoverable amaunt, the REC Group would normally use an estimated stable
cash flow and a growth rate factar to estimate a terminal value. The carrying value of goodwill and cash generating units in the REC Group are
low comparad to the fair values of the cormpany and its cash-generating units, Much of the sales for the coming years are already contracted
For the impairment test at year-end 2006 for the subsidiaries, the discounted cash flows far the business plan pericd of four years significantly
exceeded the carrying amaunts of the cash generating units. Consequently, the REC Group did nat need o determine a growth rate to be

used in the calculations at December 31, 2006, At year-end 2007, the cash flow estimates for the business plan period of four years include
significant capital expenditure far some of the cash generaling units. For these a growth rate factor of zero has been usedin the calculations at
Decernber 31, 2007 to estimate a terminal value. This is below the average expected growth rate for the photovoltaic (PV} industry. The lower
growth rate reflects that prices are expected to decline until grid parily is reached, At the same time it is expected that cost savings will be
realized through the value chain, among other things due fo these price reductions,

Key assumptions are defined as those to which the units' (group of unils} recoverable amounts are most sensitive. Based on the analysis
performed, the management's opinion is that there are no key assumptions at December 31, 2007, for which the recoverable ameunts are
sensitive when comparing to the careying amounts. Generally, in the current situation the PVindustry is dependent on government incentives
ta the end users and is also affected by market interest rates. Critical factars and key assumplions would be development in prices and cost
reductions aver fime tc be competitive to ather saurces of energy. Cost reduction depends on further technological developrnents and future
investrents. Such investments and effects have been included in the current estimation of recoverable amaunts if they relate to assels under
construction at year-end 2007, Future cash ftows that relate to assels under construction are sensitive to successful completion acgording to
plan and budget as well as successful implementaticn af technelegical innavations embedded in these.

The discount rates are based on Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC). The cost of a cormpany's market value of deb! and equity capital,
weighted accordingly ta reflect its capital struciure, gives its WACC. The WACC rates used ta discount future cash flows are based on 10 years
risk free rates in the refevani markets and take into accaunt the debt premium, market risk premium, gearing and asset beta. The REC Group
has been listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange from May 2006, and has from the same period in time been fully equity funded(net cash pasition).
The factors used to cafculate WACC could change over time. The pre-tax discount rates used in the different markets for 2006 were above 9
percent The pre-tax discount rates used for 2007 for the US and German markets are in the mid-part of 9 percent For Norway, the pre-tax
discount rate is increased to 10 percent at Decernber 31, 2007, primarily due to increase in the risk free rate and the market risk premium.

i8. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

HNOK 1N, THOUSAND) Fa 2008
At January 1 52 658 58 150

Share of 10§ In assoclates® -26 552 -18330

Impalrment . -18 913 o]

Totalloss and impalrmernt -45 485 -18330

Invastmaent In associates ® 3309 11772

Exchangae difference -1 954 1066

At December 31 B 548 52 658

Y Share of lossis after tax and minority interest of associates. .

IFpr 2007 the number is equity part af convertible loan.

Far 2007 and 2006, the only assaciale was CSG Salar AG.

100% figures for the assoclate CSG Solar AG (Germany) areas follows = .

[(NOH 1N THOUSAND) o 2006
Assels 428 764 519060

Liabllitles 319921 293 586

Ravenues 7 866 241

Loss -124 Q45 -80 899

Interast hald/voting rights at December 31 21.7T1% 21.71%

In February 2008, the REC Group reduced its ownership in CSG Sofar AG Lo approxinmately 9 percent by not ulifizing its subscription rights in full
in a capitalincrease in CSG Sofar AG.
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[9. JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES {

EVERQ GMBH
Effective fram December 19, 2006, the REC Group intreased its ownership in EverQ GrbH from 15 percent {0 33.33 percent. From this date,
EverQ becarne ajointly controlled entity of the REC Group and is proportionately consolidated in the consclidated financial staternents of REC.

The purchase price allecation was finalized at December 14, 2007, After discussions between the ventures the total cost price for the REC
Group for the acquisition of the addibional 18.33 percent share was NOK 384 miflion, of which NOK 303 millien was paid in cash in 2006 and
the remaining in 2007, The effect of the final purchase price allocation was anincrease in cost price of NCK 79 million that was allocated as
increased cash and cash equivalents af NOK 52 million, increased goodwill of NOK 50 million and increased values of net assets recognized to
equity of NOK 23 million, The final purchase price allocation had no effect on the income statement for 2007 ar 2006, and the changes in the
balance sheet amaunts were recagnized in 2007,

EverQ was founded in December 2004 and manufactures solar modules based on String Ribbon Technefogy. EverQ is based in Thathelm,
Germany. EverQ's first factory started production medio 2006, and the second factory started production in first quarter 2007, A third factory
is under construction, REC ASA, Q-Cells AG and Evergreen Solar Inc, jointly control the operabons of EverQ. In Qclober 2007 the three partners
signed a binding Memarandum of Understanding to prepare far an (PO of EverQ.

Betalls at the time of acqulsition taking into account the final purchase price allocation

ANORIN.THOUSANDY. . ]
Cost price acquisition from 15%t0 33.33% 383509
Cafrylng value of the Initial 159 sharaholding 37114
Increased values of net assets racorded to equity 100227
O L33 3 e ———— 520850
Estimated fair value of nat assets (33.33%) . 301 299
GOOAWII 219551

The gaedwill anising from the acquisition of EverQ is refated ta the anticipaied profitability of its operations and technology hedge for the REC
Group. Estimated fair value of net assets included estimated intangible assets of NOK 57 million, primarily related to order backlog that was fully
amortized during 2007.

The amounts in the tables below represent REC Group's 33.33 percent share of EverQ that was includead in the income statements, cash flow
statements and balance sheet iterns. The amounts include goadwill and fair vafue adjusiments.

Balance sheet items

"INOK IN THOUS SND - T i R 2006)
Ownership at Dacember 31 33.33% 33.33%
MNon-current assets (incl. geodwill) 767 177 435171
Current assets J64 655 260355
Total assets 1131 832 695526
Non-currernt liabilities 390 193 46676
Gurment llabltitles 250,303 223 835
oAl I eS e 640496 . 270511
Profitandtoss e .
{(ROK IN THOUSAND) P00 2006 |
Qwnership in the periog 33.33% 33.33%:
. from Dac. 19,
Ravenues 371 a13 9 865
Expenses =389 936 9519
Net linancial itams -15 499 -a7
Income taxes 12 990 ‘185
Profit/1oss after income tax 21 032 6d
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Cash flow

INOKINTHOUSANDy — —— "ttt T T T 2008
Ownership In the pertod 33.33% 33.33%
from Dac, 19,
Net cashflow from operating activities :30.545 699
<368 147 - 112192
380 146 -19 384
<18 548 -38 568
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 122 194 0
Cash and cash equivalents at the date of acquisiton o] 157921
Forelgn currency effect on cas 3976 2841
99672 122194
Net cash payment o e e B
TONOK N THOUS AN i N 2000 2006
Payment for the increasein share from 15% to 33.33% paid in cash -80 665 -302 844
Ca 1

SOLAR GRADE SILICONLLC

In 2004 and up to August 1, 2005 Safar Grade Sitican LLC (SGS) was a jointly controlfed entity of the REC Group and was proportionately
consolidated in the consolidated financial staternents of REC. At August 1, 2005 SGS becarme a wholly owned subsidiary of the REC Group.
The amounts in the table belaw represent the REC Group's 70 percent share that was included in the income statement for 2005,

Profit and toss

[{NOK IV THOUSAND) 7008
Ownership in the period 70% for 7 months
Revenues ) 215860
Expenses -162 203

110. INVESTMENTS IN SHARES (ACCOUNTED FOR AS AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS) |

O N TR AN e ——————————————_—_ g 2008
At January 1 1126 38190
Transfer toointly cortrolled entity/subsidlary ¥ 0 37114
Additlons 111 50
At Dacember 31 1237  ° 1126

¥ The investment in EverQ became 2 jointly contralled ertity in 2006,

111. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B
Fair values at Decembery?

{ 3307 2006 ‘]
LMK IN THOUSAND) ASSETS LIABILITIES ASSETS LIABILITIES |
Interest rata swaps 0 438 0 0
Forelgn exchange forward contracts 92 918 92070 a2 052 95263
Embeddad foreign exchange forward contracts 9 613 855 0 52778
Total 92 918 706 363 42 052 148041
-.of which designated as hedging instruments® 15 183 51649 88:0 142 820

* Including any ineffective part. See the consolidated statement of recognized income and expense for the effective part,

Derivatives are used extensively to reduce exchange rate risk in the REC Group. The REC Group manages the hedging of net cash flows exposed
to exchange rate risk as a pactfolia on the basis of anticipated future cash flows. EverQ uses interest rate swaps to convert floating interest rate
to fixed interest rate. See note 3 for information on the REC Group's general policy far covering of currency risk and interest rate risk.
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Foreigr: exchange forward contracts at Cecember 31,2007°

{NOTiONkL AMOUNTS iN CURRENCY THOUSAND

Pl
EUR Flax. Fwd TZ26 840
EUR Fwed 25960
UsoD Flex. Fwd 100 000
ysD Fod 133000
Tota) forward sates NA
EUR Flex. Fwd 13 450
EUR Fwd 7 900
usd Flax. Fwd 116540
CHF Flex. Fwd 66432
CHF Fwd 170
GaP Flex, Fwd 1591
Total forwarg purchases NA

Forclqn exchange farward contracts at December 31, 2006™

NOTIONRL AMOQUNTS N CURRENCY THOUSAND

7008,

EUR Swap 30910
EUR Flax. Fwd 363 540
EUR Particip. Fwd 52 000
usD Swap 3 463
ush Flex. Fwd 24133
USD i Feed 9600
Total forward sales o NA
EUR Swap 30910
EUR Flex. Fwd 5530
usD Swap 3463
usp Flex. Fwd 150 000
usp Fwd 40 452
Ush Flax. Fwd 94 480
CHF Fwd 1270
CHF Flex. Fwd 7120
Tota) (orward purchasas NA

| CONTRACTURL CASH FLOWS IN NOK THOUSAND EQUIVALENTS A
: TOTAL 2008 200% 2010/
5882 254 2763374 1664 4B0 1 454 400

214 897 214897 0 0

561 600 561 600 0 0
731276 731276 0o 0
7390027 4271147 1 664 480 1.454 400

106 635 83215 23 420 0

60 745 60745 0 0

709 243 709 243 0 0

337 507 289383 48 124 0

8%4 894 o 0

90 754 72416 18,338 0
1305778 1215896 89 882 0

TRACTUAL CASH FLOWGS IN NOKTHOJSANOENVALENTS

TOTAL 007

255 547 40650 214 897
2899776 1 765 060 1134 716
428 376 428 376 o]
21 362 21362 0

145 764 145764 0 -
63719 63719 0
3814 b44 2 464931 1349613
253 383 253 383 o]
44 682 39430 5 252
21 448 21448 0
911 250 609 000 302 250
268 443 268 443 0
609 165 244169 364 996
6 608 5714 8%a
37.629 31763 5 866

2 152 608 1 473 350 679 258 -

* For {lexible and participating forwards there is an option o use the forward rate as fong as the spot exchange rates are within defined bands within defined
time periods. To arrive fo the amounts in the fables above the forward rates in the contracts are used.,

To cover currency exposures, the REC Group has used currency swaps (swap), oulright forward contracts (fwd), participating forward contracts
(particip. fwd) and flexible forward contracts (flex. fwd). An outnight forward transaction has the exchange rate fixed on the ceniract trade date.

Flexible farward contracts and participating forward contracts are outright forward contracts combined with an option element.

The fareign exchange forward contracts are entered into in arder to hedge sales revenues, expenses and investments in REC ScanWafer AS,
REC SiTech AS and REC ScanCell AS. In 2007 REC ASA has used foreign exchange forward contracts, total amount USD 233 million at Gecember

3, 2007, to hedge USD bank deposits, USD money markets funds and USE intercompany loans.

In 2006 REC ASA enteredinta flexible forward currency contracts for the purchase of USD 200 miliion o hedge a portion of the-future
investments in the new palysifican plant in Moses Lake, WA, USA. Qulstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was USD 50 miflicn and 150

million, respectively.

Embedded foreign exchange forward contracts at December 3, 2007
'CONTRACTUAL CASH FLOWS (IN NOK THOUSAND ZQUIVALENTS): =

]NOTIOHAL AMOUNTS (IN USD mouunm

TOTAL

2008 2009

2010

2011

2012 LATER]

Total contract value®

1613045

9772959

689 352

1547 450

1745939

1932242

1438229 2419747

Embudd!d foreign exchange forward contracts st chembar a1, 2006

‘HOTIONAL AMOUNTS {IN USD TNOUBAHD

Total contract vaiug*

'388 266

CONTRACTUAL CASH FLOWS (N Nok THOUSAND EQUIVALERTS: =~~~ "~ 7
TOTAL 2007 2008 2009 LATER,
2 368 488 155388 31a757 479 163 1412180

“ Forward purchase of USD

“NCK amounts are based on the forward exchange rates at the fime of entering into the commaodity sales contracts, which are Ehe basis for separation and
valuatien of the embedded derivatives.
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REC wafer has entered into sales contracts in USD which are not in the functional currency of either of the cantracting parties. For accounting
purposes this shall be reported as if the commodity sales contracts were in NOK and farward purchases of USD shallbe separated and fair
valued (embedded derivatives). This accounting treatment has na cash flow effect. The reasan far entering info the sales cantractsin USD
was {Q provide ecanomic hedges of future purchases af palysilicon in USD inline with REC's finance palicy. Far 2007 these contracts were not
farmally designated as hedge and hedge accounting has not been used for 2007 For 2006, when the amounts were much fower, the majority
of these derivatives were designated as cash flow hedges.

Interest rate swap contracts (EverQ}

[CONTRACTWAL CASH FLOWS (PAYMENTS AT DEC, 31, 2007 GN NOK THOUSAND EQUIVALENTSS: = !
| TOTAL 2009 2 0
2639 777 449

* Eurointerest rate swaps converted to NOK at December 31, 2007 exchange rate,

At Decernber 31, 2006, the REC Group had no outstandng interest rate swaps.

HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Cash Flow Hedging

REC wafer had at Decernber 31, 2007 and 2006, cash flaw hedging activibies primarily refated to currency hedge of purchase of polysilicon in
USD and sale of wafers in EUR. The ineffectiveness recognized in the income staternent that arises from cash fiow hedges was 3 1ass of NOK 27
million in 2007 and a [oss of NOK 13 miifian in 2006. .

For the currency hedges at December 31, gog‘r, the ggqhﬂflpws are expected to oceur

icmmmc“irioﬁﬁﬁm NOK THOUSAND) EXPECTED CASH FLOW PROFILE AT DEC, 4L, 2007 (IN NOR THOUSAND EQUIVALENTSE: E
L

AT TOTAL 2008 2008, 2019,
Currency exchange contracts (forward sales) 5385 4558877 1439997 1664 480 1 454 400
Currency exchange contracts (forward purchasas) -41 413 -406 930 -406 990 0 [}
interest rate swaps -438 3 865 -2.639 177 -449
Total -36 466 4148022 1 030368 1663 703 1453951

fFor the currency hedges at December 31, 2006, the cash flows were expected to occur during 2007 and 2008.

The cash flows are expected {o affect prafit ar [oss in the same periods as they occur. There are no forecasted cash flow transactions for which
hedge accounting was used in 2007 and 2006 which are no longer expected {0 occur.

12. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES i
NN THOUS AN T - A T zo08)
Trade receivables 694 088 T091%0
Less provision for Impalrmant of tradé recelvables =250 252
Trada receivables - net 693 838 708938
Prapayments 44 823 97 410
Qther recalvables 281 141
Total 1019 802
The REC Group had minimal losses on recavables,

e e e e e R - — _— - —_
113. INVENTORIES |
(NOKINTHOUSAMDY o e, il i T ane]
Raw materials etc. 482 463 348784
Work In prograss 95 376 72612
Finished goods 83 496 92522
Reserve fof obsolescancs ... $.179 8463
Total 655 165 508 455
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'14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED BANK ACCOUNTS i

[(NOK 1N THOUSAND) v )
Bank deposits 2072 al0 1671 490
Mongy Market Funds 3722 487 5604 058
Total cash and cash equivalerts 5794 897 7275548

The average effective interest rate on bank deposits at the end of 2007 was 4.5 percent (2006: 3.6 percent), Bank depasits have an average
maturity of less than 30 days.

The Maney Market Funds are managed by REC relationship banks that invest primarily in high quality commercial papers with an average
duration of maximum three manths. The Money Market Funds are expected to give a vield that approximates the reference index STiX (3
manths Norwegian gavernment paper}. The funds under management are available on demand.

During 2007, a certain portion of the cash and cash equivalents was held as USD bank depaosits and US Gavernment Securities Money Market
Funds in preparation for making intragroup {0ans in USD and in arder to camply with the US 1940 Investment Companies Acl.

in 2006, the REC Group established a cash pool systern with Nordea Bank for the Nardic REC entities. Under this agreement, REC ASA is the
Group account holder, whereas the other companies in the Group are sub-account halders or participants. The bank can offset overdrafts
against depesits, so that the net position represents the net balance between the bank and REC ASA. At December 33, 2007 and 2006, the net
balance in the cash pool system was NOK 208 miflion and NOK 115 million, respectively, included as part of bank deposits.

Bank deposits at December 33, 2006 included NOK 13 million for REC shares that were issued in 2007,

in 20086, the REC Group established a guarantee through Nordea Bank to Basrum Kommune covering employee tax deductions in REC ASA,
REC Scanwafer, REC Sitech and REC ScanCell. At the end of 2007, NOK 34 million was outstanding under this guarantee.

in the Limited Liability Agreement {the "LLC Agreement"} of REC Advanced Silican Materials LLC (ASiMI), there are various provisions that are
intended fo protect Komatsu America Corporation's retained interest in ASiMI, see nole 30. Amang other things, the LLC Agreement prahibits
ASiMI and REC Silican Inc. from pooling funds with those of any other person or entity. At Decernber 31, 2007, REC Silicon had bank deposits
equal to NOK 111 million, in addition to restricted bank accounts of NOK 361 million. These funds were not generally available for the REC Group
as a whole. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, cash and cash equivalents of EverQ were NOK 100 millian and NOK 122 miilion, respectivly (REC's
33.33 percent share}

Restricted bank accounts

ROK N THOUSAND) - (310 208!
Current 20671 0
Non-currer 340774 141991

361 445 141991

REC Sificen has pledged a cash deposit of USD 201 milfion at December 31, 2007 (USD 227 million at Decemnber 34, 2006) for cerfain property
{ax paymen! obligations, see note 29.

REC Silican received prepayments of USD 87 million in May 2007 from EverQ refated to a long-term palysilicon delivery agreement. Of this
amount, USD 45 million plus accumulated interest is held in an escrow account and restricted from general use by REC. The amounts shall be
refeased according to defiveries of polysilicon, expected to start during 2008.

vl fpar) XOR
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'15. EQUITY AND SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

- L ATTRIBUTABLE TOEQUITY HOLDERSOF RECASA  —  — ™~ ™1
[_.__“, o T o T - ) T RECOGNIZED Tt 'HW‘___'_"“‘:
! BHARE TREASURY SHARE OTHER PAID TOTAL PAID OTHER IHCOME & HINORITY TOTAL '
LNOK IN THOUSAND) CAPITAL  SHARES _  PREMIUM INCAPITAL INCAPITAL  EQUITY _ EXPENSE TOTAL.. INTEREST ___ EQUITY.
At January 1, 2006 304319 -225 453248 283056 1040398 114 624 102 913 1257935 0 1257935
Share Issue/initiai
publi¢ offering 73 000 0 6733528 0 6806528 1] 0 6806528 0 6806528
Shares paid not issusd 154 0 12 975 13129 0 0 13129 o] 13129
Conversion of
convertibig loan 116 853 0 1066938 0 1183791 0 0 1183791 0 1183791
Falr value effect on
convertible foans 0 0 o Q 0 1323867 0 1323867 0 1323867
Tax on far value effact
on convertilaioans 0 0 ¢ 0 o] -370683 0 370683 0 370683
Treasury shares
transactions o] 225 9] 0 225 3302 0 3e27 0 3527
Total recognized
Income and expensa 8] Q 4] Q [¢] 0 418424 418 424 g 418424
At Dacember 31, 2006 494 326 G 8266689 283066 9044070 1071110 521 337 10836517 0 10636517
Repayments for
shares not Issued -11 o] 905 0 916 0 0 9186 4] 916
Transaction with minority 0 0 4 0 0 Q ¢} 0 461 461
Total recognized
In¢ome ang expense 0 .5 0 0 9 01121112 1121112 15 1120997

B265785 287066 9043156 1071110 1642449 11756713 346 11757.089

Shara capital at December 31, 2006 includes 153,559 shares paid not issuad,

At December 31, 2007, the REC Group had 10 600 sharehalders. The total number of oulstanding shares at December 31, 2007 was 494 314725
each with a par value of NOK 1. At Decernber 31, 2006, the total number of outstanding shares amounted to 494171 882 each with a par value
of NOK1,

On the Annual General Meeting (AGM) on April 20, 2006, the shares in REC ASA were split 1:20 (effected on April 21, 2006), bringing the
number of oulstanding shares to approximalely 421 milion. Subsequently o this, the company carried out 3 major share issue in connection
withits initial public offering. The share issue increased the number of shares by 73 miflion, resulting in gross proceeds {0 REC ASA from the
offering of NOK 6 928 million (NOK 6 820 millicn net, after tax). The share issue was aversubscribed, and attracted interest from a significant
amount of investors both internationally and in Norway. At the time of thelisting on May 9, 2006, REC ASA had appraximately 22,000
shareholders, compared with [ess than 300 sharehalders in the beginning of 2006.

The following shareholders had 1 percent of more of the total outstending shares In REC ASA at December 31

2004
NAME OF SHAREHOLDERS NO.OF SHARES OWNERSHIP ~ NO.OF SHAREE
Elkem AS 115935 300 23.45% 115935 300
Q-Calls AG 84 956 767 17.19% 0
Orkla ASA 80 489 700 16.28% 20000 000
Harslund Venture AS 70411 520 14.24% 105411520
State Street Bank and Trust Co. 24 3992 083 4.94% 12 682 144
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 8205 875 1.66% 5266 191
Sumitomo Corporation 5139000 1.04% 6 652 Q00
Good Energles Investments BV, o] 0.00% 169 801 900
JP Morgan Chase Bank 0 0.00% 5986 650

At the AGM held on May 14, 2007, the Board was granted the authority ta increase the share capital by 8 maximum of .
49,000,000 shares in one or mare issuances and at a subscription price per share to be fixed by the Board in connection with each issuance.
The authority is valid until the next AGM, but in any case maximum 15 months,

Al the AGM hefd on May 14, 2007, the Board was authorized to repurchase up to 10 percent of the face value of the Company's share capital af a
price per share of between NOK 10 and NOK 300, This authorizabion is valid for 18 manths from the date of the AGM ¢runtilitis rescinded by a
resofution of a subsegquent AGM.



16. MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION, LOANS AND SHAREHOLDINGS v -
According to the Norwegian Pubtic Limited Companies Act § 6 163, the Board of Directors shall establish a specific declaration regarding
determination of salary and other compensafion to leading empioyees. Alsa, according to the Norwegian Public Limited Company Act § 5:6 (3},

an advisory voling on the Board of Directer's guidefines for determining executives' compensation for the upcoming fiscal vear shalf be held at
the General Meeting. Hf the guidelines include share based payment schemes, such schernes must afso be approved by the General Meeting,

Salary and other compensations for 2007 and 2006 are addressed below. In regards ta determination of salary and other compensation
for [eading employees for the upcoming fiscal year, the Board of Directars wili propose guidelines for the General Meeting 2008 that indude
factors mentianed befaw, |

The quality, skills and dedicatian of senior executives, key leaders and professionals are crifical factars affecting the long-term value of REC. ‘
Hence, key compensation goals are to attract, develop and retain such strong talent and proven high performers, reward past achievements,
and incent future perfarmance. Compensation packages should be put together 10 support this,

Base Salary level shauld be determined locally and reflect local market average level for correspanding positicns and qualifications in refevant
businesses.

Performance banus shauld be considered and provided for selected individuals whose achievement of performance abjectives can be
measured through clearly defined results parameters within areas that the individual by viriue of his or her paosition, gualifications and
performance can influence,

REC offers supplementary pension schemes Lo ernployees in accordance with normal standard for similar companies, see below andnote 19,
Effective January 1, 2007, REC offers an additional supplementary deposit based pension scheme (contribution plan} ko Norwegian employees
with base salary (evel above 12 G.

In addition to the abave mentioned compensaticn campanents, REC offers a car allowance, phone coverage and a fimited number of ather
benefits to selected employees.

{n case REC has a need to terminate employment contracts, or there is a common understanding between REC and the employee thal the
employment contract should be terminated, a severance payment will be negatiated on an individual basis.

in addition to base salary and performance banus, REC's compensation plan for 2007 aiso included a Long Term incentive Plan (LTIP) as
explained further below For 2008, at the annual General Meeting (AGM} 2008 the REC Board will propose a new stock aption pragram for
execulives, key (eaders and employees, as a replacement for the LTIP. The program is struciured in such a way that potentiaf individual prafit
cap frarn the option program during any ane year should be limited fram 1 to 2 years fixed salary (FS). The prafit cap should be differentiated
through the establishment of 3 participant categeries that determines the participant's maxirnum profit cap.

The nurmber of options allocated for 2008 wilt be establisned based on the patential prafit cap of 1 to 2 years of FS, earned cver the 6 year
program duration, and based on the folfewing assumptions: 1) The REC stack price development outperforms the Osfo Steck Exchange (OSE)
by 25 percent, assuming an OSE annual average of 10 percent 2) Strike price for the option to be calculated as the average trading price on the
first trading day after the AGM. in 2008, strike price shoufd be +5 percent due to [ate approval of the program (May 2008). Strike price will be
adusted for extraordinary dividends (not normal dividends).

The first 3 years will be considered a fock-up period Exercising of oplions can take place in the 4th, Sth and 6th year, with 4 exercising periods
per year. These periods wilf be 14 days after presentation of the quarterly inferim results. Options not exercised are fost upon termination of
emplayment contract

There will be an annual afllocation, with Board of Director's approval each individual year. The Board will ask the AGM far allacations and
authorizations to support the 2008 program. The fotal stock option program should at any time nat exceed 1 percent of the total number of
outstanding shares, fully diuted




Compensatior of the Group manag_sﬂent for 2007 1w

F‘&Trﬁs’m NOK OF NOT OTHERWISE STATED) BASE BONUS PENSION OTHER TAKABLE
NAME SALARY 5} LARRED 1) LTIP 2) BENEFITS 3 BENEFITS &
ETIK Thorsan 2 999038 1275 000 o] 834 104 232 Q25
Prestdent and CEQ . . oo mossmsmsss s oo e s o 50% 0% '
Raldar Langmo 116 667 0 0 16 794 36999
Senlor Vice Prosident? NA 0%

John Andersen 2 080386 735000 1050000 251 546 128993
Executive Vice Prasident and €007 U - . . BOH.ocsrreesee s
Erik Sauar 1685679 527 000 850000 184 490 T4 750
Senlor Vice Prasident and CTO 40% 50%

Goran Bye USD 325000 USD 126 G0 975000 USD 48 893 UsD 15000
Exacutive Vice President S0%: 50%.

Ingelise Arntsen 1053032 500 000 0 177 638 586911
Exacukive Yice President™ S0%, 0%,

Blern Brenna 2028 489 803 000 1 000 Q0O 371 694 178 437
Exacutive Yice President and CFO 50% 30

Svanaug Bergland 1104 4713 374 000 440 000 281 423 133808
Senior Vice Presidant 409 40%

Jon Andre Lokke 1161280 273 800 342 000 127 128 147 447
Senior Vice President 30% 30%

Einar Kiice 166 667 0 Q 28730 410 452
Executive Vice Prestgent Proleet s 30% 0%

Total 2Q07% 14 300536 5166386 4657000 2560007 2017738

Compensation of the Group management for 2006 and 200547

AMOUNTS IN NOK (F NOT OTHERWISE STATED) BASE BONUS PENSION OTHER TAXABLE
{NAWE SALARY 3) EARNED 1) BENEFITSZ  BENEFITE ).
Erik Thorsen 2511 750 1250 000 1276 394 226270
Prasident and CEQ

Reidar Langmo 1388103 177 992 148 637
B0 VI P T 0N, e . a0%, LA0%

£rlk Sauar 1320438 675000 126 228 &8 187
Semior Vice President and €TO S0%

Geran Bys UsSD 287 500 uUsD 115 000 975 000 UsD 17 145 UsD 15000
Exgcukive Vice President 40% 50%

John Andersen 1633114 - 825000 825 000 143 552 140759
Exacutlve Vice Prasident 50% 50%

Thor-Christlan Tuy 1152 351 450 Q00 345000 172 822 261971
Executive Vice Prasident 40% 30%

Bjern Brenna 1 500 000 1000 000 1 000 000 171818 140974
Exacutlve Vice Presidant and CFO S0% 50%

Svénaug Bargland 929059 300 000 300000 24 290 108 741
Senlor Vice Prosident 30% 30%

Jon Andre Leokke 1178317 330000 330000 131 946 290186
Senlor Vice Presidant 30% 0%

Total 2006* 13 457 016 5992 553 4543333 2 405 001 1481928
Total 20057+ 9714769 & 669 070 0 818 764 1021290

0 All amounts are excluthve of soclal security tas.
* Compensation ta Garan Bye inUSD has been calculated based on average USO/NOK exchange rate for the relevant years to arzlve to the tofal smounts in the tables. Bonys for 2007 Is
celcuiated based on year-end rate.

The guidafines for 2007 for determination of salary and other compensations for [eading employees has been as outlined above. tn addition,
for 2007 there was a Leng Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) as explained further below For 2008 this is suggested to be replaced by a share option
plan, as explained above. The only changes in the agreements for compensations for [eading employees durtng 2007 are adjustments of the
amounts, as shawn in the fable above, and the changes of the compasition of the Group management.

The bonuses are annual performance bonuses that are normally not to exceed the percentage of base salary as stated in the table. The
arnounts in the table above represent the banuses earned during the fiscal year, and are normally paid and reported as taxable inceme for
the employee in the subsequent year, The bonus is not included in the basis for holiday pay. The reasons behind the bonus scheme are to
award, incentivize, retain and atiract high talent and outstanding performance in business critical functions, taking both short and leng term
value creation into consideration,

The bonus amounts for 2005 include cash payments and sale of shares to Jon Andre Laldie and Thor-Christian Tuv as compensation for

a cash bonus program that had not been implemented for the years 2003, 2004 and 2005. The final agreements were entered into at

the turn of the year 2005/2006. The benefits were taxable for the empleyees in 2006 but reported in 2005 in the table as they related to
periods prior to 2006. The cash payments were NOK 2 500 000 for Mr. Lokke and NOK 1400 000 for Mr. Tuv. The reported taxabie benefit
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refated to their purchase of 2,817 shares each (befora split 120} in REC ASA at a price of NOK 200 per share, was NOK 153,435 each.

2} Certain of the REC Graup's emplayees are entitled to participate in the Company's Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIF), The LTI is a pfan under

which an “LTIP Paof" is set aside in the initial earnings year and then paid oui to efigible employees in three equal annual insiallments an
March | of each of the three subsequent years. If payments are made under the program, each LTIP participant is entitied to a share of the
LTIP Poal equal to her or his LTIP earning ratio, which ranges fram 15-50 percent of each employee's annual base salary. LTIP participants
are required 1o use 25 percent of each annual LTIP payment to purchase shares in REC ASA and to depasit the shares in an account at vPS
for the remainder of the three-year LTIP period (“LTIP period”} under which the LTIP payrment was made. [f an employee terminates their
emplayment befare the end of each LTIP periad, the remaining share of the unpaid LTIP Poal and all shares relating to the refevant LTIP pool
will be retained by the cormpany.

The LTIP pragram has an annual cap. The amounts included in the table represent the total benefits that are earned during 2006 and

2007, respectively , and that will be paid out in the thres subsequent years, as described above, provided the person is still employed by the
REC Group at the time of payment. The amounts are expensed in the income statement over a period of up ta four years. Reidar Langmo
resigned in 2007 and the amount in the {able for 2006 is reduced ta the paymentin 2007. The LTIP Paol far 2006 and 2007 is based on the
REC Graup's actual financiafl perfarmance compared to budgeted financial perfarmance. Due to the positive devefopment for the REC Graup
guring 2006 and 2007, the LTIP program reached the cap far both years. The LTiP is not inciuded in the basis for haliday pay. There was no
LTIP for 2005

The LTIP has been established as one driving force in developing the company, and ifs purpose is to award and incentivize oulstandng
performance and attract and retain strong talent in business criticaf funciions, Pariicular considerations will be given to cntical success
factors, such as long term value creation, continued growth and development of the REC Group's market andfor technolagical pasition,

3} The amounts in the tables for pension benefits include change in accumulated benefit abligation (ABO) for the year for defined henefit

chligations and additional defined contribution plans. ABQO is the net present value of pension benefits earnad based on the current pension
qualifying incorne. The Group management, except for Geran Bye, has pension benefits via REC's Group pension plan in Norway, see note
19.In general, REC's pension plan in Narway pravides for (ifetime retirement benefit coverage of 67 percent of pension qualifying income at
the time of retirement up to 12 G (see definifion in note 19} if the employee has fully earned (40 years) rights to social security payments as
retired. 1} includes sorne spouse, children and disabifity pensian rights. The amounts are calculated using the same assumptions as used in
note 19, excluding social securty tax.

Mr. Tharsen is entitfed fo annual retirernent pensian equal to 65 percent of his base safary at the time of retirement. As of January 1, 2007
his ermployment contract has been amended and the retirement age has been reduced from 67 years {0 65 years. Mr, Thorsen was included
in the Group's ordinary pension planin Narway a5 of August 1, 2006. The payment for coverage of the pension premium and related income
tax for My Tharsen's personal pension- and insurance scheme to cover the difference between REC's ordinary pension scheme and 65 percent
of base salary is reported in the table for 2006 with NOK 662 628, For 2007 it has been evatuated that this plan is a defined benefit plan.
The amounts for this individual plan for 2007 are included in the table for 2007 with NOK 587,846 that is the change in ABO reduced by
the pension premiurn and related income tax of NOK 662 628 paid in 2006, In 2006, Mr. Thorsen received a nonrecurring compensation of
NOK 500 C0O for his first year of emplayment due to absence of a persanal pension- and insurance scheme for this period, that is included
in the table for 2006.

As frarn January 1, 2007, the REC Group established an addtional pension plan far Norwegian empfoyees with salaries aver 12 G. The
plan pravides a contribution of 15 percent of base salary above 12 G per year of employment that is to te paic out upon retirement. it alse
includes some spause, chifdren and disability pension rights. The amounts in the tabfe for 2007 correspond o 15 percent of base salary
above 12 G at year-end agjusted for the number of menths of employment during the year. Geran Bye is not part of this program, and as
af January 1, 2007 Garan Bye is entitled ta an additicnal pension contribution from REC amounting to 15 percent of his base salary with a
decuction 0f12 G.

4) Cther taxable benefits include benefits like company car/coverage of automobile expenses/vehicle allowance, telephone and Internet

service, newspapers, health club mermberships, reimbursement of home-office related expenses and certain other benefits. The benefits
vary, and the amounts in the table are the ameounis that are reported as t3xable income in the relevant year, based an rules and regulations
in the relevant tax laws. Bonus and LTIP payments are not induded because earned bonus and LTiP are reparted separately.

The amounts for 2007 for Ingelise Arntsen and Einar Kilde include sign-an fees. Ingelise Arntsen has in addition received coverage of
expenses far commuting, which is not a taxable benefit and not included in the tabie.

There were no share based payment agreements in the REC Group in 2003, 2006 or 2007, except far the sale of shares as describedin 1}
above.

5} Base salary represents the amounts paid in the year, including holiday pay Base salary is normally adjusted at January 1. Bjgrn Brenna was

emplayed at March 1, 20086, Ingelise Arntsen was employed at June 1, 2007 and Einar Kilde was employed at December 1, 2007 and the base
safaries are for months of employment.

6} All amounts include payments and benefits from REC ASA and subsidiaries to the Group management. There were ne payments and

benefits from REC companies far services outside the function as Group management.

7} In the beginning of 2007, the following changes in the Group management tock place: John Andersen, Jr. was appointed EVPREC Sofar &
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Group COQ. Ingelise Arntsen was hired as new Executive Vice President at REC ASA effective June 1, 2007 with the responsibility to lead
REC's Wafer division. Thor Christian Tuv is not a member of the REC Group Management Team from January ), 2007 Reidar Langrno was
not a part of the Group management from February 1, 2007, At the end of 2007, Einar Kilde was employed as Executive Vice President
Projects.

8} During the years 2005, 2006 and 2007 rio payments were made, or benefits earned, for termination of empfoyment for any of the

members of the Group management.

The following members of the Group management have arrangements that entitle them to special benefits if the employment is terminated,
beyand the normal notice period of 6 months,

REC ASA may terminate Mr. Thorsen's employment cantract at any time and with immediate effect, upon payment of up 1o 3¢ months of
salary if the agreement is terminated within the first twa years of employment and 24 months of salary if the agreement is terminated after

the first twa years of employment. In the event of dismissal, Mr. Thorsen would be enfiffed to the first twelve months of the compensation,
but any amaunts in excess of this that he receives fram another employer would be deducted from the balance. ’

In the event Mr. Bye's contract is terminated by REC, he is entitled to a severance payment equal to six menths of his salary together with a
pension allawance, a vehide allowance and a bonus catculated on a pro rata basis, and an alfowance for his relocation 1o Norway.

In the event that Mr. Andersen's contract is terminated by REC, heis entitled ta a severance payment equal to six months of salary.

Mr. Brenna is entitled to a severance payment egual to 12 months af his salary if his contract is terminated In the event of dismissal, Mr.
Brenna wauld be entitfed to the first six months of the compensation, but any amounts in excess of this that he receives fram another
employer would be deckicted from the balance.

Ms. Bergtand is entiffed to two years' salary in the event of her early fermination. In the event of dismissal, Ms. Bergfand would be entitled to
the first twelve months of the compensation, but any amounts in excess of this that she receives from another ermployer would be deducted

from the balance.

In the event that Ms. Arntserts contract is terminated by REC, she is entitfed to a severance payment equal to six manths of her salary.

In the event that Mr. Lakke's contract is terminated by REC, heis entitied to a severance payment equal to six manths of his salary.

In the event that Mr. Sauar's contractis terminated by REC, he is entitfed to a severance payment equal to six months of his salary.

Except as noted above, no members of the Greup management or Board of Directors have service contracts with the REC Group that
provide for benefils upon termination of employment.

9} The Greup managerment for 2005 included; Erik Tharsen (7 rmonths), Alf Bjgrseth (5 manths), Bjern R Berntsen, Reidar Langmg, Erik Sauar,
Garan Bye (6 months), Tar Hartmann (& months), John Andersen Jr, Thor-Chnistian Tuy, Svanaug Bergland (2.5 months) and Jon Andre

Lkke.

Compensation of the Board of Directors

{AMOUINTS N NOW

NAME BOARD COMPENSATION » COMPENSATION FOR COMMITTEES 1%
Ola Enger 1@ 200 000 40 000
Tore Schietz 350 000 40000
ChristlanBerg™ 0 20000
marcel Egmond Brenninkmetjer 200 000 40000
Roar Engeland® 200 000 40000
Rune Bjerke 9 118 800 23760
Line Geheb 200 000 40000
Susanne Munch Thore 200 000 40000
Karen Helene Ulitvait-Mog'® 200000 40000
inger Johanne Solhaug'4 Y} 0
Total peried April 20, 2006 - May 14, 2007 1 668 800 323760
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[(AMOUNTS INNOK

INAKE BOARD COMPENSATION @ COMPENSATION FOR COMMITTEES 240
Tore Schietz . 300000 0
Marcek Brenninkmeljer 150 000 0
Ola Enger to 150000 37500
Roar Engaland 70060 14147
Runea Bjerks 150000 37500
Paul Kloppanborg'® 150000 37500
Richard Aa*? 79940 19985
Halvor T Svartdal '* 150000 37500
Karen Halene Utitvait-Mog?? 0 0
Ling Geheb+2 o o]
Susanne Munch Thora!? 0 0
1200000 184132
821288 62 500
Ordinary salary etc. for employee efected board members'™
[eAMOUNTS 1N N PENSION OTHER TAXABLE
Lu;\u: SALARY BONUS PAID BENEFITS BENEFITS
Mona Stensvik 14 266 499 12 895 14 446 9396
Rolf B. Nlisan'® 263 418 27652 15 525 2700
Jorn Mobak 14 285 29¢ 17 421 26 422 . o]
Rita Glenne *:® 580 855 o] T1 463 23727
uaoni Iren Kristlansen . 33871 0 7571 3376
Total palgd May 14 - December 31, 200‘.”a R 1429937 57968 135427 39199

10} The amounits in the table represent the amounts that were paidin 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively and that were approved by the
Annual General Meetings {(AGM} as compensation for the periogs between the AGMs. Compensation of the Board of Directors for the period
May 14, 2007 1o May 19, 2008, will be decided by the AGM on May 19, 2008.

11} Committees are: Audit Committee, Compensation Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and Normination Comm:ttee

12) Members effective fram May 9, 2006

13} Members up to the AGM April 20, 2006.

14} Members effective from the AGM May 14, 2007,

15} Member up {0 AGM May 14, 2007

16} Member up to December 22, 2006.

17} Rita Glenne did not participate in board meetings from December 1, 2007 and informed the board that she resigned as a board member,
Unni Iren Kristiansen has atiended the board meetings fram December 11, 2007 as a deputy baard member. Rita Glenne is included in the
table above for the period May 14 to Decemnber 11, 2007 Unnilren Kristiansen is included in the table above for the period December 11 to
December 31, 2007.

18) Compensation paid to the companies in which they are employed.

19) For the employee elected board members, their salaries, bonuses and other taxable benefits paid from May 14, 2007 are included It does
not include any bonuses and LTIR if any, paid before May 14 or after December 31, 2007 No board compensation or compensation for
commitiees has been paid in 2007 to employee elected board members,

None of the shareholder elected board members received compensation from any ather REC Group companies. Any compensatlon received by
ather companies cutside the REC Group is not included.

Loens and quarantees for employees and Board of Directors

Total ioans and guarantees fo employees amaunted to NOK 1.8 million and 2.5 millien at December 31, 2007 and 20086, respectively.

Gn July 8, 2009, the Campany loaned Erik Thorsen NOK 700 000, and on Oecember 8, 2005, the Company [aaned Svanaug Bergiand NOK
500 G00. The purpose of each of these (oans was to facifitate the barrower's purchase of a car. Each of the leans is interest and instafment free
for two years. The terms of the [oans have been extended. In each case, if the borrower resigns from the Company, the foan will become due
and payable. The loans are secured by martgage on their houses,

On August 1, 2005, the Company loaned Geran Bye USD S0 000 on an interest free basis, which was to be repaid by setting-off amounts owed
against his net annual banus payments, beginning in 2007. At year-end 2007 the lgan was fufly repaid

No Board member or other sharehafders than mentioned above, including their closely related parties had any [0ans or guarantees at
December 21, 2007 or 2006.
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Shareholdings, options and convertible bonds

The number of shares, aptions and convertible bonds ewned by members of the Board of Directors and the REC Group management, including
their closely refated parties, are shown in the table below. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, there were no aulstanding options or converlible
bonds. The table indudes those that were members at December 31, 2007 or 2006.

(- /0 00T/ 0 0 T m T T Tmw "_zooﬂ
INAME TITLE SHARES SHARES
Reidar Langmo ¢hrough Rebelijo Invest AS) Senlor Vice President NA® 2777720
Erlk Sauar (alse through Sauar tvast AS) Senior Vice President & (TO 367 270 696 460
Tora Schiatz (through Granhaug Industrier AS and Centurum AS) Board member 250 000 500000
Erlk Thorsen {also through Toleko AS) President & CEC 250 000 350000
John Andersen Jr. Exdcutive Vice President & COQ 133 975 133 480
Thor-Christian Tuy (through The Tuv AS) Executive Vice President NA?® 130700
Jon André Lekke (through Ludens AS) Senlor Vica President 889 938 113740
Bjern Brenna {hrough RBBR Invest AS) Executive Vice Prasident & CFO 33 800 32 600
Geran Bye ¢ hraugh Schoutbynacht AS) Executlve Vice President 29 585 29000
Svanaug Bergland Senlor Vice President 10 680 10500
Ingelise Arntsen Exacutlve Vica Prasident 1 500 : NA
Mona Stensvik Employee reprasentativa inthe Board 300 NAY
Jorn Mobask : Employes represantative inthe Board 100 NAY
Rlta Glenne Employeea reprasentative inihe Board 20116 NA®
MNNLIren KOISUANSON e oosrsesssssmcsnsssmsns s ssrseset e Employes repraseniativeinthe Board 1,500 NAY

¥ Not part of REC Group Management or Board member at year-end.

'17. BORROWINGS ' o e . o

ORI THOUSANDY, I — e Em T oto8)
Non—~current financiat (tabllitles, Interest bearing

Bank borrowings 1246 911 1868830

EverQ borrowings (from banks and sharaholgers) 298514 34731

Amounts due to Komatsu 479 074 aA68 17%

Finance Iease liabllities e 288 094 126681

To liities, Interest bearing . 2312 593 2498417

Current financlal flablilties, interest bearing

Current bank borrowings 306 290 0
EverQ borrowings (from banks and sharaholders) 152 573 132 764
Current portlons of financlal lease itabilitl es 25116 . .....23054

Total current financtal llabllities, Interest bearing

| anctal llabilltlas, Intarest bearing

Noen~current non=financiai (lavliitles, Interest bearing
Prepaymaerts - Interest bearing®

Total liabilties, interest bearing 2644235

* Prepayments from EverQ.

Bank barrowings and the amounts due {0 Komatsu (see note 30} are unsecured but they contain certain covenants. Bank borrowings in EverQ
are secured. These amounted to NOK 292 miflion (REC's 33.23 percent share) and NOK 19 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
In addition, finance lease liabifities are effechvely secured as the rights to the leased asset revert to the [essor in the event of default.

In the fimited liabiity company agreement (the "LL.C Agreement”) of REC Advanced Silican Materials LLC (ASiMI), there are various provisions
that are intended to profect Komatsu America Corperatian's retained interestin ASiMI, see nate 30, Amang ather things, the LLC Agreement
reguires REC Silicon (o maintain a ratio of current assets to current fiabilities of at [east 1.5 to 1.0. At December 31, 2007, the current ratio was 11
to 1.0. REC Silicon has a cure period under the LLC Agreement for, and received in 2008 a waiver of, this noncompliance at year-end. The waiver
waives this non-compliance retroactively as of December 31, 2007 and is conditioned upan compliance with this ratio by March 31, 2008.

0250



Contractual maturities

The following are the contractual maturities of financial interest bearing liabilities, including estimated inferest payments.”

AT DECEWBER 31,2007 (NOK IN THOUSANG) ~ _ MATURITY ANALYSIS - CONTRACTUAL PAYWENTS TOBEWADE o
; TOTAL .
| CARRYING EXPECTED AFTER
i AMOUNY _ PAYMENTS 208 2009 2000 i T 2012 ____gg_;gJ
Bank borrowings 1553201 1786182 387 122 369 736 352 350 676974 0 0
EverQ barrowings 451 087 485 661 172 011 252 451 61 199 0 0 ¢
Amounts dua 1o Kematsu 479074 575611 Q 0 575611 Q o] o]
Finance lease liabilitles 313210 .. 460182 42 019 41 282 40174 .. 40165 40165 .256376
Total 2796572 3307636 601 152 663469 1029334  Ti7139 40 165 256376
AT DECEMBER 31, 2006 (NOK IN THOUSAND) MATURITY ANALYSIS - CONTRACTUAL PAYMENTS TO BE MADE . : . ]
TOTAL i
‘ CARRYING EXPECTED AFTER :
\ AMOUNT __ PAYMENTS 297 2008 2009 2010 2033 2013
Bank borrowings 1868830 2182777 285 090 406 681 3%0 200 373720 727086 0
EverQ borrowings 167 495 171581 135 727 35 855 0 0 0 0
Amounts dua to Komatsu 468 175 665 405 0 0 ] 665 405 0 ]
Finance 1sase llabliities 139735 188762 22 284 22,388 22 037 213% 20136 80521
Total 2644235 3208525 443 101 464 923 412 237 1060521 747 222 80521

" The difference between carrying smount sad tatal expected payrents represent interest and for bank borrowlngs al3a remaining parts of loan fees that were paid ot the ime of entering
into loan agreements and that are amortized as apart of effective interest. All cath ffows are undiscounted, Amounts In cther currencies than NOK are transiated at the exchange rates

af Decernber 31, 2007 and 2006, respecthvety.

Financiai [eases are primarify for the second Cell plant in Narvik and the SIC facility at Hergya, see ncte 6.

The Cornpany entered into a Credit Facilifies Agreement for NOK 5 425 million with a syndicate ¢f seven banks dated March 23, 2006. During
20086, alf external debt in subsidiaries, except for a [can of USD 77 million (plus accrued interest) from Kamatsu America Corparation to REC
Advanced Sificon Materials LLC dated July 29, 2005, was refinanced through the new Credi! Facilities Agreement.

The nominal Interest rates and currency distribution (notlonal amounts) at December 31, 2007 were as follows

T AMOUNTS IN

i THOUSAND

1 INTEREST RATE (%) EQORROWER
Bank overdrafs 5.6 Varlable REC ASA
Bank berrowings 6.2 Varable 792 565 REC ASA
Bank borrowings 5.2 Varlablg 145000 REC ASA
EverQ borrowings - from banks 6.0 Variable 36667 EverQ

EverQ borrewings - from the shareholders S.4  Fluad 20000 EverQ
Amounts due to Komatsu 6.6 Flxed usp 77189 ASimMI
Finance leases 6.7 Fixed NOK 236 147 REC ScanCall
Finance lgases 4.7 Fized NOK T6717 REC Scanwafer

The nominal interest rates and currency distribution (notional amounts) at December 31, 2006 were as follows

AMOUNTSIN
THOUSAND

. INTEREST RATE &) CURRENCY CURRENCY BORROWER
Bank overdratts 4.0 NOK o] REC ASA
Bank borowings 4.2 NOK 992 565 REC ASA
Bank boirowings 5.7 usD 145 €00 REC ASA
EverQ borrowings 6.5 EUR 20332 EverQ
Amounts dus 1o Kematsu 6.6 usb 77189 ASIMI
Finance Ieases 6.9 NOK 139735 REC ScanWaler

For the amounts due to Komatsu, the effective interest rate is 81 percent due fa fair value adjustment in the purchase price allocation in 2005,
Effective interest rates for the other interest bearing liabilities approximate the nominal interest rates.



Cr&ql’E fa‘c_l_lltrieg_ait December 31

; T s TOTTTTT T Thige T T T e T
HNOK [N THOUSAND) TOTAL UNDRAWN TOTAL UNORAWN
Total Creqit facllities® S 685000 3935000 5685 000 3735000

' The amounts due to Kornatsy, the financial leases and E\aud berrowings are nat intludedin total credit facllities. EverQ had an undrawn credit Hine af December 31, 2607 ¢fEUR 73
milllon (REC'S 33.33 percent share).

Total credt facilites consist of the NOK 5,425 million Credit Facifities Agreement and NOK 260 miltion overdraft facilities, primarily refated to
the Group cash pool system. At December 31, 2007, the amounts under the Credit Faalities Agreement were available for generalinvestments
and corporate purposes. At Decernber 31, 2006, the amounts were available for investments in the FBR plant in the USA (NOK 2,200 miflion) for
specified wafer investrents (NOK 600 million) and for general corporate purposes (NOK 675 million). REC paid an up-front fee for the Credit
Fadlities Agreement of NOK 24 million of which NOK i8 rilion is rermnaining unamortized amaount at year-end 2007.

[18. INCOME TAX EXPENSE AND DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES |
Recognized income tax expense .

{NOKON THOUSANDY — T feooas 2006 7005 ]
Current tax expense 747227 301 798 ) 14572
Doferred tax expensasbenalit -193 233 -16 168 11588

expense inthe income statement 643994 285 630 26160

Current income tax expense include tax benefits of NOK 7 million for 2007 and expenses of NOK 6 million for 2006 as adjustments of prier
periods. Deferred tax benefits for 2007 and 2006 include expenses of NOK 6 millian and 9 million, respectively, a5 adjustments of prior periods.

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the welghted average tax rate applicabie to
profits of the consolidated companies as follows

LNOK 1N THOUSAND) 00 2006 2008}
Profit before tax 1977.347 743.960 . .....30083
Tax calculated at domastic tax rates applicable to profits in tha respactive countries 661 956 275 168 29271
ChangeIntax rate and tax regulation 5778 -1257 7 0
Tax credits, expenses deductible in tax and Income not subject Lo tax 22 850 +11 031 -1 Q87
Expensas not dedudible for tax purposes 11806 6048 2686
Effects of not recognized temporary differances this year or reversal of pravious yaars' -l166 -2 693 2290

Adjustment of priof year'sincome taxes 974 15395
I 643 994 285 630 26160
32.6% 38,4% 87.0%

The incame tax in Narway and Sweden is based on a corporate incorne tax rate of 28 percent The income tax in the USAis based on nominal
35 percent federal tax rate plus state tax rate of 3 percent (between zera (State of Washingtan) to 7 percent {Montana) in the USA}, The
effective tax rate in the USA far 2007 and 2006 was 347 percent and 391 percent, respectively. The tax expense in the USA is also affected by
tax credits, Damestic Production Activities Deduction and ather expenses geductible in tax, These effects, induding adjustment for prior years,
decreased tax expense for 2007 in the USA by NOK 37 miflion {increase of NOK 8 million in 2006} compared to a calculation using 38 percent
nominal tax rate. The naminal tax rate for EverQ in Germany has been reduced from 33 percent in 2006 ta 23 percent from Jaruary 1, 2008,
This had anly a minor effect an the tax expense for 2007, Expenses not deductible for tax purposes include losses on associated companies.
The calculated deferred tax benefit of 28 percent on the reported expenses far the convertible loans combined with higher effective tax rate on
profits in the USA contributed to the high combined effective tax rates for 2005 and 2006. Adjusted for the effects of the convertible foans, the
calculated effective tax rate for 2006 was 33 percent.
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Estimation of the amounts of deferred tax assets and liabllittes that may be recovernd or settled within and after 12 months based on the balance
sheet classification as_iu_rljln:tugwnwd_nqn:gyf[_egt_q_[gﬁg_!ol_lovli_

[NOH IN THOUSAND) O . S 1
Deferred tax assets:

Defarradtax asset to be racovered after 12 montns 139 698 al 355
Deferradtax asset to be recoverad within 12 montns 267 734 | 123166
Offset dafarred tax assets andliabllities o176 674 -

Total 230758

Deferred tax llabifties:

Deferredtax liability to be settied after 12 months 475 659 383312
Deferredtax llability to be sattied within 12 months 11 335 12181
Offset deferred tax assets and liabilities *176 674 ‘161779
Totat 233714
Net deferred tax abllities 79562 230972

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (-) and assets (+) recognized by the group and movements during 20605, 2006 and 2007

rm e ememm. s o ® o —

NON CURRENT  CONVERTIBLE EMPLOYEE .
SO N THOUSAND) ASSETS = BOKDS BENEFITS TAX LOSSES OTHER ™ TOTAL.
Met deferred tax at January 1, 2005 -16 656 13977 3890 120758 3584 125553
Recognized In Income statement -34 951 130570 -26 484 96187 15 464 -11588
Recognizedto equity 0 0 8813 0 0 8813
Acqulsition of subsidtarias and Joint ventures -108 367 0 48193 0 20 976 -39 198
Translation differences 4259 o] 511 3888 1431 1
Net deferred tax at Decamber 31, 2006 -164233 144547 34923 28 459 32883 83579
Recognized inIncome statement 208586 226623 +15 645 27817 41593 16168
Recognized to equity 0 -371170 406 0 33918 -336 846
Acquisition of subsidiarles and jeint ventures -10 142 0 0 3680 0 -6 462
Transiation differsnces 15770 0 T i1 688 2,860, .....12582
Nat dafarred tax at December 31, 2006 -367 191 0 20 651 2634 112 934 230972
Recognized inincoma statement -133 492 0 7 568 *1087 230214 103233
Recognized to equity 0 0 480 0 5 442 5922
Trandation differances 53760 0 2109 -81 -11314 42255
Net defarred tax at December 31, 2007 -446 923 Q 28 590 1496 337.275 79562

* Non current assefs are primarity sccelerated tax deprecistion and temporary differences at scquisition of business.
~ Other is primaniy current sssefs and liabllities, including Invertories. derivatives and accrued expentes. The smount recognized £6 equity relates ¢o cash Aow hedge and transiation
differences.

The difference between current tax in the income staternent for the year and the batance sheet at year end was primarify due to the fact that
same of the income tax for the financial year is being paid during the year in the USA and Sweden. A part of the difference for 2006 was in
addition due to the tax effect of costs atinbutable fo the equity increase that was recognized to equity (NOK 42 million),

Total income taxes recognized to equlty as from January 1, 2004 excfuding transiatior differences on deferred tax (minus Is reduction to equity)

JINOK IN THOUSAND) ) 2008 2008 2004 TOTAL
Eftact of transitlon to 1AS 39 at January 1, 2005 0 0 13977 Q 131977
Efrect of actuarlal gains andlosses 480 406 8813 631 10330
Eftect of convertible bonds o] -371 170 0 0 AT71170
Effact of translation diiferencas 33089 o 0 0 33089
Effect of cash tiow hedge 27 647 33 o218 2 0 6271

ragtax 5922 2336 846 22790 831 307503

= @lfect of costs for capital increase o] 41 986 0 o] 41 386
5922 254 BEO 22790 631 2655617

Duterred tax asseis have not been recognized in respect of the following temporary ciffarences

[no 1N THOUSAND) 5 2006,
Grants for investments 28 305 2 968
Tax lossas 2914 164
Total 31219 3332

The increase in gavernment grant for investments refates primarily to EverQ, REC Graup's 33.33 percent share of EverQ's grants received
subsequent to the acquisition as of December 19, 2006 is included in the table abave.
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Al Decernber 31, 2007 and 2006, accurnufated undistributed earnings for REC's ownership shares in companies in the USA were approximately
NOK 1300 million and NOK 580 rmillion, respectively. A 15 percent withholding tax would amount ta NOK 195 million and NOK 87 million,

respectlively, that has not been recognized as a deferred tax liability. See notes 216 and 4,

[19. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS AND EXPENSES

The Group provides defined benefit pension plans for all employees in Norway, Parts of the pensions are paid by the Norwegian government
that provides sacial security payments to all retired Narwegian citizens, Such payments are calculated by reference to a base amaunt annually
approved by the Nerwegian parliament (G-regufation). Benefits are determined based on the employee's fength of service and compensation,
The cosi of pension benefit plans is expensed over the periad that the employee renders services and becaomes efigible to receive benefits,

The REC Group offers primarily cantribution plans to employees outside of Norway REC Silican has an employer-sponsored retirement plan
{401(k}} for employees in the USA, in which the contributions to the plan are determined each year. ASiMI had defined benefit plans &t the time
it was acquired in 2005, Subsequent to the acquisition, the ASiMI defined benefit plans were frozen and no future benefits are accruing to the
members of the pfans. Previous pensicn rights remained unchanged Curtailment gains of NCK 42 miflion were recognized as part of pension

caosts in 2005.

Some of the Norwegian subsidiaries have an agreement-based earfy retirement plan which is a defined benefit mutti-employer plan. For this
plan, and the defined benefit multi-employer plans in REC ScanMaodufe AB, the administrators are not able to calculate the REC Group's share
of assets and fiabilities and these plans are consequently accounted for as defined contribution plans. Contributions to these plans of NOK 6

million and NOK 3 million were included as pension expenses for 2007 and 2006, respectively

The plan assets and the projected benefit obligations (net present value of pension benefils earned at the bafance sheet date based on
expected pension qualifying incame st the ime of ratirernent) were measured at December 31, each year Independent actuanies perfarmed
the actuanal caloufations. The present vatue of the projected defined benefit obfigation, and the related current service cost and past service
cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method. The discount rate for the defined benefit plan in Norway was estimated based

on the interest rate on Norwegian gover nment bonds. Average time before the payments of earned benefits was calculated al just betow 40
years, and the discount rate was projectec to a 40-year rate through a reference 1o European fong-ferm interest rates, as the longest duration
in Norway is 10 years. The assumption for salary increase, increase in pension payments and G-reguiation are referenced to quidelines from the
Norwegian Accounting Standards Board and are {ested against historical observations, statements made about the future developrments and

the relationship between different assumptions.

Deafined benefit plans e

HROK 1N THOUS ANR) AR

Gross retirement benalit obligaticns at January © 283773

Service cost 48 625

Interest cost on pension obligations 13 838

Actuarlal qains and [os5es 10 967

Benelits paid, pald-up poticies and disabitity obligatlons -13 &27

Transiation dfferences 22 145

Gross retirement benatit obligaticns at December 31 321 428

Falr values of plan assets at January 1 186 967 158 155
Actual return on plan assets 15 829 23625
Panslons premium pald 44 037 ‘261303
Benatits paid, paid-up policies and disabllity resefve -13 &27 -11 681
Transiation dTferences -7 875 - -9435
Fair value of plan assets at Dacember 31 215 328 186 967
Funded status at Dacember 31 106 100 96 806
Accrued soclal security tax . 8772 6425
Nt retirement banefit obligations at December 31 114 872 103231
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Retirernant benefit obligations in the balance sheet

(NOK N THOUSENDY 007 2006 )
Dafined benefit pians

Net retirement benefit opligatlions at January 1 103 231 1150863
Net periodic benatit costs 53 960 30719
Actuarlal galns and losses recegnized directly In aquity 8617 -9 807
Pansion premiums pald +44 037 26303
Soclal security tax on pensions premium -2 630 -2 250
Trangation differences 4270, 14191
Met retirement benailt obligations at December 31 L14 872 103231
Dalined contripution plans 1328 0
Totalnat retirernert banefit obtigations at December 31 i, . 116 200 103231

The amounts recognized In the Income statement are as follows

M(N%lti.l HQW-&ND) 200,18 2008 2008
Current service cost 48625 25 483 20971
Interast cost or gross retirement benafit obligations 13838 12 337 &724
Expected return on plan assets (et of administration cost) -13572 -10 824 -8 400
Curtaliment gain 0 o -41634
Employer’s soclal security tax on defined benefit costs E Q69 3723 1886
Total benetit plans 53960 30719 20453
Cortrbution plans including employer's soclal security tax 18039 12 267 2901
Total pension expenses (see note 23) 71999 42 986 : -17552

Subsequent to the acquisition of ASiMI in 2005, its schemes were frozen and no future benefits are accruing to the members of the plans.
Previous pension rights remained unchanged. The changes resufted in a curtailment gain in 2005. Net pension fiabifity for the ASiMI schemes
was NOK 16 milfion, NOK 33 million and NOK 56 million at the end of 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. For 2007 and 2006, a net pension
income of NOK 2 million (expected return on plan assets less interest cost on fiabilities) was recognized in the income statement in bath
years and an actuarial fass of NOK 7 million and a gain of NOK 1 million was recognized o equity in 2007 and 2006, respectively, Employer's
contributions were NOK 17 miflion and NOK é million in 2007 and 2006, respectively, and franslation differences reduced the net liability by
NQK 4 million in boath vears when converting the USD amounts ta NOK. ’

Cumutative actuarial {osses recognized (o equity were NOK 32 million before taxes and NOK 24 million after taxes.

Actuariai gain/ioss on gross retirement benafit obligations {(exclusive of sociaf securlty tax) consist of

IHOK (N THOUSAND) . - oo 2006 2008 2004
(8) expantence adjustments he affects of diffarences batween the previous

aquartal assumptions and what has actually occurted) 281041 3467 9 966 -387
{0} the efracts of changes In actuarial assumptions. (17073 1524 17 955 5502
Total actuarial gain/loss on gress retirement baneflt obllgations 16 967 L4991 27921 5115

The difference ta actuarial gainfloss on net retirement benefit otligatians is actuarial gainflass an plan assets and secial securi t\( tax.

The actuary risk tabfes for prabability for moriality and marriage in Narway that are based an advice in accordance with published statistics and
experience, were changed at December 31, 2007, The estirated effect of this change was an actuarial gain of NOK 7 million. The names of the
risk tables at year-end 2007 were: Merlality K20085, Marriage K2005 and Disabiiity IR02.

Dlstrlbutlon of plan assets at falr value at December 3t

HNOK IN THOUSAND) TOTAL NORWEGI AN PLANS ABIMIPLANE
‘ASSET CATEGORY. R 2004 R0 2006 2007 2006,
Bonds, commercial paper 158 783 63924 42 576 37525 116 208 26399
Shares 21461 113571 21 481 13333 0 100238
Properties 13 500 7723 13 500 7723 0 0
Other 21584 1749 8998 1749 12 585 0
Total 215328 186 967 86535 80330 128 793 126 637

Curing 2007, the investment strategy of plan assets for ASIMI was changed ta reduce volatility, For the Norwegian plans the partinvestedin
equity securities is imited to a maximum of 35 percent.
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The princlpal actuarial assumptions used to determine retirement beneflt obligations at December 31
LAl b bbb s T M MmN TR h b

BEoc 206 208 & 2008 2008
! NORWAY NORWAY NORWAY ASIME ASIML ASIn} f
Discount rate 4,5% 4.4% 4.0% 5.8% 5.8% 5.5%
Future salary Increases 4.3-4.5% 4.0% 3.5% NA NA NA
Future pensions increases 4.3% a.0% 2.5% NA NA NA
FUtura increase in social security base amount {G) 4.3% 4,0% 2.5% NA NA Na
Future turriover Stepwise 4%<S0 yaars 2%<40 years NA NA MA
with average 2%>50 years 0%> 40 years
5-6%<E0 yeaars
0-1%3>50 years

The assumptions used fo determine the benefit cost for the year are those determined at the beginning of the year, The expected long-term
return on the Norwegian schemes’ plan assets was 5.4 percent, 5 percent and 6 percent for calculation cf the pension expense for 2007,
2006 and 2008, respectively. For the ASiMI schemes it was 8 percent for all three years. Expected fong-term return is calculated based on the
estimated risk free interest rates at the balance sheet dates adjusted for the expected (ong-term yield on the different investment categories
abave the risk free rates, based on historical long-term yields and deducting expected administration costs. For Norwegian defined benefit
pension plans organized through insurance companies the average vield has been one percentage point abeve the gavernment rate.

The average expected remaining service lives in years far the Norwegian plans were abaut 16,17 and 22 at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The corresponding lives for ASiMi plans were about 15 for all three years,

The number of empfoyees in the defined benefit Norwegian plans was 935, 710 and 518 at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
The corresponding nurmber for ASIMI plans was about 700 for afl three years.

Coniributions expected to be paid to the defined benefit plans during 2008 are NOK 37 million for the Narwegian plans intluding social security
tax and NOK 4 million for ASiMI plans.

The expected contributions to the plans in 2008 and the following estimates are based on facts and circumstances at December 31, 2007,
Actual results may matenially deviate from these estimates. Changes in ather assumptians that are not included in the table below may

also materially affect the liabifities and expenses. These incfude risk tables far mortality, marriage and disability that are based on advice in
accordance with published statistics and experience. The expected total pension expense for 2008 for the Norwegian benefil plans, based an
the assumptions and members of the plan as of year-end 2007, is NOK 6% millian. Of this, current service cost is estimated to NOK 60 millian
excluding social security tax (SST). Gross pension obligations excfuding social security tax far the Norwegian benefit plans as of year-end

2007 were NOK 176 million. The table below shaws an estimate of the potentiaf effects (percentage) of changes (percentage poinis} in the key
assumptions for the defined benefit plans in Narway on grass rehirement benefit obligations at December 31, 2007 and current service cost for
2008.

Estimated offuct; of changes In assumptions 7

| TBOCIAL T TANNUAL :
: DISCOUNT FUTURE SALARY SECURITY ADJUSTMENTS '
; RATE INCREASE BASE AMOUNT (G} TO PLNSIONS TURNOVER

Changes in assumptions® +1% 1% +1% 1% +1% -1 +1% 1% +1% "1%
Pansion obligation -20% +28%  +23% “16% 5% +7% +13% -11% 5% 7%
Current service cost 2008 21%  +30%  +26% 1796 6% T+ +13% (0% 4% +7%

' Percentage points

Far the ASIM! benefit plans there would be no effect of changes in future salary increases, change in the social security base amount, annual
adustments to pensions or turnover. A one percentage point change in discount rate is estimated to affect the pension obligation at year-end
2007 by approximately NOK 20 million.
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:20. PROVISIONS, TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER NON-INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES :

HNOK IN THOUSAND) pEaw " 2006
Current

Provisions 7232 3960

Trade payables® 637 494 435701

L

Non=current

Provisions 34827 24379
Negative value dellvery contract = 82 Jaa -’ 132 042
Other non-interest bearing Habllities B 45 568
Total provisions & other non-interest bearing |labilltles 116 871 201989

* Trade pavables Include payables for capital expendifures, whith amounted to approaimatehy NOK 190 million af Decernber 3, 2007,

= Other non-interest bearing current liabilities include acerued cost For capital expendituret of spproximately NOK 400 rrillion st December 3, 2007,

" Loog-term defivery corkract that was Fair valued In the purchase price allocation of ASIMIL A2 it has & negathee value [f is not classified &3 an Intangible assef The falr value sssessment s
recopnized a3 a reduction of cost aver 5 years from August 2005,

Specification of provisions

! - T T TomHER M
HOK IN_THOUS ANR) WARRANTIZS___ PROVISIONS TOTAL.
At January 1, 2006 7664 3015 10679
Additlonal provisions 17993 2169 " 20162
Unused amounts ravarsad 0 2077 -2 077

Useq duningthe year

At Dagember, 31, 2006
Additlonal provisions
Unused amounts reversed
Exchanga diffarences
Used durtng the year

Distribution of total provisions _

SAQKAN THOUSAND) oon 2006
Provisions current 7232 ° 3960
Provisions non-current 34527 24379
Total provislons SR -3 S 4. S 28332

A provision is a (iability of uncertain timing or ameount. See nate 4 for mare infarmation about warranties. Current provisions are expected to be
paid within one year. Non-current provisions are primarily warranties and asset retirement obligations that are not expected te be paid within
five years,

'21. GOVERNMENT GRANTS |
NOKINTHOUSAND) — o o _ - PO 2006,
Recognized In balance sheet - grants related to assets 58 664 6126
Recognizad tnincome statement - grants related te Incoma 6 678 11046
Total 65 323 17172

Grants are recognized in the incorne statement over the period necessary ta match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.
Grants refated to assels are recognized to the ncorne statement at the same time as depreciation of the refated assets, and are not included in
the second line in the table abave. Granis related ta income are grants thal compensate period expenses,

A government grant is not recognized untif there is reasonable assurance that the entity will comply with the conditions attached toit, and
that the grant will be received For parts of the gavernment granis related 1o assets there are sarne restrictions that must be complied with,
Canditians far EverQ are primarily {0 keep the fixed asset over 3 periad of 5 years and to achieve an agreed number of employees.

EverQ was acquired at Decernber 19, 2006. EverQ had prior ta the acquisition recognized government grants related to capital expenditure for
its first and secand plant of EUR 13 million (the REC Group's 3333 percent share), of which EUR 3 million was a grant related to EverQ at that
time being 8 small or medium sized entity. These grants were in the purchase price allecation nct included as liabilities in the bafance sheet
for the REC Graup and they are not included in the table abave. During 2007, additional gavernment grants for capital expenditure, primarity
for the second plant, of EUR 6 rnillion (the REC Group's 33.33 percent share) was recognized by EverQ. Payments of the grants to EverQ are
dependent an an EU approval pracess and that funds are available.
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(22. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES !

[QNOK N THOUSAND) e e - 2008’
Energy and watar costs 401514 350 540 204558
Operation and malntenance costs 248875 157522 117621
Operating lease expenses 21502 24 384 10685
Fralght, postage &transportation 43025 26 225 15714
IT and telecommunicatien costs 47 172 28 309 18294
Travel and entertalnment costs 46 880 3z 027 17848
Insurance costs 52831 a7 221 22 792
Sales, marketing and advertlsing costs 24 655 3728 o]
Consultancy, temporary contract workers, and auditors feos 247 505 167 424 34099
Own work capltalized on tixed assets 57 350 2 070 0
Gain/10s5 on disposal of fixed assets 3553 777 -4
Other® 83 657 135 693 155 848
Total othar operating expenses 1163819 961 778 597 455
* Other indudes cost reduction relating to the negative value of the 1eng-term delivery contract of NOK 35 million in 2007 ang NOK 15 million in 2006, see nate 20.
Auditor's remuneration _ o e

[NOK AN THOUSANDY. . . o 2008,
Statutory audit ’ 6 437 6715
Othar assurance services 590 470
Tax advisory services 300 867
Other non-audit services 645 3275
Total auditor’s ramuneration 7972 11327

Asmounts sre exclusive of VAT.
Total auditor's rermuneration expensed in 2005 was NOK 8.2 million, of which NOK 6.0 miflion refaled to statutory audit.

in 2006 audit fees related to the share capital increase recognized directly to equity amounted to NOK 2 191 thousand (before income tax)
and are natincluded in the amounts above,

Statutory audit fems contain: all procedures and wark performed o ensure proper reporting and statulory audl, technical assistance with
preparation of the reported figures and statutory financial statement, audit to be able to sign off tax papers (Nerwegian specific mandatory
wark), and audit or agreed upon procedures for period accounts.

Other assurance services contain: 2lf attestation sarvices expected to be perfarmed by the company's auditor due to (egal reguirements or
reguirerments from third party including performance of agreed upon procedures for period accounts.

Tax advisory services contain: technical assistance with preparation of tax papers, guidance to the client to expfain how the tax reguiation/tax
faw is to be understaad, evaluation of chosen tax solutions, assistance when the dient wili file complaints to the tax authorities, and assistance
if the clien! needs to report to the tax authonties, or needs to folfow up any questions.

Other non-audit services contain: extended work based on request from the management or general assembly that will result in any attestation,
counseling to ensure that the client is able to report a financial statement; i.e. assistance with technical issues, agreed-upon procedures, and all
other eligible auditor services not included in any of the above.

i23. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES |
{r,NOK IN. THOUSAND) - T N T T Ty a_oo? T 2008
Payroll 733629 510 422 330928
Borus 74930 49 499 27 045
Social security tax 84 425 87 906 64 584
Panslon ¢osts Ingl, social sacurity tax 71999 42 986 -37552
Other & 68 449 -22 863 4849

The average number of permanent employees during 2007 measured in man-years was 1,587 (2006 1,347}, Number of permanent employees
at Decernber 31, 2007 was 1,795 (2006:1,385). In addition the average nurmber of permanent employees in EverQ during 2007 measured in
marn-years was 828 and the number of permanent employees at Decemnber 31, 2007 was 990. EverQ had 460 emplayees at Decernber 31, 2006,

Included in other employee related casts for 2006 is 3 cost reduction of almost NOK S0 million befere tax, dee to the termination of part of
employee benefil plans in REC Advanced Silicon Materials LLC (ASiMI). The termination had no cash effect included in pension costs for 2005
is a curtailment gain of NOK 42 miillion.
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124, FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES

H{NOK IN THOUSAND) 2008 !
Share of loss of associates 7052
Interest Income for financial assets not at fair value through profit of loss 6261
Interest axpenses for
=Convertibla bends classitied as held for trading (1AS 39) s} 20971 76789
~Flnanciat liabitities not at fair value through profit or loss 183 880 146 556 | i577%
Capitalization of borrowing cost «121011 -33 799 -6 456
assets and llabilities nat at fair value through protit or |0ss 694 14772 Q

* Including ineffective part of hedging instrumerts.

Borrowing casts capitalized and included in the cost of qualifying assets during 2007 was primarily refated to REC Silicon (USA) at an effective
interest rate of aporaximataly 7 percent. REC Wafer and REC Salar (Norway) and EverQ (Gerrmany) also contributed with effective interest rates
of appraximately 5.5 percent Capitalized borrowing casts far 2006 were primarily related to REC Silican (USA} at an effective interest rate of
approximately 7 percent and REC Wafer (Norway) at an effecive interest rate of appraximately 4 percent.

[T — ]

125. EARNINGS PER SHARE :

Basle
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit/ioss attributable ta equity halders of the campany by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares inissue during the year, excluding treasury shares (see note 15}.

[(NOK IX THQUSAND) ERE 2006 2008 2}

Profit attributable to equity holders of the company 1333353 3923

Welghted average number of ordinary shares in lssue (in thousand) 494318 301820,
1@ (NOK PO SNATE) | oot s e 10 168 e e 2,70 0.01

* adjusted for share splif 120 in April 2006,

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares cutstanding to assume corversion of
ali dilutive potential ordinary shares. The convertible debt (see note 27} is assurned to have beaen convertedinto ordinary shares and the net
prafitis adjusted to eliminate change in fair value and interest expenses [ess the tax effect. The calculation shows that the conversion of the
corwertible debt is not diutive given the significant fair value adiustment incfudedin determining profit far the year, as it does not decrease
basic earnings per share.

!’ﬂ—‘.‘-a’(uaﬁ S-ﬁ;ﬁﬂ—_— - - T T [2007 2006 2008 %
Dliuted earnings per share Y U4 SRR 1.0 - S 12

" acjusted for share spllt 120 in April 2006

[26. DIVIDENDS PER SHARE - !

Oue to the growth strategy and aggressive expansion plans the Board believes that the funds can be put inta best use within the company, and
therefore do nat prapose any dividends to be paid aut to the Shareholders for 2007, as in 2006 and 2005.
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[27. CONVERTIBLE LOANS |

[NOK IN THOUSAND) - - - 2006 |
EUR 31 mmilion convertible loan ]

Carrying amount of Hiabllity at January 1 611772
Changae In fair value recognized inthe in¢ome statemert * 347645
Converted to aquity In the pertod” 959 417
carryin 9
USD 140 milllon ¢omvertiole loan

Carrytng amount of liabllity at January 1 1099 656
Change in falr value recognized intha incomea statemert * 448574
Converted to equity in the peried’, S e 1288 230
Carrying ameunt of llabllity on December 31 0
Total 2

v Amounts before tax
Ouring 2006, the convertible foans were fully converted inte shares in REC ASA, inCreasing equity.

The Company issued 8 convertible EUR [oan on September 24, 2003, amounting to EUR 31 milfion with an interest rate of 79 percent p.a. The
foan holders had rights ta convert their fean in part or as a8 whole at any given time befare March 31, 2006 at NOK 118 per share (corresponding
to NOK 59 per share after the April 2006 1:20 share split). Alt bondholders exercised their right to corwert the loan on March 31, 2006. The
conversion resulted in issuance of 43 405 260 new shares adjusted for the +:20 share split.

The company entered into a second convertible loan agreement on July 13, 2005, for USD 140 million with an interest rate of & percent p.a. and
a conversion right equal to NQK 255 per share (correspanding to NOK 1275 per share after the share split). The USO [oan ¢ould be corwverted to
shares on four defined dates during 2006, the latest conversion date being on Decernber 1. All bond holders exercised their right to convert the
lean during 2006, primarily on March 13, The conversion resulted in issuance of 73 447 682 new shares adjusted for the share split.

As NOK is the functional currency of REC ASA, and both convertible [0ans were denaminated in foreign currencies, the loans have been
accounted for as finandal liabifities. [AS 39 Financial Instruments reguires that the net proceeds from the issue of the convertible [aan notes
are split between the lizbility efernent (the base loan) and an embedded derivative (the option fo corwert into shares). The embedded derivative
represerts the fair value of the embedded option to convert the liability into equity of the group. Normally this split is made at inception with
the value of the embedded derivative being recarded to equity. However, as the convertibfe [oans were dencminated in foreign currendies,
following IFRIC guidance, the embedded derivative has been recarded as aliability, This also means that the fair value of the embedded
derivative has been estimated at each reporting daie, with the changes in fair value being recognized in the income statement.

Before REC ASA was listed on the Osla Stock Exchange in May 2006, the fair value of the embedded derivatives was calculated by independent
brokers, The share price was estimated as follows; the expected share price on the relevant dates was esimated based on historical
transactions for the Corpany shares, modified by a peer group of comparative cornpanies that arelisted an stock exchanges. This share price
was used as aninpul to the Black-Scholes formuta that estirnates the expecled share price at the date of canversion. In addition to the share
price, the madel inputs were the exercise prices in the bonds, expected valatility of the Campany share price over the bond's lifetime and a

risk free interest rate. Valatility was based on the peer group of comparative companies. The estimate of fair value fock inte account fareign
exchange rates.

Al the date of issue of the cenvertible loans, the "base oan’ efernent was recorded at a value that was lower than the amaount that was due to
be repaid on maturity date. The leans accreted ta the full value over the fife of the [oan based on the effective interest rate method, adjusted to
reflect the changes in foreign exchange rates. This accretion has been included within the fair value change recarded in the income statermnent.

28. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT | -

{0NOK IN THOUSAND) N e o AL 2006 2008]
RGSGaan and Development axpenses 11}___‘:‘!_03 82 989 50414

The research and development activities consist af continuaus development of current production processes and equipment as well as next
generation production technologies designed Lo reduce silicon cost, enhance quality while regucing wafer thickness, imprave cell and module
efficiency, and reduce production cast throughout the value chain.
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29. COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES, PLEDGES T ]
The purchase obligation amounts consist of items for which the REC Group is contractually obhgated to purchase from a third party at

December 31, 2007 and 2006 These amounts anfy canstitute the contracted mininnum portion of the REC Group's expected future costs.
Operating lease payments are shown in a separate table balow Repayment of debt, in¢luding finance feases, is shownin note 17

The amounts presented in the tabfe wifl nat provide a refiable indication of the REC Group's expected future cash outflows on a stand-

alone basis. For the purpose of identifying and accumulating purchase obligations, the REC Group has included all contracts that are (egally
bindng and specify all significant terms, including fixed or minimum amounts or quantity to be purchased and the approximate timing of
the transaction. Far those contracts irvalving a fixed or minimurn quanbty but variable pricing, the REC Group has estimated the contractual
abligation based on its best estimate of pricing that wifi be in effect at the time the obigation is incurred.

Cmtmctual | purchase cbligations at December 31, 2007

T TOTALFUTURE T T T T BISTRIBUTION OF PAYMENTS ]

HNOICIN. THOUSAND) PAYKENTS * 2008 2009 2020, 2011 2012 AFTER 2032
Purchase of goods and sarvicas

REC Sliicon 814307 359 345 74239 70175 35269 35 182 240097
REC Wafar 5 445964 361036 i1 41l 496 004 499 256 499 256 3279001
REC Solar 81719 61 422 T6LT - Tél2 T2a 724 3620
EvarQ™ 95524 95524 Q0 0 0 o 0
Other, 2942 673 632 618 - 823 Q
Total purchase of geods and services 6 440 456 878000 393899 574 409 535 845 535585 3522718
Capaex - proparty, plant and equipment

REC Sllicon 1294601 1294601 Q o] 0 o Q
REC Wafer 1940474 1277 444 663030 0 0 0 0
REC Solars 322 430 322 430 0 o] 0 0 0
EvarQ 98820 98 820 0 Q Q 0 Q
Total capex - property, plart and equipment | 3 656 325 2993 2096 663 030 o] o] 0 Q
Total corvractual obllgatiens ™ 10096 781 3871295 1056929 574 409 535845 535585 3522718

" Payments are undlitcounted.
*amounts do not Include Ever®'s committed purchases of polysiticon from the REC Group In addition the REC Group has a contingent abligation to confribute equity caplisl to EverQ, tee
betow

Contractual purchase oblligations at December 31, 2006 e i
TOTAL FUTURE DISTRIBUTION OF PAYMENTS

J(NOK IN THOUSAND) PAYMENTS * 2007, 2008 72009 2010 2L AFTER zoui
Purchase of goods and sarvices 1 659 864 434957 174 491 171 181 168844 114 865 595536
Capex - property, plant and equoment 1520334 1431767 88567 o] 0 (o 0
Tota: contractual obllgations = 3180 198 1866724 263 068 171 181 168 844 114 855 595536

' Payments are undiscounted,
" Yotal commitments Include NCOK 300 milllon for the RES Group's 33.33 percent of EverQr's total commifrents For 2007, of which NOK 180 aillllon relate to capitat expenditure. Amounts do
nat inclyde EverQ's commlitted purchases of polysilleon fram the REC Group.

The purchase of goods and services for REC Silican include an agreement that provides rights to the cutput of certain gases of a specified
facility which is being constructed to serve the production needs assaciated with the Moses Lake plant expansion. At year-end 2007 it has been
concluded that the agreement includes an aperating lease of the facility. The estimated fair vatues of the commodity output elements of the
contract have been concluded to conshifute the major part of the contractual payments. The lease part is estimated to be ¢nly nominal, and
the total commitrnents of NOK 260 miflion at December 31, 2007 and NOK 290 milfion at December 31, 2006 are included in the tables above,
The facility was not completed at December 31, 2007. Certain properly tax payments in REC Sificon are included whereby the company aperates
one of its facilities in an area designated by the taxing authorities as a specialindustnial financing district The payments associated with these
property taxes are expected 1o be made through the period ending Oecember 31, 2022. The total undiscounted amounts of these payments
were NOK 170 millign and 220 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The purchase of goods and services for REC Wafer includes NOK 5 T milfion at Decemnber 31, 2007 for capacity contracts for recycling of
exhausted slurry and rmixing and supply of slurry. At the end of 2007, REC Wafer enteredinto two new agreernents for the expansions in
Glamfjord and Heraya, and an extension of the first contract. The estimated fair values of the goods and services (non-lease elements) of the
first contract are included in the tables above with a total of NOK 1 085 million at December 31, 2007 and NOK 61 million at December 31,
2006. The related facility and equipment for the first contracts was put into operation at the end of 2006, The estimated fair values of the
(ease parts of the first capacity contract are included in the operating lease table befow and as finance lease fiability in nate 17. The minimum
terrn af the two new contracts are ten years and the first contract has been extended ta thirteen years. All three capacity contracts for sfurry
are based on a cost-plus principie in which the vendor abtains coverage of investments and expenses within specified limits. The amounts of
the investments refated to the two new contracts entered into at the end of 2007 will nat be known before the completion of the constructions,
which is expected {o be in the middle of 2008 and the beginning of 2009 for the respective contracts. The payments for coverage of the
vendors gperating expenses may change accarding to the cutput and efficiency of the production process. At year-end 2007, the REC Group
was nat able to determine the respective fair values of the lease and commodily cutput efements of the two new centracts, and was not able
to separate these elemeants in arder to determine what parts of the contracts are operaling or finance [eases. In the table above, the fotal
astimated payment abligations for the two new capacity contracts are included with NOK 4 086 million,
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Capex is capital expenditure, purchase of assels that are ta be capitalized and used for more than one periad. Cantractually committed
capex at December 31, 2007 was primarily related to the expansion of the wafer plants and the expansian projects in the USA. In addtion
to contractually committed capex, the REC Group had approved capex of approximately NOK 6.2 billion at Decernber 31, 2007, of which
approximately NOK 4.5 billion is expected to be paid in 2008 and the remaining in 2009.

Contractually committed capex at December 31, 2006, was primarily refated to the expansion projects in the USA, the cell production in Narway
and the second EverQ plant in Germany (the REC Group's 33.33 percent share).

EverQ had at December 31, 2007 recagnized investment grants of EUR 57 million (100 percent figure for EverQ)} of which EUR 28 million had
been received in cash. A syndicate of banks has advanced as 4 brigge finandng most of the remaining EUR 29 miflion grants receivable. In the
Guarantee and Undertaking signed indiviguatly by all the three sharehciders of EverQ in relaticn to EverQ's EUR 342 million syndicated loan
agreement, the shareholders have an obligation to contribute additional equity capital,in the amount of 33.33 percent each of the amount by
which the investment grants are not grante in the projected amounts or are required to be repaid REC's conlingent obligation to contribute
equity ta EverQ under the agreement armounted to EUR 19 miflion at December 31, 2007.

The future aggregate minimum (ease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as foflows at Cecember 31

SANCK N THOUSAND) JO0H 2006 ;
Mot later than 1 year 24 487 29611
Later than 1 year but not later than S years 80 840 55 689
Later than 5 yaars 32 363 192801
Tota) 144 690 105101

The operating leases at December 31, 2007 were primarily refated o a production building for REC ScanCell, the [ease of the new headquarter
in REC ASA and the production building for the first contract for recovery of slurryin REC Wafer as described above.

Contractual sales agreements

For 2008, aff of the production from REC Scanwafer and REC Silican is fo be used in REC Graup's own production or cantracted to be sefd
externally, Contracted external sales and the planned increases in own use depend on successfully building up new capacity The figures below
are based an already approved capacity expansions and reflect facts and assumptions at December 31, 2007. .

Far 2008, REC Scanwafer has contract coverage of 100 percent, af which more than 2/3is with external customers. This cantract coverageis
expected t¢ be reduced to 72 parcent in 2010 The contracts entered intoin 2006 and 2007 cantain the right far bath the customer and REC
Scanwafer to reduce deliveries for the following year with ten percent without this being considered a breach of contract. in addition, if there is
3 lack of raw material, REC Scanwater has the right on a pro rata basis to reduce deliveries.

The ¢contract coverage for polyerystalline silicon sales from REC Silicon for 2008 is 100 percent and the coverage is expected to be reduced

to close to 90 percent in 2010, Contracted sales from REC Silican outside the REC Group's own wafer productian accounts for approximately
1/3 and is primarily electranic grade contracts and to the jaintly controlled entity EverQ GmbH. Sales cantracts for polysificon contain the right
for bath the customer and REC Silicon to reduce deliveries for the following year with an unspecfied velume or ten percent dependent on the
individual contract, withaut this being cansidered a breach of contract Hewever, REC Sificon will in most cases where the volume is unspecified
have ta make up for such volumes [ater. In addition, if production problems should occur due to farce majeure, REC Silicon has the right on a
pro rata basis, to reduce deliveries. The defays in production from the new praduction plant in Moses Lake will (ead to pro rated reductions in
deliveries to the three customers impacted by this defay, EverQ GmbH, REC ScanWafer AS and REC SiTech AS. For REC Sifican's existing delivery
contract to EverQ, the up-front payment af USD 42 miliion and remaining part of the USD 45 million pre-payment shall be repaid if REC Silicon
cannof fulfillits cbligations under the contract.

Guarantses and pledges
Guarantees do not include guarantees that the REC Group has provided for obligations recagnized in the baiance sheet or purchased bank
guarantees.

At December 31, 2007 REC ASA had provided a financial guarantee limited to EUR 30 million for bank financing of EverQ's secand plant (NOK 74
million for the EverQ bank financing at December 31, 2006). See also above regarding REC's contingent obligation to contribute equity capital to
EverQ, )

EverQ's bank loans of EUR 37 million (REC's 33.33 percent share) are secured by pledges of non-current assets of EverQ with the same amount
and guarantees secured by current assets with carrying amounts in EverQs bafance sheet of EUR 33 million at December 31, 2007 (REC's 33.33
percent share). EverQ had pledged EUR 7.5 million of their fixed assets at December 31, 2006 (REC's 33.33 percent share) for bank borrowings
of EUR 2.3 million (REC's 33.33 percent share).

REC Silicon has thraugh an external bank issued fetters of credit available to pravide credt enhancement and has provided liquidity support

far certain cormmadity purchase agreements as well as other activities refated o capital expansions and investments. REC Silicon has pfedged
irventory, receivables and other deposit accounts with the bank in refation to a USD 8 million Letter of Credit Facifity undey which letters of
credi for USD 6.8 midlion have been issued at Decernber 31, 2007, The carrying value of total inventory, receivables and other deposits pledged
was US0 109 miflion at December 31, 2007 (USD 63 million at December 31, 2006). REC Silicon has pledged USD 201 miflion (USD 22.7 million at
December 31, 2006) of assets that are hefd as certificate of deposits {reported as part of the restricted bank accounts in the bafande sheet and
in note 14) for certain property tax payments described above as part af contractual payment obligations.
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Government grants with remaining value of SEK 12 million at December 31, 2007 (SEK 4 million at December 31, 2006) are secured by the
total assets of REC ScanModule AB. The carrying amount of {otal assels of REC ScanMadule AB was SEK 408 miflion at December 31, 2007
(SEK 403 rmillion at Decernber 31, 2006).

[30. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

There were no significant business combinations in 2007.

In 2006, the REC Group acquired the jointly contralfed entity EverQ. For infarmation regarding this acquisition and the final purchase price
allocation in 2007, see nofe 9, .

Al August 1, 2005, the REC Group acquired a 100 percent interest in Advanced Silicon Materials LLC (ASiMS) from Komatsu Lig (Komatsa). while
‘Komatsu retaing a 25 percent minority interest in ASIMI thraugh 2010, it does not retain any voling rights or rights 1o dividends. It receives
instead a fixed periodic payment in respect of its holdings. The REC Group accounts far Komatsu's minority interest in ASiM! as @ non-current
figbility see note 17. At the same date, the REC Group acquired the remaining 30 percent of Solar Grade Silicon LLC (SGS). The purchase price
allocations of these purchases were finalized in 2006.

If the acquisitions of ASiMI and SGS described above had occurred at January 1, 2005, the REC Group revenues for 2005 would have been
NOK 3 220 millian and profit for the year would have been NOK 44 million. In connectian with these acquisitions, the REC Group incurred
termination costs of NOK 7 millicn and recognized a pension settlement benefit of NOK 42 rmiflion, both of which were reflected in the 2005
income statement. For these acquisitions, the cash payments were as follows:

ORI THOLSAND) ) ) N 2003
Purchase consideration settied In cash 1969585
£ash and cash equlvalents in subsldlaries acquired” 81250

1888335
31. OTHER INFORMATION FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS |

Refer also to note 3.

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The estimated fair values of the Group's financial instruments are based on market prices and the valuation methodologies described helow

Interest bearing financiat liabllities and finance receivables

Nane of the REC Group's interest bearing lizbilities has market quotes. Mast of the interest-bearing lizbilities have floating interest rates, and for
these fair value is assumed to be equal to the carrying amount. Fair value for fixed rate liabilties is calculated by using estimated interest rates
at the balance sheat dates for similar fiabilities. The same applies {o finance lease liabilifies and finance receivabies.

Derivatives

Fair values of foreign currency forward contracts and interest rate swaps are estimated by the present value of future cash flows, calculated by
using quoted ferward rates as of 31 December 2007 ang 2006, respeciively. Option elements in flexible and participating forward contracts are
revalued using appropriate option pricing models. Al derivatives are recognized in the balance sheet at fair values,

Trade and other receivables and payables
Discounting is not considered {0 have material effect on trade and ather receivables and payables, and they are assumed to be equal to the
carrying amount.

Equity securities avallable for sale

The REC Group only has a limited amount of undisted shares and fair values are assurned to be equal to the carrying amaunt. Companies that
are consolidated in the REC Group, proporhonally consafidated ar accounted for by using the equity method, are not included in the table
further below.

Cash and cash squivalents and restricted bank accounts
All cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank accounts have floating interest rates. Fair values are assumed to be equal fo the carrying
arnounts,
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Estimated fair vatues of financial Instruments at December 31

|’ — 2007 2006 ‘I
i CARRYING ESTIMATED CARRYING ESTIMATED
f(NOK IN THOUSANDY AMOUNT FAIR VALUE AMOUNT FAIR \"ALEILl
Cash and bank {incl. restricted bank accounts) 6156 342 6156342 7417 539 7417539
Trade receivables 693 838 693 838 708 938" 708938
Qther non-¢urrent and current recatvables 281 486 281 486 164 220 164220
Flnance raceivables and short-termloans 179 850 176914 94 368 94368
Sharas available for sale 1237 t1237 1126 1126
Derlvatives ~ assels 92 918 92918 42 052 42 052
Darlvatives - Habllitles <706 363 -706 363 -148 04l -148041
Payables and accruod cost -1533 843 -1 533843 <744 918 744918
Provisions and other obligations -41 758 -41 758 -73 907 73907
Interest bearing llabllities +3123.126 3151 949 2644 235 2642 189
Total 2000 581 1968821 4817 142 4819187

The table above does nat include prepayments and a negative value of a delivery contract, Prepayments are not defined as financial
instruments. Prepayments include prepaid costs (see note 12} and prepaid capital expendture (see the consolidated balance sheet). In addition,
in 2007 EverQ GmbH made prepayments of USD 87 million related to defliveries of polysilicon. 2/3 of this plus interest is recagnized as an
interest bearing liability in REC's conselidated financial statements at year-end 2007 (NOK 327 miilfion). This fiability is not to be repaid in

cash, unfess the REC Greup is not able to defiver polysilicon to EverQ according to the agreement, which the REC Group regards as an unlikely
scenario. The negative vafue of 3 delivery contract of NOK 82 miflion (USD 15 miflion} at December 31, 2007 and NOK 132 milicn (USD 21 million)
at December 31, 2006 is included as other obligations in the balance sheet but is per definition not a financial liability (see note 20).

Contractual maturities of finencial tiabilities
information on contractual matunties of financial fiabilities is feund in note 11 for derivatives, note 17 for borrowings and note 20 far provisions.
All current liabifities are expected to be paid within one year from the balance sheet dates.

Credit risk

The maximum credit risks related to financial instruments are estimated in the table befow

U o 2006 E
! CARRYING HAX. CARRYING MAX.
LONOKC N THQUSAND) AMOUNT EXPOSURE AMOUNT EXPOSURE !
Cash and bank (incl. cestrictad bank accounts 6 156 342 6156342 7417 539 7417539

Trade recelvables €93 838 €33 838 708 938 - 708938

Other non-current and currant recelvables 281 486 281 486 164 220 164220

Flnance receivables and short-term foans 179 850 179 850 94 368 94 368

Derlvatives - assets 92 918 92 918 42 052 42 052

Guararkess for Everq . 238830 0 74000

T i 7404 434 7643264 8427117 8501117

REC Group's trade receivabies are primarily from limited number of wholesale customers in the sofar and electrenic industry in Eurcpe, USA
and Asia. Palicies are in place (o ensure that sales of products are only made to customers with an appropriate credit histary in cambination
with requirements for various payment guarantees ar prepayments. Some of the frade receivables at December 33, 2007 and 2006 were
overdue. However, the credit quality of trade receivables at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were regarded as very geod and the REC Graup has
experienced minimal losses on receivables. Management's opinion is that the REC Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.

Finance receivables are primarily unsecured foans ta related parties and t¢ a vendar. The fargest amount at year-end 2007 was REC ASA's [gan
to EverQ GmbH (2/3 of £UR 30 milfion (NOK 159 million}. 1/3 is reported as REC Group internal and eliminated on proportional consolidatian). it
also inchuded NOK 13 million as the carrying amount of a convertible faan to CSG Solar AG at year-end 2007. The REC Group's equity inwvestrnent
in CSG Solar AG was considered impaired at year-end 2007, but the corvertible loan was not impaired.

A large part of other receivables are receivables for taxes and grants payabfe by governments and are regarded to have a very law credit risk.

Derivative counterparties and cash transactions are fimited to high-credt-quality financial institutions and the credit risk is regarded as fow. Any
positive values in embadded derivatives da not contain any credit risk before sales are made and receivables are established,

Interest rate sensitivity

Afl interest bearing assets and liabilities are accounted for at amortized cost, except for derivatives. Consequently, a change in inferest rates wifl
not affect the value of the liabifities in the balance sheet, except for interest bearing derivatives. The fair value and carrying amount of EverQ’s
interest rate swap will be affected by changes in market inlerest rates, with any effect recognized to equity through the statement of recognized
incame or expense (hedge accounting). A one percentage point increase (decrease) ininterest rates is estimated lo increase (decrease) the
value of EverQ's interes! rate swap by approximately NOK 1 million at December 31, 2007 (REC Group's 33.33 percent share).
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A change in market inferest rates will affect the interest payments on interest bearing liabifities, cash and ¢ash equivalents and resincted bank
accounts. The net effect of a one percentage pointincrease {decrease)in interest rates is eshrmated to increase (decrease} net interest income
tor the year by NOK 40 million calculated on outstanding amaounts at Decermber 31, 2007. The same calculation at December 31, 2006 was
approximately NOK 50 million.

Exchange rate sensitivity

The REC Group has estimated the effect an financial assets and financial lisbilifies at December 31, 2007 and 2006 of a1C percent change

in currencies other than the entities functional currencies. The REC Group has no single functional currency, and the effects are calcuiated

for each entity in its functional currency, converted 1o NOK using the exchange rates at Decernber 3!, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The
calcdlations include intercompany receivables and payabhles. It excludes net investrents in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates but
includes receivables that are regarded as a part of net investments in foreign entities. The estimated effects of increase and decrease in foreign
exchange rates differs for flexible and participating forwards because these derivatives include an option element within predetermined bands
of currency rates,

“Total to equity" is an estimate of the effect that could affect equity through the consolidated statement of recognized income and expenses
excluding effects to profit or loss. it also excludes transfation differences on net investments in foreign currencies, except receivables regarded
as a part of the net investments. Exchange rate effects on derivatives that are designated and qualify for hedge accounting and on g USD

140 millian foan to REC Silicon that is regarded as a part of the net irvestment is estimated to be recognized to equity, based on the facts and
circurmnstances at Decernber 21, 2007 and 2006, In the calculation it has been assumed that all changes in fair values of denvatives that are
designated and qualify as hedge accounting at Gecember 31, 2007 and 2006 are recognized to equity with na ineffectiveness to profit or less.

The calculation should not be viewed as an estimate of what the effacts could e for the financial year for changes in currency rates. This

is, among ather things, due to the fact that the amounts of financial instruments in foreign currencies may change during the year at the

same time as changes in currency rates may occur uneveniy throughout the year. If thereis a change in the amounts of derivalives that are
designated and qualify for hedge accounting compared to December 31, more or less effects would be recognized to equity versus profit or (0ss.
This has been the case in 2007 compared to December 31, 2006 relating to embedded derivatives, as discussed below.

During 2007, the armaunts of cash and bank and Group internal receivables in foreign currency increased, especialty in USC for REC ASA with
NCOK as functional currency. In the first half of the year, cash and hank in USD increased, partially to comply with regufations, and in anticipation
of USD [oans to be provided fo REC Silicon far capital expendiure, Later in the year and at the beginning of 2008, the USD cash and bank held
by REC ASA has decreased somewhat, partially offset by increased receivables on REC Silicon. The USD rate significantly decreased in 2007 and
REC ASAreported considerable currency [osses. In accordance with the previcus finance policy these USD cash and bank and [oans were not
fully hedged. Changes in fair values of derivatives are also primarily due fo changes in foreign exchange rates. Derivatives that were used as
econamic hedging of cash and bank reported gains during 2007 that partially offsef currency losses on cash and bank. All currency derivatives
were enteredinto with the purpose of economic hedge. A significant part of these are derivatives embedded in safes contracts for waters,
where the sales are denominated in USD that is not the functional currency of either of the parties to the contracts. In the middle of 2007, a
large new wafer sales contract with embedded USD derivatives was entered into. The increased amounts of USD derivatives in combination with
significant change in USD exchange rate contributed to the change in fair value of derivatives. Only a part of the derivatives were designated
and qualified for hedge accounting in 2007, and cansequently the main part of changes in fair value was recegnized to profit or [0ss.

The tables below show an estimate of the effects of a 10 percent change in foreign currencies compared to functional currencies for each entity
and totaled to arrive at the estimated effects for the REC Group.

Exchange rate sensithvity on financlal instruments at December 31, 2007

CHANGE +10% COMPARED TO FUNCTIONAL CURRENCIES 1

!{NOK N THOUS AMND) EUR [1}:}) OTHER TOTAL
Financlal assets and liabilities

Financial assets 62 301 399751 86 462 138
Financial llablities +39 053 <8316 +13 415 -150 784
Nat excluding derivatives 23 248 301 435 -13 329 311354
Deflvatives

Bank derlvatives not hedge accounting -81 560 -102 746 . 16 148 -168 158
Bank derlvatlves hedge accounting =427 a77 4221 0] -431 698

Embedded derivatives not h o] 748621 Q 748621

Nt darlvatives  e— =509 037 641 16 148 148765
Total } R 485 789 943088 .
01! which to equlty
USD racelvable as part of net investment 0 75754 0 75754
;427 477 ..ia221
427 477 71533

58 312 871655 816 062

A negative change of 10 percent gives the same amounts as above in absatute terms, except for flexible and participating forwards.

i
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]
HMOH IN THOUSAND)

" CHANGE -10% COMPARED TO FUNCTIONAL CURRENCIES

LUR UsD OTHER TOTAL
Financtat assets and tiabllities
Financial assets 62 301 -399 751 86 462 138
Financial llabllitles 39053 98316 13 415 84
Net excluding darlvatives -23.248 -301 435
Deflvatives
Bank derlvatives not hedge accounting 158 986 84286 50516 192 756
Bank derivatives hadge accourting 365 930 75070 0 290 860
Embadded derlvatives not hedge accourting 0 -748621 0 748621
Net derlvatives 524916 -739 408 -50516
Total, 591 668 :1.040840 37187
Q1 which to equity
USD receivable as part of nat Investment o] ‘75754 o] 75754
Derivatives hedga accounting 427 477 4221 0 431698
Total to equity. 427 477 71533 0 355 944
Rest isto PAL 74 191 -969 307 -37 187 532 303

Exchange rate sensitivity on financial Instruments at December 31, 2006
= SRibelivbel > »

" THANGE +20% COMPARED TO FUNCTIGNAL CURRENCIES

akan

P
)
i

LNOH N THOUSAND) EUR usp OTHER TOTAL
Financial assets and liabilltles
Financial assets 71995 210680 247 282 921
Financial frablllzles -47 798 95258 €298 149354
Met excluding defivatives 24 196 115422 €051 133567
Derivatives
Bank derlvatives net hadge accounting -33 287 78590 -14 762 30541
Bank derlvatlves hadge accourting ~92 449 -123977 0 216 426
Embadded derlvatlves hedge accounting 0 196 963 o] 195 963
Embeddad darlvatlves not hedge accourting o] 9404 o] 9404
Net derivatlves 125736 139 980 14752 19.482
Total 101 540 275402 -20813 153049
01 which to equity
USD recelvable as part of nef Investment 0 B7 571 o] 87571
Darlvatives hedge accounting -92 449 71986 O 20463
92 449 159557 0 67 108
9091 115845 -20 813 85241

A negative change of 10 percent gives the same amounts as above in absolute terms, except for flexible and participating forwards.
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Exchange rate sensitivity on financlal Instruments at December 31, 2006
e e I R e = a2

CHANGE ~10% COMPARED 70 FUNCTIONAL CURRENCIES

ANOK IN THOUSAND) (1] ] usp OTHER JOTAL |
Financlal assets and kadlities

Financlal assets -71 995 210 680 -247 -282 921
Financial llabliities 47 798 95258 6298 149354
Net excluding derlvatives 24 196 =115 422 6051 -133 567
Derivatives

8ank derivatives not hedge accounting 18 457 71507 6195 -46 855
Bank derivatives hedga accounting 146 571 26472 0 173043
E£mbedded darivatives hedge accounting 0 195963 0 195963
Embedded derlvativas not hedga accournting 9 -9 404 0. -9 404
B e L L L S 165028 250 203 6195 9180
Total 140832 365825 12 246 212747
Ot which to equity

USD receivabla as part of no! investment Q 87571 0 87571
Derivatives hedge accounting 92 449 -71.986 0 20463
Totalto aquity 92 449 -159557 0 67108
Rest Isto PEL 48 383 206 268 12 246 -145 639

132. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS |
The REC Group has related party relationships with its subsidiaries that are censolidated and whose transactions are eliminated, associates,
joint ventures and with its Graup managerment and Board of Directors and principle shareholders.

The principle shareholders in REC ASA that had significant influence over the REC Group at year-end 2007 were Elkem AS and Orkla ASA. Orkla
ASA is the ultimate owner of Elkern AS, and their combined ownership interests at year-end 2007and 2006 were 397 percent and 275 percent,
respectively.

Good Energies Investments BY was a related party due to ownership of REC ASA shares up to February 2007, when it sofd all its REC ASA
shares. Ifs ownership interest was 34.4 percent at year-end 2006. Hafslund Venture AS was 4 related party due to ownership of REC ASA shares
up to the end of March 2007 when it reduced its ownership interest its awnership interest was 21.3 percent at year-end 2006 The uitimate
parent companies of these shareholders at the relevant points in time were. Good Energies Investment BV was awned by COFRA Hefding
Altiengesedlschaft (Switzerland); and Hafslund Venture AS was owned by Hafsiund ASA (Norway).

In 2007, the REC Graup purchased goods and services from Elkem AS far NOK § miflion. Besides this, in 2007 and 2006, the REC Group had
insignificant purchase/sales from/to related parties, in the normal course of business except as described below for EverQ.

1) Key management compensation atc,
Group management and Board of Directers' compensation, awnership of REC ASA shares and [0an agreements are shown in note 16.

il Loans from related parties
REC ASA had issued two convertible [oans. During 2006 these foans were converted to equity. See note 27 for more infermation-about these
{oans and nate 24 for interest on these [cans.

The first canvertible ioan agreement was entered into an Sepiember 24, 2003, amounting to EUR 31 million. The REC Group's principal
shareholders were the sofe takers of this facility with the follawing split: Gaad Energies Investments BY. (19.4 percent), Elkemn AS (48.4 percent)
and Hafstund Venture AS (323 percent). During 2006 this [oan was converted in full.

The second convertitye loan agreement was entered into on July 13, 2005, for USD 140 miltion. The REC Group's principal shareholders were
the majar providers of this facility with the follewing split: Goad Energies Investments BV, (381 percent), Efkem AS (27,2 percent} and Hafslund
Venture AS (25.3 percent), the remaining part (9.4 percent) was largely held by other sharehalders. This included Group management and
Directors, During 2006 this loan was convertedin full,

As apart of the financing of the acquisition of ASiMI in 2005, the REC Group entered inko 3 USD 140 miflion 12 percent term loarvfadility that
was to mature on December 1, 2006, Under this [oan agreement between the REC Group and Good Energies Investments, Efkern and Hafslund
Venture dated July 14, 2005 the REC Group pledged its shares of its subsidiary REC Sificon Inc as security. The fenders under the term loan
facility were paid a commitment fee in the amount of 1.25 percent of the aggregate principal amount of the [oan. This loan was prepaid in full
on October 27, 2005 and the fenders issued refeases for the pledged stack. The loan was replaced by a term foan and revalving credit facility
entered into with external banks.
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lil) Acquisitions from related parties

tn May 2005, REC ScanWafer acquired NorFurnace AS from, amang athers, Goad Energies Investments and Scatec AS. In July 2005, the REC
Group acquired the remaining &8 percent of SiTech from, ameng others, Good Energies Investments, Hafsfund Venture, Scatec AS and Hektor
AS. Aff Bjerseth, the former CEQ of the REC Group, and Reidar Langmo, a former merber of the REC Group management, had significant
ownership interests in Scatec AS at the time of these safes. Heklor AS was owned by Halvor Svartdal, who at the fime of these sales was a
member of REC ASA's Board of Directors.

iv) Transactions with EverQ GmbH and CSG Solar AG
EverQ became a jointly controlled entity at December 19, 2006. At the end of 2007, REC ASA paid additional equity capital to Ever Q. See note 9.

During 2007, the REC Group sold goads and services ta Ever(} for NOK 56 millicr and had receivables on EverQ related to these deliveries of
NOK 5 million at December 33, 2007.

tn 2007, REC ASA pravidad a guarantee [imited to EUR 3C millicn for EverQ's bank borrowings for a guarantee premium of 0.75 percent pro
anno and recognized guarantee fee of NOK 1.2 miflion in 2007 The guarantee provided in 2006 has been terminated.

At December 31, 2007, REC ASA had outstanding loans to EverQ of NOK 239 million (EUR 30 miilion}, and received interest incorme of NOK12.6
rillian on these loans in 2007

in 2006, EverQ and the REC Group entered into a fong term agreement for supply of palysificon from REC Sificon to Ever@ that also
incorporated and replaced a supply agreement from 2005. As & part of the agreement, in May 2007 EverQ made prepayments of a tofal of
USD 87 million and has also paid interest of USD 0.3 milfon due tofate payment The prepaymenis shall not be repaidin cash if REC Sificon
delivers polysilicon under the agreement, but will be recognized as a part of the revenues from the sale of polysilicon, REC Silicon has reported
the prepayments as an interest-bearing liability ang has accrued interest expenses of USD 3.5 miflion in 2007, Of the prepayments, USD 45
million plus interest is held as a restricted bank account, see note 14.

During 2006, the REC Group sofd goods and services to EverQ for NGK 28 million, and had receivables an EverQ refated to these defiveries of
NOK 2 million af December 31, 2006. REC ASA had provided a guarantee imited to NOK 74 million far EverQ's bank borrowings. At Decernber 31,
2006, REC ASA had outstanding [cans to EverQ of NOK 132 miffion (EUR 16 mittion}, and had accrued interest of NOK 2 million an these (cans.

In July 2007, REC ASA provided a convertible [oan te CSG Salar AG of EUR 2 mifiion, of which EUR 0.4 million is reparted as equity contribution.
Interast of NOK 0.5 mifion has in 2007 been accrued and added Lo the (oan,

133. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

e e e e+ et o ]

No events after the balance shee! date December 31, 2007 that require disclosure have been identified.
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BALANCE SHEET (NGAAP)
REC ASA

e R — -

(AT DECEMBER 31 (NOK IN THOUSAND) HOTES AR 2008
ASSETS

Mon-current assets

Qther intangible asset D 7447 | 0
D ] tax asset J 1044 0
Machinery and equipment C 48 990 9130
Fixtures and fittings, tools, office machinery and similar assets C 1138 ho2
Total property, plant and equipment el 9632
Shares in subsidiaries H 1187202 1187091
Non-current interest bearing receivables from subsidiaries 2 361563 . 1776674
Shares in Jointly controlled entity/associate ! 429171 420 590
Non-current interest bearing receivables from jointly controlled entity 251441 11121
Other investments 70 : 860
Total investments ¥ oa 3396336
T ol G| 3405968
Current assets |

Current interest bearing receivables from Jointly controlled entity 0 1210399
Interest bearing overdraft group account system for subsidiaries 1080072 ¢ 709942
Trade receivables from subsidiaries , 13544 % 881
Trade recaivabies from others ' 297 36
VAT and other taxes i 10759 J 0
Receivables on group contributions from subsidiaries | 665 000 | 410 484
Qther receivables from subsidiaries , 84 112683
Other receivables from Jointly controlled entity/associate ; 550 | 2444
Accrued revenues from subsidiaries 1 19262 9367
Other receivables i 16 445 | 5177
Derivatives L., 29548 | 28233
Total current receivables Palgg 1400346
Cash and cashequivalents. 8. 5 LG 796

Total current assets

;Tlaf;i“és sels




REC ASA

(AT DECEMSER 31 (NOK IN THOUSAND) NOTES 00 2006 !
EQUITY & LIABILITIES !
Shareholders’ equity 1
Share capital K 494 1315 494 172
Capital not registered K | o] 13129
Share premium reserve K 8 265784 8253714
Contributed capital K 283056 283056
Total paid in capital 3 Smd g 29044071
Other equity and retained earnings K 804647 460 752
Total shareholders equity g B P EY 9504823
Non-current liabilities |
Interest bearing liaiilities to financial institutions G | 1252950 1876 535
Retirement benefit obligations E | 12114 10012
Deferred tax liabilities J o o] 5527
Non-current provisions ! | 7500 9]
Total non-current liabilities L N2 1892 074
Current liabllities
Trade pavables to subsidiaries 752 1 499
Trade payables to others 43 G70 4283
Current tax liabilities : J 169 581 75 605
Social security, VAT and other taxes 4378 1391
Liabilities to subsidiaries Q 8384
Liabilities to Jointly controlled entity o] 2104
Current portion of liabilities to financial institutions 306 290 0
Current provisions 3181 § 1936
Other current liabilities 20692 17 499
Derivatives L. 24243 o
Total current liahilities : PR AT -
Totai lighilities G E s

}
Total equity and liabilities 3oty 23 11 509 '588|
| !

i

Sandvika, March 28, 2008
Board of Directors
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President and CEQ




INCOME STATEMENT (NGAAP)
REC ASA

[ e e e e
{YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 (NOK {N THOUSAND) NOTES ; O 2006 2008 .
Revenues from subsidiar ies | | 28319 12309 6875
Revenues from others ; 0! Q 1104
Total revenues I e 5 12 309 7979
\ i :
Purchase of goods . i 0 0 -118
Employee benefit expense | E 77 192 -6t 447 © -31461
Other operating expense F -74617 i -41 077 -20 148
Depreciation and amortization C 3018, -481 -168
Operating loss (EBIT) ! ERL Y -80 636 43914
1 .

Group contr ibutions from subsidiaries | i 665 000 ‘ 410 484 147 898
Other financial income from subsidiaries/Joint ventures ; i 150988 | 153 490 60903
Interest income i | 321771 ¢ 139132 2152
Interest expense on convertible bonds l ) 0 20971 -76 789
Other interest expense ! 111802 | -81 812 -113
Other financial expense 3763 | 0 0
Currency gain/loss on convertible loans | 0 11738 26 680
Other currency gains/losses . -458 647 -64 630 © 40402
Net gains on der viatives L 137 155 28233 0

I -73.336 Q 0

e } 494 968 103 859
i

Jod «161317 4 =138 535 29 148
) ! !
Prafit for the year B e, 356433 74711
Profit for the year is distributed as follows:
Other equity K 338541 356 433 74711
Total distribxited B s 366 433 ’ 7471%
[ - e e
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (NGAAP)

REC ASA

"YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 (NOK IN THOUSAND) NOTES 2006 2008 !
Cash tlows trom operating activities i )

Profit/loss before tax ! i 500858 | 494 968 ) 103 859
Taxes paid ; ~75 605 . 0 0
Depreciation and amortization I 3018 ] 481 168
Impairment loss on associated company i 73336 | 0 0
Changes in irade receivables i 202 292 | 47 621 -15176
Changes in trade payables 26098 164 209 -2 560
Effects of group contributions -254 516 410 484 -147 898
Effects of exchange differences [ 452 471 | 48 000 26 680
Change in der ivatives ! 22928 | 0
Changes_in other accrued iNCome and expenSes i, L 8152 . 10894
Net cash flow from operating activities : w B 24033
Cash flows from investing activities ) | L

Cash payment for shares . -B2028 319 567 -130 846
Payment finance receivables -1 101530 | -121 000 -1010091
Net change group account system 339842 375347 0
Purchase of equipment ' =43 460 9682 -355

cash flow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

¢ e Mo

Increase in current and non-current loans o

Repayment of current and non-current loans ‘ -225 190

Proceeds from issuance of shares net of costs paid | ¢

Repayment 0f @AUILY. e s seacsn s b L 216

Net cash fiow from financing activities | : -

)

Effect on cash and cash equivalents of ‘* .

chanass in foreian exchange rates b 298544 211000 .
Net change in cash and cash equivalents Qo 6 643 908 218245
Cash.and cash equivalents at January 1. | B 6703274

rCash and cash equivalents at December 31 | B Sl g B !

L . e e e P —— e ———

Net change group account system is presented net bacause of high turnover.
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REC ASA

NOTE

MM MO O

— I

Lr = c

Summary of significant accounting

princlples and general

Cash and cash equivalents
Property, plant and equipment
Intanglble assets

Employee benefits

Qther operating expenses
Llabilities to financial institutions
and convartible loans

Shares In subsidlaries

Jointly controlled entity, associate
and other invastmants

Income taxes

Equity

Derivatives

Research and development

v PAGE

129
129
129
130
130
131

131
131

132
132
133
133
133
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
REC ASA |

‘A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND GENERAL '
REC ASAis a halding company and contains parts of the Group ranagement, carporate functions, research and developmeni, business
development and the REC Group's inhouse bank. These activities were scaled up during 2006 and 2007 due to increased activity and
complexity of the REC Growp, including fsting on the Qslo Stock Exchange. In May 2006, REC ASA ¢arried out a capital increase in connection
with the Initial Public Offering and listing on the Oslo Stock Exchange. During 2006, all canvertible [oans were converted to equity, primarily
inMarch. In March 2006, REC ASA made a refinancing of the REC Group. From 2006, REC ASA canducts the main part of the external

debt financing in tha REC Group and pravides laan to, and receives placements of liquid assets from, Group companies. See note 17 to the
cansolidated financial statements. Revenues comprise sales of Group services to REC subsidiaries, primarily on a cost olus basis.

The financial statements of REC ASA have been prepared in compliance with the Norwegian Accounting Act and Norwegian generally
accepted accounting principles in effect at December 31, 2007, The functional and reporting currency af REC ASA is Narwegian Krone (NOK).
The cansolidated finandal statements of the REC Group have been prepared in accordance with IFRS. However, except as stated, REC ASA's
accounting principies are similar to the accounting principles for the REC Group, as described in the consclidated financial staterments. Where
the notes for the parent company are substantially different from the notes for the Group, these are shown below. Otherwise, refer to the notes
to the consolidated financial statements for the Group.

The main difference from the accounting principles for the REC Group is that the carwvertible loans have not been recorded at fair value in REC
ASA's financial statements. In the consolidated financial statements, the farsign exchange and fair value adjustments have been expensed and,
at conversion of the loans, Ihese effects have been recognized as an increase in equity. In REC ASA's financial staternents, the foreign exchange
effect has been included, bui not the fair value adjustments. Group cantributions and dividends that are subject to appraval by the Annual
General Meelings are recognized in the consolidated accounts at the fime of approval, Far REC ASA's financial statements, these are recognized
in the fiscal year they relate to. For REC ASA this is refevant for Group contributions receivable from subsidiaries. In REC ASA' financial
staterments, subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates are carried at the lower of cost and estimated fair value. In the consalidated
accounts, these are consolidated, proportionately consolidated and accounted for using the equity method, respectively.

'B. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ' I

JHOKIN THOUSANDY R . 2006,
Bank deposits 1847 309 1099216
058

Total cash ang cash aqulvalerts

In 2007 and 2006, REC ASA had a guarantee through Nordea Bank caovering employee tax deductions. Bank deposits at Cecember 31, 2006
included NOK 13 million received for REC ASA shares that were issuedin 2007, For credil fadilities, see nete 17 fo the consolidated financial
staternents.

.C. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT e !

| o o T o  Leasfwelo T ToRrE  @&m “206%‘;
1INOK IN THOUSAND) LICENSE CARS  IMPROVEWENTS EQUIPHENT  EQUIPHENT TOTAL JOTAL
Cost at January 1 211 210 0 1256 9333 11 010 - 1329
Additions 0 0 Jlsie 964 10294 43 076 92681
Pisposals 9 9 e S 0 9 9
Cost at Decamber 31 211 210 Jisig 2220 16627 54 086 11010
Accumulated depreciation at Decamber 31 211 210 03 ... 643 2691 3958 1378
Carrying valua at Dacember 31 0 0 31615 1577 16936 50128 9632
Depreciation for the year 0 0 203 328 2 a87 3018 481
Estimatad usaeful lit, years NA NA Upto 10 Upto3 Upto s

Depraciation plan NA NA Straight line Straight tine Straight line




iD. INTANGIBLE ASSETS g
TNOK i THOLISAND) e N T 00T 2006
Cost at January 1 0 0
Additions 7 447 0
7 447 0
Q 0
7 447 0 |
8] D
The intangible assets were nof ready for its intended use at December 31, 2007 and amortizatien had nat starled.
[E. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS i
Employee benefit expenses e
(60K 1N THOUSAND) o 2006 2008
Payroll 52573 40 660 26752
Social security fax 7521 5 582 2 460
Penslon expense Incl. soclal security tax 12036 3907 1872
Other employee related costs L...ahe2 1297 376
Employee benelit expenses 77192 51 447 31461

The average number of employees measured in man-years was 40 during 2007 and 29 far 2006 Total loans to emplayees in REC ASA
were NOK 1,700 thausand For campensation, loans and shareholdings for the Group managernent and Board of Directors, see nate 16 to the
conselidated financial statements.

Pension expense

HNOK IN THOUSAND) - ) s aeom)
SQrvice cost 3024 1565
tnterast cost 321 218
Expacted return on plan assets Qncl. administration expense 211 142

Soclal Security Tax 442
Total expense for banelit plans 3576
£xpanse for contribution plans 331
Totat pension expense 3.907
Accumutated actuarial gains and losses recognized directly to equity as of December 31 e
UNOKIN THOUSAND) 0 2008
Gross before tax 1858 7906
Lesstax 520 2214
Total recognized directly to equity l33s 5692
Retiremert berefit obligations in the balance sheet at December31
LNOK IN THOUSANDY (0]
Accumuiated Benetit Obligations @xcluding future salary increases) 10011

7 137
Pi G 17 148
Fair valug of plan assatls 7634
Fi 9514
Accrued soclal securitytax 1341
Total defined banetit plans 10 855

1259

12114

REC ASAs defined benefit pension plan for all its employees fulfills the requirements according to the Norwegian law “Lov am obligatarisk
tienestepensjon”. For information cn assumptions used and descriplion of the pension plan, see nole 19 to the consclidated financial
statements.
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iF. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES |

Specification of other operating expenses

{RHOK TN THOUSAND) ool 2006 2003
Cperating lease expensas 2790 3128 1836
Audit remunaratton 2653 4903 2949
Consultancy faes 52 032 18 901 8905
Travel Costs 7099 4610 2305
Marketing, representation, meeting and conferenca expenses 2400 3199 1684
Insurance 1210 857 192
Cther oflice expenses 6433 5478 1908
0
TAUING @XDBISES | ooeocsoreorsses e nsssme s oo 74617

Audit remuneration

NOK N THOUSAND) ; T
Statutory audit fees 2119
Other assurance services g1

Tax advisory services 119
Other nan-audit services s

f's remuneration expensed
Amounts sre exclusive VAT

For 2006, audit fees related te the share capital increase were recagnized directly to equity and amounted to NOK 2191 thausand (before
incame tax} and are not included in the amounts abave. For description of the services, see note 22 ta the consolidated financial statements. |

FUTURE PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS

The future aggregate minimum tease payments under non-canceflable operating leases are as follows S
INOKIN THOUSANDY _ Y - )
Not later than 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
3-4 years
4-5 years

Later than 5 years

in addition, REC ASA had committed future payments under service contracts of NOK 5 884 thousand at December 31, 2007
Tatal future aggregate minimum ease payments at December 31, 2006 were NOK 34 500 thousand, and committed future payments under

service coniracts were NCK 2 759 thousand. The operating [eases at December 31, 2007 were primarily related to the (ease of the new
headquarters at Kjgrbo in Sandvika.

'G. LIABILITIES TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE LOANS

For information regarding liabilities to financial institutions and corvertible loans, see notes 17 and 27 to the censofidated financial statements.

[H. SHARES IN SUBSIDIARIES

J

{cOMPANY (NOKIN THOUSAND) OWNERSHIPAVOTING SHARE EUSINESS OFFICE CARRYING YALUE |
REC Silicon AS 100% Barum 223132
REC ScanWafer AS 100%; Barum 743524
REC Solar AS 100% Barum 193 365
REC SiTech AS 100% Malay 27070
REC Technolegy Vantures AS 100% Barum . 111
REC Slta Servicas Pto Ltd 100% 0

Totai

Excep! for REC SiTech AS and REC Site Services Pte Ltd, the subsidiaries own shares in other subsidiaries as described in their respective

financial statements.

Aorua Frpert 1000

0By
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N

. JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY, ASSOCIATE AND OTHER INVESTMENTS ;

Shares In Jﬁolptﬁlyiggntkmligd gnwti‘l'y and assoclate at December 31, 2007

l’ S OWNERSHIP/ ~ ACQUISITION T CONVERTIBLE CARRYING
(HOK IN_ THOUSANDY VOTING SHARE oSt IMPAIRMENT LOAN VALUE
EverQ GmbH, Thalhelm, Germany 33.33% 420 623 4} 0 420623
CSG Solar AG, Thalhelm, Germary 21.71% 78574 73336 3310 B548
Total 499 197 73,336 3310.........429.171

For more information on the impairment and converiible [oan to CSG Solar AG see note 8 to the cansalidaied financial statements,

During 2007, REC ASA recognized interest income of NOK 12 638 thousand from EverQ and NOK 545 thousand from CSG Solar. REC ASA
invaiced expenses of NOK S0 thausand to EverQ and NOX 72 thousand to CSG Solar, At December 31, 2007, REC ASA had provided a guarantee
to Deutsche Bank limited to EUR 30 million for EverQ's bank financing and a guarantee fee NOK 1194 thousand. During 2006, REC ASA
recagnized interest income of NOK 2 413 thousand from EverQ and had invoiced expenses of NOK 40 thousand to CSG Sofar. At December 31,
2006 the guarantee REC ASA had provided was 3 guaraniee fimited to NOK 74 million for EverQ's bank financing For more information, see
notes 8 and 9 to the consalidated finandal statements.

J. INCOME TAXES i
MoK IN THOUSAND) T A 008 2003,
Prolit before taxes 500 858 494 968 103 859
Costs for the capital increase, recognized to aquity 0 +149 950 0
Permanent differances 75275 -201 242
Changes in temporary dffarences 29515 29238 637
Utllized | oss carried forward 0 -45 560 -103 464

Basis for current tax
Cumrent tax llapility at December 31 (28%)

Tot
Defarsed tax expensesbeneiit

Total tax expensa fof the year

Permanent differences for 2007 include impairment of shares in CSG Salar AG,

Speclfication of temporary ditferences _

{NOK IN THOUSANDY e R T 2008 ]
Fixed assets 2 808 1509
Recelvables 272 9
Pension liabllity -12113 10012
Darivatives

28% deferredtax assets (~)/liabllitles (+) -1 044 5527

The difference between changes in deferred tax assets/liabifihes in the balance sheet and the incorme statement is related to tax on equity
transacticns.
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K. EQUITY

r—- -7 T SHARE  CAPITAL NOT T 77 OWH SHAREPREMIUM  CONTRIBUTED OTHER :
LeNOK 1N THOUSAND) CAPITAL RECISTERED SHARES RESERVE CAPITAL CAPITAL JOTAL ;
Equity at January 1, 2006 304 319 1] 225 453 248 283 056 104 943 | 1145341
Converted debt to sharas 116853 [} 4] 1066 938 0 0 1183791
Share issue - Initlal Public
Offering (Qross proceads) 73000 13129 0 6841 492 0 Q 6927621
Costs for share issue 0 ¢] 0 -149 950 0 0 -149 950
Tax on costs for share Issue 0 0 0 41 986 0 0 41 986
Acquiring of own sharas 0 0 225 1} 0 2 648 2873
Actuarial galns/10sses on
daefined penslon scheme 0 0 0 0 0 4 327 4327
Deferred taxes on
actuarial gains/10858s 0 0 1212 1212
Other changas (net oftax) 0 o] -187 -157
Profit Tor the year 0 0 356 433 356 433
9 8253714 460 752 9504823
o T T T T T TRHARE. CAPITALHOT SHARE PREMIUM CONTRIBUTED DTHER !
lqig,smndgp”smo) CAPITAL REGISTERED RESERVE CAPITAL CAPITAL JOTAL |
Equity at January &, 2007 494172 13129 8263714 283056 460 752 9504 823
Issue of shares 154 -13129 12 975 0 0 0
Repayments of shares not Issued -11 o 905 0 o] 916
Actuarial gains/105ses on defined pension schema 0 o] 0 ol 6 047 6047
Deferredtaxes on actuarial gains/10s5as 0 o] 0 0 -1 693 1693
Prolit for the year 0 [¢] 0 0 339 541 339541
Equity at December 31, 2007 494315 Q 8265 784 283056 804 a7 2847 802

Share capital at December 33, 2007 consisted of 494 314 725 shares at par value NOK 1. On the Annual General Meeting on Apriléo, 2006: the
shares in REC ASA were split 1:20 (with effect from April 21). There is one dass of shares which all have the same voling rights. See note 15 to
the consalidated financial statement for more infarmation.

REC ASA's distributable equity at December 31, after allocatlons amounted to

INOK S THOUSAND) - o 2006]
Contributed capital 283 066 2B3 056
Other aquity B804 647 460 752
Defarradtax assets -1044 0
Distributable equity 1086 659 743808

'L. DERIVATIVES _

Al December 31, 2007 REC ASA had three flexible forward currency contracts, one for safe of USD 100 million and two for purchase of a total
of USD S0 eiflion. In addition REC ASA had two currency swap contracts for the total sale of USD 133 million. Hedge accounting has not been
applied to these hedges. See note T te the consolidated financial statements.

IM. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

|

Research and development €osis in REC ASA were NOK 27507 thousand in 2007 (2006: NOK 14,103 thousand, 2005: NOK 3,394 thousand). All
costs were expensed. REC ASA% corporate technology department onducts and coordinates research and devefopment within the REC Group,
primarify refated to next generatien technologies and enhancemsant of existing techinologies. It is expected that research and development

costs will create future profitability.
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AUDITOR'S REPORT

-
N HRE
KPMO AY Telepkana +47 G406
P.0. Bex 7000 Majorsiuen Fax +1 226055 0
Sorkécisltwdion B et wavw.kpmgao
N0 Oz Enterprise 935 174 2¥MVA

T the Anaval Starchakders” Mesting, of Renewaltls Encrgy Corparatian ASA
ANDITOR'S REFORT FOIt 2007

Respectbe Responudbilitkes of Birectary asd Auditors

We have nudited (b annvad financial strdements af Reaswable Encapy Corporation ASA as of J1 December 3007,
showing » piofii of TNOK 339 541 fur the prrent comgnny w4 profit of TNOK | 133 353 for the grmip, nsluding
the propasal for tee alloeatien of the prufil, We hme elso sudiicd the nformumion In the Boord of Directors’ repant
cuticerig e (inamcinl stuteirents and e golng conceen asswmpiion. The sarual financil siatements comprise ke
poerd conpany” s Ninisiciul Sulemonts ned the group occaunds. The garent compuny™s firnacial siscneaty camptis
the badance shexl, (e sigdcmenis of income amd cash laws and the aecompanylng noles. The group sceeunts cormprss
the balanee skesL. the statetnenty of incame snd cath Mpwx, the sement of reeogalsed lncenke and Saptints ind the
nocmnpunying vates, The ndes of the Nonweeglan occoumting acl ond good necounting pmetize’ o Narswy bave been
applicd W propas the paent campanys fnanclal gaement, The wies of Oie Nonwegion ococenting sct and
Itcrnalonat Flosncia! Romnting Standardt 1s wdopled hy e U havo been spplisd to peepare the group arcounds.
These financial swements and the Basrd of Disceions' repod me the responsibitlity of e Compuay's Hoard of
Direciors und Masaging Direior. Our sosponsibilky & 1o expross ea opinkon on these Oonackl sttereents ond on the
uther infiwresiion acsordiag ke ke nequireiments of Lk Norvwegion Act s Auditisp and Audilars.

Basis of Ogiinion

We conduated our ouedit in secontance with the Norvegion Ao on Awdling ad Awilon e good udiling practice in
Norway, meluding andards on auditing adopicd by Den parske Revisurleroninsg. Thise meditng storadants reguise (hal
we plan A s form Ehe andit Uo oblain posonable Rssutance sbowt whether the lineaclal matements are fee of
moerial misnzernen). An guttl inckrdes exumining, on i Wil basis, cvidsnee supponiing the smountz ond discheaes
in Uie Aonicin] ddemeras, An mrdd aliw inclotes ovesvsing 1o acconating prineiples wed and fignificaal citenatex
mede by management. s welt z cvatuning the averall Miwedal smcment presentaon To she extent rogulegd by e
unid poud awditing praciice mn aodit olse camprises a review of the manmenent of Us Cnmm:w finangiul ailairs ind
ity accounibgy ol Intermel contral sysems. We belizve tit aur nudi pravides s ressoashie hatis for our opisios,

Uplilon

In aur apinlon,

+  the parent campany’s finncial Safemesis mo weprred in seenrbunce with the few and regekulons end glve n e
and inir view aof the fmmocial position of dhe parest Compeny iz of 31 Devember 2007, the rosuls of ifs operntions
wxl €5 ash [lows is in accordznce with Ure rules of the Kerweginn secumsting oot ond good sccountiag practios in
Horwity

*  the group secouras are preparad tn accordancd with the law and regulmions nad give o tree umd fair view of the
fnancial posillon of the (hioup s of 31 Decober 2007, the resuks of s opeeatlons, Iis cash Oows eod the
statement of recognised come axd expenss tha year Bien emivd, in osourtkmee with the oules of e Norveghn
agcoumting nex and triemarional Rinasclal Reporting Staruineds as miopied by the LU

4 lhe company’s mangerent ks (Wlilled its duty o pmedoce o proger md chardy set out gt and
documestiticn of uccounding infonnation

s 1he inforustios in the Deard of Dirccwon rpott conoeming the firercia) statements und golog condem
REsRMplicn in eemsisient wilth the fimasclal stalomenss aad comply sith 1he Inw and rogubmions.

+ b nnl:]pasal fur the alocation of ke profit in the annual fintneial stnemetis is in complizzce with the law und
rezibationa.

Mote Avtharisod Publlc Aceawnianr
MNute: This izaostation from Mrwepln bas bzon prepored (ed bfometion punposes ondy
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‘ADDRESSES

Renewable Energy Corporation ASA
Kjarboveien 29

PO Box 594

NO 1302 Sandvika

Norway

Tel: +47 67 57 44 50

Fax: +47 67 57 44 99

Companies in the Silicon divisian:
)

REC Silicen Inc.

1616 Pioneer Way

Moses Lake, Washington 98837
usa

Tel: 1509 793 9000

Fax: +1509793 9002

REC Solar Grade Sificon LLC
3322 Road “N"NE

Moses Lake, Washington 98837
UsA

Tel: 41509 765 2106

Fax: +1 509 766 9325

REC Advanced Sillcon Matsriais LLC
9140 Rick Jones Way

Silver Bow, Montana 55750

usa

Tel : +1406 456 9858

Fax: +1 406 456 SBOI

REC Sificon Inc,

77 Sugar Creek Center Blvd.
Suite 550

Sugar Land, Texas 77478
usa

Tel: +1.281 325 3800

Fax: +1 281325 3818

REC Advanced Sillcon Materiats LLC
24 F HSBC Tower

1000 tu J1a Zui Ring Road

Pudong. Shanghai

China PC 200120

Tel: +86 21 6841 2035

Fax: +B86 2168411050

REC Advanced Silicon Materials LLC
Minami Fujisawa 9 2

Yamashita Bldg 304

Fujisawa, Kanagawa

Japan 251 0055

Tel: +81 466 27 9343

Fax: +81 466 Z7 9822

Companies in the Wafer division!

REC ScanWafer AS
Kjgrboveien 29

PO Box 534

NQ 1302 Sandvika
Narway

Tel: +47 67 57 4450
Fax +47 67 57 44 99

REC ScanWaler AS
GiomTiord plant
Prnesveren 3

NO 8160 Glomfjord
Norway

Tel: +47 757190 00
Fax, +47 75715013

REC ScanWafer AS
Herpya plant

Tormod Gjestlandsveq 31
NO 3508 Parsgrunn
Norway

Tel: +47 35 93 7000
Fax: +47 35937001

REC SiTech AS
@rnesveien 3

PO Box 100

NO 8160 Glomfjard
Norway

Tel +47 75719090
Fax: +47 757190 RO

Companies in the Solar division:

REC Salar AS
Kjgroaveien 29

PO Box 594

NO 1302 Sandvika
Norway

Tel; +47 67 57 4450
Fax: +47 67 57 4499

REC ScanCell AS
Teknologiveien 10
NO 8512 Narvik
Norway

Tel: +47 76 96 45 00
Fax +47 7696 45 01

REC ScanModuls AB
Hillringsbery

SE 670 20 Glava
Sweden

Tel: +46 570 75 22 00
Fax: +46 570 75 22 Ot

REC Solar Germany GrmbH
Prinzregentenstrasse 20

D 80538 Minchen
Germany

Tel: +49 BG 442 3859 0
Fax: +49 B9 442 31859 39

REC Solar Spain S.L.V.
Viladecans Business Park
Edificia Australia

cf Antono Machado 78 80
08840 Viladecans

Spain

Tel: 434936 476 Q12
Fax:+34 936 476 010

0282




REC ASA

REC v arilater &5 130

REC Sfllcon Inc.
100%

REC Solar Grade
Stlicon LLC
100%

REC Advanced
Sillcon Materlals LLC
100%*

s

- g : -
") Kornefsu Ameriea Copqratehplds Bunits mprasenting 25 pereent of the ownership, hese units carry no voling rights natther rights fo dividend payments.
REG 4380 i) Hhese unlr ol Lo ‘ .

i LE.

. u 0283




P
r
:
g
¥
5
8
o
=2
2
7
o
g
[
4]
5
J
g
o
¥

x
g
g
3
E
2
8
:
2
g
£
F
-
n
g
‘g
§
p
£
g
P
2
o
g
4
?

(@ REC

Renawable Energy Cofporation ASA

K erboveien 29

PO Box 594 ¥
No-1302 Sandvika

Norway

Tel: +47 67 57 4450

Fax: +a7 67 57 44 99

wWww.recgroup.com




